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Important Notice:

The Board of Directors of Guangzhou Pharmaceutical Company Limited (“GPC” or the “Company”) and each Director collectively
and individually accept full responsibility for the authenticity, accuracy and completeness of the information contained in this
annual report and confirm, having made all reasonable enquiries, that to the best of their knowledge and belief, that there are no

material omissions from, or misrepresentations or misleading statements contained in this annual report.

Guangzhou Yangcheng Certified Public Accountants Co., Ltd., the domestic auditors, and PricewaterhouseCoopers, the international
auditors, have audited the accounts of the Group and the Company for the year ended 31 December 2003 {the “Reporting Period”

or the “year”) and issued ungualified auditors' reports thergon.

Mr. Cai Zhixiang, Chairman of the Board, Mr. Zhou Yuejin, General Manager, Mr. Gao Fang, Financial Controller and Mr. Chen
B Binghua, Senior Finance Manager, individually accept responsipility for ensuring the authenticity and completeness of the financial

reports contained in this annual report.

Mr. Liu Jinxiang, an Independent Non-executive Director of the Company, being unable to attend the Board meeting held on 26
March 2004 due to other business commitment, has appointed Mr. Zhang Bohua to attend and to vote cn his behalf.

This annual report is drafted in both English and Chinese. In the event that different interpratation occurs, with the exception of the

accounts prepared in accordance with HK GAAP and the international auditors' report thereon, the Chinese version shall prevail.
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DETAILS OF RESULTS OF THE COMPANY AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES
(COLLECTIVELY THE “GROUP”) FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2003

Extracted from the accounts prepared in accordance with PRC accounting standards and systems:

Items

Total profit

Net profit

Net profit after non-operating items (note)
Profit from principal operations

Profit from other operations

Operating profit

Income from investments

Government grants and subsidies

Net non-operating results

Net cash inflows from operating activities
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

Note: Non-operating ftems included:

Losses on disposal of long-term equity investment
Government grants and subsidies

Gain from short-term investments

Net non-operating results

Non-operating expenses after deducting assets impairment
Reversal of assets impairment provided in the previous years
Income tax adjustment

tical-Company Limited Annual Report 2003 - -

2003
RMB’000

284,773
139,795
144,460

1,372,714

43,332
296,060
2,715
276
(14,278)
(6,830)
(201,038)

RMB’'000

3,015
276
738

2,232

10,328

3,490

1,942



Differences between the accounts of the Company and the Group for the year ended 31

the accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong (“HK GAAP”):

" December 2003 prepared in accordance with PRC accounting standards and systems and

Group Company
As restated As restated
As at 31 As at 31 As at 31 As at 31
December December December December
2003 2002 2003 2002
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
Net assets under PRC accounting
standards and systems 2,429,476 2,335,583 2,432,159 2,332,111
Provision for bad debts — (26,067) —_ —
Intangible assets capitalised 58,571 69,017 1,458 1,701
Difference on fixed assets revaluation 132,808 134,783 —_ —
Qverprovision of research and
development cost — 4,228 —_ —
Provision for employee benefits (66,782) (71,762) — —
Deferred taxation 12,708 26,590 — —
Reversal of payables write-off — (5,144) — —
Difference in monority interests (15,364) (13,148) — —
Reversal from net assets attributable
to subsidiaries —_ — (221,905) (165,539)
Net assets under HK GAAP 2,551,417 2,454,080 2,211,712 2,168,273
2003 2002 2003 2002
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
Net profit under PRC accounting
standards and systems 139,795 158,478 143,516 151,794
Amortisation of intangible assets capitalised (10,446) (10,4486) — —
Additional depreciation on revalued
fixed assets (1,975) (1,975) (243) (243)
Research and development cost undercharged (4,228) (8,530) — —
Government subsidies recognised as income 290 3,600 — —
Reversal/(provision) of employee benefits 4,980 (71,762) —_ —
Deferred taxation (charged)/credited (13,882) 30,341 — —
Provision for staff bonus and welfare fund (2,507) (2,144) — —
Reversal of bad debt provision 26,067 — —_ —
Income arising from dilution of
interest in a subsidiary 3,565 — 3,565 —_
Payables written-off recognised as income 7,224 — — —
Difference in monaority interests (2,216) 3,593 — —
Reversal of share of results of subsidiaries — — (54,745) (85,872)
Net profit under HK GAAP 146,667 101,155 92,093 65,679




PRINCIPAL FINANCIAL DATA AND FINANCIAL INDICATORS

1. Extracted from the accounts prepared in accordance with PRC accounting standards and systems
2003 2002 2001
Before After Before After
Indicators adjustment  adjustment  adjustment  adjustment

Income from principal

operations (RMB'000) 6,971,963 5,943,823 5,943,823 5,334,029 5,334,029
Net profit (RMB'000) 139,795 158,478 158,478 146,134 146,134
Total assets (RMB'000) 4,707,039 4,173,194 4,173,194 3,702,113 3,702,113

Shareholders’ equity
(excluding minority interests) (RMB’000) 2,429,476 2,286,929 2,335,583 2,172,916 2,221,570

Earnings per share (RMB) 0.17 0.20 0.20 0.18 0.18
Net assets per share (RMB) 3.00 2.82 2.88 2.68 2.74
Adjusted net assets per share (RMB) 2.92 2.74 2.80 2.59 2.65
Net cash inflows from operating

activities per share (RMB) (0.01) 0.21 0.21 0.17 0.17
Return on net assets (fuily diluted){%) 5.75 6.93 6.79 6.73 6.58
Return on net assets (weighted average)(%) 5.87 7.04 6.96 7.04 6.96
Return on net assets after deducting

non-operating items (weighted average) (%)  6.06 7.20 7.12 7.11 7.02
Ratio of shareholders’ equity

(excluding minority interests) (%) 51.61 54.80 55.97 58.69 60.00
Gearing ratio (%) (Note) 44.84 41.94 40.78 38.19 36.87

2. Extracted from the accounts prepared in accordance with HK GAAP

As restated

Indicators 2003 2002 2001 2000 1999
Turnover (RMB'000) 6,973,113 5,943,823 5,334,029 4,222,857 3,454,492
Profit before taxation (RMB’000) 307,829 196,360 205,987 204,572 178,115
Net profit for the year (RMB'000) 146,667 101,155 95,868 135,250 128,688
Total assets (RMB'000) 4,954,091 4,410,210 3,877,969 3,256,426 3,072,057
Total liabilities (RMB’000) 2,402,674 1,856,130 1,469,538 1,857,609 1,593,832
Shareholders' equity (RMB’000) 2,551,417 2,454,080 2,408,430 1,598,817 1,478,225
Earnings per share (RMB) 0.181 0.125 0.119 0.185 0.176
Net assets per share (RMB) 3.15 3.03 2.97 2.18 2.02
Return on net assets (%) 5.75 4.12 3.98 8.46 8.71
Ratio of shareholders’ equity (%) 51.50 55.65 62.11 49.10 48.12
Gearing ratio (%) (Note) 48.50 44.35 37.89 50.90 51.88

Note: Gearing ratio is calculated according to the following formula: total liabilities/total assets x 100%
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FINANCTAL INDICATORS AS REQUIRED BY THE INFORMATION DISCLOSURE
FOR COMPANIES ISSUING LISTED SECURITIES (NQO. 9) PROMULGATED BY THE
CHINA SECURITIES REGULATORY COMMISSION (PREPARED IN ACCORDANCE
WITH PRC ACCOUNTING STANDARDS AND SYSTEMS)

Return on net assets (%)  Earnings per share (RMB)

Fully Weighted Fully Weighted

Profit for the Reporting Period diluted average diluted average
Profit from principal operations 56.50 57.65 1.69 1.69
Operating profit 12.19 1243 0.37 0.37
* Net profit N 575 5.87 0.17 0.17
Net profit after deducting non-operating items 5.95 8.06 0.18 0.18

CHANGE IN CONSOLIDATED SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY DURING THE YEAR

Extracted from the accounts prepared in accordance with PRC accounting standards and systems

Include:
Statutory
Share Capital Surplus public Retained Total
items capital reserve reserve welfare fund earnings equity
RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB
Opening balance 810,900,000.00 1,114,334,224.64  336,429,845.16  109,728,912.38  73.918,608.87 2,335582,678.67
Additions - 523797777  80,670,425.74 2489277422 140,471,39149  226,379,795.00
Deductions — - 654,587.83 163,126.19  131,831,503.43  132,486,091.26
Closing balance 810,900,000.00 1,119,572,202.41  416,445683.07 134,458,560.41  82,668,406.93 2,429,476,382.41
Reasons for change:
1. Addition in capital reserve is mainly due to capital contribution by minority shareholders into

Guangzhou Han Fang Contemporary Chinese Medicine Research and Development Co., Ltd.
(“Guangzhou Han Fang”), a subsidiary of the Company in April 2003 and government grants related
to fixed assets and waived liabilities.

2. Change in surplus reserve is mainly due to the amount transferred from the Group’s net profit for
the year.




Extracted from the accounts prepared in accordance with HK GAAP

ltems

As at 1 January 2003,
as previouly reported
Change in accounting policies
- provision for net
deferred tax liabilities

Restated as at 1 January 2003

Profit for the year

2002 final dividend paid

Transfers

Release upon disposal of a subsidiary

As at 31 December 2003

Statutory  Statutory Discretionary
Share Share Capital surplus public surplus  Retained Total
capital  premium reserve reserve welfare fund reserve  earnings equity
RMB'000 ~ AMBO0O0  AMBO000  RMB000  RMB000  AMB000O  RMB'O00  RMB000
810,900 781,134 443,355 160,635 109,729 66,066 83247 2,455,066
- - (53,184) — — - 52,198 {986)
810,900 781,134 390,171 160,635 109,729 66,066 135,445 2,454,080
- - - — — - 146,667 146,667
- - - - - - {48,654) {48,654)
— — 7418 33,978 24,893 21,821 (88,110} -
- - - (307) {163) (208) - (676)
810,900 781,134 397,589 194,306 134,459 87,681 145,348 2,551,417

Company Limited Annual Report 2003
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CHANGE IN SHARE CAPITAL

1. Movement in share capital and its components
Unit: share
Change (+/-)
Right Bonus  Reserves New
Before change issues issues  capitalised issues Others  Sub-total After change
A Uniisted shares
1. Founders' shares
Including:

State-owned shares 513,000,000 - - - - - — 513,000,000
Domestic legal entities’ shares - - - - - - — -
Overseas legal entities' shares - - - - - - - -
Others - — — - - - - -
2. Coliective legal entities shares - - - - - - - -
3. Inner staff shares - - - - - - - -
4. Preferred shares or others - - - - - - - -
Total unlisted shares 513,000,000 - -~ — - — — 513,000,000

B. Listed shares - - - — - - — —
1. RMB-denominated ordinary shares 78,000,000 - - - - - — 78,000,000
2, Domestic listed foreign capital shares - — — — — — — —

3 Overseas listed foreign

capital shares (H shares) 219,900,000 - - - — - — 219,900,000
4 Others - - - — - — - —
Total listed shares 297900000 - - . T e T LT 287800000

C. Total shares 810,900,000 - - — - - — 810,900,000

2. Shares issued to the public

The Company issued 219,900,000 H shares in Hong Kong on 24 October 1997, with the issue
price of HK$1.85 per share. The H shares were listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited ("HKEX") on 30 October 1997.

The-Company issued 78,000,000 A shares in the PRC on 10 January 2001, with the issue price of
RMB9.80 per share. These A shares were listed on The Shanghai Stock Exchange (“SSE”) on 6
February 2001.

Subsequent to the issue of the A shares, the total number of shares issued by the Company
amounted to 810,900,000 shares. '

3. The inner staff shares

The Company does not have any inner staff shares.
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INTRODUCTION OF SHAREHOLDERS

1.

Number of shareholders at end of the Reporting Period

As at 31 December 2003, there were 52,718 shareholders in total, out of which only one shareholder
holding the State-owned shares, 52,674 shareholders holding the A shares and the remaining 43
shareholders holding the H shares.

Sharehoiders’ interests and short positions in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company

(1)  Asat 31 December 2003, the interests and short positions of persons (not being the Directors,
Supervisors and Senior Management of the Company) in the shares and underlying shares
of the Company which were notified to the Company and HKEX pursuant to Divisions 2 and
3 of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFQO”) and required to be entered
in register maintained by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

%of % of total

Nature of Number of total issued  issued H
Shareholders shares held shares held State-owned shares shares
{share)

Guangzhou Pharmaceutical

Holdings Limited (“GPHL"}' State-owned shares 513,000,000 100% -
The Hong Kong and Shangha

Banking Corporation Limited? H shares 41,212,194 — 18.74%
Guotai Junan (Hong Kong)

Securities Company Limited? H shares 21,138,000 — 9.61%
Bank of China (Hong Kong)

Company Limited? H shares 18,803,000 - 8.55%
Hang Seng Bank Limited? H shares 11,464,274 - 5.21%
Citibank? H shares 11,228,000 - 511%

As far as the Directors are aware, as at 31 December 2003, other than those listed above,
there was no other person or corporation having an interest or short position in the shares
and underlying shares of the Company representing 5% or more of any class of the issued
share capital of the Company.

Notes:

1, During the Reporting Period, GPHL disposed part of its interests in the Company’s State-owned shares for
the purpose of financing the debt restructuring of Guangzhou Baiyunshan Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. The total
number of the State-owned shares involved is 152,600,000 shares, including a proposed disposal of
12,480,000 State-owned shares to the Guangzhou Office of China Huarong Asset Management Corporation
and 22,000,000 State-owned shares to the Guangzhou Office of China Greatwall Asset Management
Corporation. Relevant procedures to complete the disposals are currently in progress. The remaining State-
owned shares of the Company held by GPHL and as involved are still pledged as collateral.

2, As notified by HKSCC Nominees Limited, as at 31 December 2003, the H shares held by each corporation
in its securities account with the Central Clearing and Settlement System amounted to more than 5% of the
total issued H shares of the Company.

Guangzhou Pharmaceutical Company Limited Annual Report 2003
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(2) The top ten shareholders of the Company as at 31 December 2003 are set out as follows:

No. of shares , % of the issued
Shareholders (Share) Type of shares share capital Nature of shares
GPHL 513,000,000 Unlisted  Approximately 63.26  State-owned shares
HKSCC Nominees Limited 218,170,999 Listed  Approximately 26.90 H shares
HSBC Nominees (Hong Kong) Limited 862,000 Listed  Approximately 0.11 H shares
Waong Chung King 308,000 Listed  Approximately 0.04 H shares
Deng Da Kai 305,746 Listed Approximately 0.04 A shares
Xing He Securities Investment Fund 302,415 Listed Approximately 0.04 A shares
Chen Yu Liang 166,557 Listed Approximately 0.02 A shares
Zhang La 123,000 Listed Approximately 0.02 A shares
Liu Zhi Zhong 120,000 Listed  Approximately 0.01 A shares
Xie Feng Hua 115,000 Listed  Approximately 0.01 A shares

Notes:

(1) According to the information provided by HKSCC Nominees Limited, the H shares held by it were held on
behalf of several clients.

2) GPHL is not connected with the other nine shareholders listed above. The Company is not aware of any
connection among the nine shareholders, or whether they are persons acting in concert as stipulated in the
“Rules Governing the Disclosure of Change in Shareholders’ Shareholding in Listed Companies”.

3. Information of the shareholders holding 10% or more of the Company’s total issued shares
Name of shareholder: GPHL
Legal representative: Mr. Cai Zhixiang
Date of establishment: 7 August 1996
Registered capital: RMB1,007,700,000
Type of fegal entity: State-owned enterprise with limited liability
Shareholding structure: 100% state-owned

GPHL's business scope is to invest in and manage State-owned assets, to sell and manufacture
chemical medicine, Chinese Patent Medicine (“CPM”), Chinese raw medicine, biological products,
medical apparatus, packing materials for pharmaceutical products, health drinks and food, hygienic
materials and medicine-related merchandise; to undertake medicine-related import and export
affairs and to develop real estate.

4, Other shareholders holding 10% or more of the Company’s total issued shares

During the Reporting Period, the Company had no other shareholders holding 10% or more of the
Company’s total issued shares.

1




5. The top ten shareholders holding the listed shares of the Company as at 37 December 2003
are set out as follows:

Shareholders No. of listed shares held Nature of shares

(Share)
HKSCC Nominees Limited 218,170,999 H shares
HSBC Nominees (Hong Kong) Limited 862,000 H shares
Wong Chung King 308,000 H shares
Deng Da Kai 305,746 A shares
Xing He Securities Investment Fund 302,415 A shares
Chen Yu Liang 166,557 A shares
Zhang La 123,000 A shares
Liu Zhi Zhong 120,000 A shares
Xie Feng Hua 115,000 A shares
Jiangsu Jianghai Grain and Gil Trade Company 100,000 A shares
Notes:

(1) According to the information provided by HKSCC Nomineges Limited, the H shares held by it were held on behalf of
several clients.

2) The Company is not aware of any connection among the ten shareholders, or whether they are persons acting in
concert as stipulated in the "Rules Governing the Disclosure of Change in Shareholders’ Shareholding in Listed

Companies”.
8. Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or redeemed any of

the Company’s shares during the year.

7. During the Reporting Period, there was no change in the controlling shareholder of the
Company.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS : \

According to the laws of the PRC and the Articles of Association of the Company, there is no pre-emptive
right which would oblige the Company to issue new shares to existing shareholders on a pro-rata basis.
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Directors:

Mr. Cai Zhixiang, aged 54, Chairman of the Board of the Company, joined GPHL in 1981 and has
over 20 years’ experience in the pharmaceutical industry. Mr. Cai graduated from Guangzhou
Administration College in 1991 with a Diploma in Business Administration. In 2000, he received a
Master degree in management from University of Management and Technology in the United States.
He is also the Chairman of GPHL, an executive member and Vice Chairman of the Executive
Committee of Guangzhou Red-Cross Association, the Honorary Vice Chairman of Guangdong
Medical Association of Industry and Commerce, an executive member of the Guangzhou Association
Enterpreneurs, the Vice Chairman of Guangzhou Enterprise Assessment Association, an executive
member of the China Enterpreneurs National Executive Committees and an executive member of
the Executive Committee of the Cultural Construction Association of China Top 100 Enterprises.

Mr. Li Yimin, aged 53, Vice Chairman of the Board of the Company and Chief Pharmacist , joined
GPHL in 1970 and has 33 years’ experience in the Chinese pharmaceutical industry. Mr. Li further
studied at the Faculty of Biology of Zhong Shan University in 1976. He received a Master degree in
management from University of Management and Technology in the United States in 2000. At
present, he is the Vice Chairman and General Manger of GPHL, the Chairman of Guangzhou
Baiyunshan Pharmaceutical Co., Lid. and an Independent Director of Guangzhou Steel Holdings
Ltd. Mr. Li is also an executive member of Chinese Medicine Society of China, Chairman of the
Association of Pharmaceutical Industry of Guangdong Province, Vice Chairman of the Guangdong
Medicine Society, Vice Chairman of the Chinese Medicine Society of Guangdong Province, and
Vice Chairman of Guangzhou Chain Store Operations Association respectively.

Mr. Feng Zansheng, aged 53, a Director of the Company, joined GPHL in 1970. He graduated
from Guangzhou Medical College in 1977 with a Diploma in Medical Treatment. Mr. Feng is the
Chairman and General Manager of Guangzhou Pharmaceutical Corporation, Vice Chairman of
the Chinese Medical Commerce Association, an executive member of Guangdong Medical Society
and Vice Commissioner of Trading Specialty.

Mr. Zhou Yuejin, aged 46, is a Director and the General Manager of the Company. Mr. Zhou obtained
a Bachelor degree of Industrial Study and a Master degree in Economics, and qualified as a Senior
Economist and a Certified Pharmacist. He joined GPHL in 1975. He was the supervisor of the business
department of, assistant to the factory manager of, vice factory manager of and factory manager of the
Guangzhou He Ji Gong Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd., Director and Deputy General Manager of Po Lian
Development Co., Ltd. He has been the General Manager of the Company since December 2001. He
has extensive experience in business management and investment.

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Chu Youlin, David, aged 59, has been appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director of
the Company since 1997. Mr. Chu is a member of the Legislative Council of the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region-and the- Chairman of Wah Tak Fung Heldings Limited. Mr. Chu-received a
Master degree in Management from Northwest University and a Master degree in Business
Administration from Harvard University in the United States.

Mr. Zhang Bohua, aged 71, has been appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director of the
Company since 1997. Mr. Zhang is the Chairman of Yue Xiu China Investment Co., Ltd and China
Canton Investment Ltd.
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Mr. Liu Jinxiang, aged 64, has been appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director of the
Company since 2000. Mr. Liu was previously the Managing Director of Yue Xiu Enterprises (Holdings)
Limited, Guangzhou Investment Co., Ltd, and Yue Xiu Transportation Co., Ltd. Mr. Liu graduated
from Xi'an Construction Technology University in 1964 and has over 40 years’ management
experience in areas of industrial technology, enterprise management and economic affairs. He
was Vice-Mayor of Guangzhou City and head of Guangzhou Economic Committee.

Mr. Wu Zhang, aged 46, has been appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director of the Company
since 2000. Mr. Wu is currently the Chairman of the Board of Directors of Guangzhou Securities Co.,
Ltd, Chairman of Golden Eagle Asset Management Co., Ltd and an Independent Director of Guangzhou
Zhujiang Corporation Co., Ltd. Mr. Wu received a Master degree in Management from Murdoch University
in Australia and has a strong theoretical knowledge in economics and finance and sound experience in
securities management. From 1989 to 1999, he was General Manager of Guangzhou Yue Yin Finance
Development Company, Director and Deputy General Manager of Hong Kong Yue Xiu Finance Company
Limited and Hong Kong Yue Xiu Securities Co., Ltd.

Mr. Huang Buren, aged 68, has been appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director of the
Company since 2000. Mr. Huang was qualified as a China Tax Specialist and a Certified Tax Specialist
in 1996. He has over 40 years’ experience in fiscal and tax affairs. Mr. Huang has previously been
the Chief of a branch of the Guangzhou Finance Bureau, Vice commissioner of the Guangzhou
Finance and Tax Bureau and Commissioner of the Guangzhou Price Bureau.

Supervisors:

Mr. Chen Canying, aged 54, Chairman of the Supervisory Committee of the Company, joined GPHL in
1973. Mr. Chen graduated from Guangzhou Administration College in 1985. He is also the Chairman of
the Labor Union of GPHL and the Company. Mr. Chen is also an executive member of the Guangzhou
Entrepreneurs Association, a member of the Editorial Committee of the “Chinese Medicine Affairs
Paper”, and an executive member of the Chinese Medicine Economic Research Association.

Mr. Tan Sima, aged 40, has been appointed as Supervisor of the Company since 2000. Mr. Tan is
currently the Vice Chairman and General Manager of Guangzhou Securities Co., Ltd. He has a
Master degree in Economics from Zhong Shan University and has rich experience and strong
theoretical knowledge of management of securities. Mr. Tan was the Deputy General Manager of
Hong Kong Yue Xiu Finance Co., Ltd, Managing Director of Guangzhou Yue Yin Finance Development
Company. He is also Deputy General Manager of Yue Xiu Securities Co., Ltd.

Mr. Luo Jidong, aged 50, has been appointed as Supervisor of the Company since 2000. He is a
Senior Economist and the Chief of the China Merchant Bank, Guangzhou branch. He obtained a
Master degree in Economics from Southwest Finance University and has rich experience in financial
management.

Senior management:

Mr. He Shuhua, aged 47, Deputy General Manager and Secretary of the Company, joined GPHL in
1982. He graduated from Zhong Shan University in 1982 with a Bachelor degree in Biology. In 1995, he
obtained a Master degree in Statistics from the same university. He is also an executive member of
Guangdong Statistics Society and a representative of the 12th Guangzhou Municipal People’s Congress.

Mr. Li Decheng, aged 43, is the Deputy General Manager of the Company and the General Manager
of Guangzhou Pan Gao Shou Pharmaceutical Co. Ltd. He joined GPHL in 1978. Mr. Li graduated
from Guangzhou Teaching College in 1988 with a University Diploma in Political Science and
Economic Management and a post-graduate of the Northeast Finance University. He is an executive
member of the China Chinese Medicine Association.
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Mr. Gao Fang, aged 45, joined the Company in 2002. He is the Financial Controller of the Company.
Mr. Gao received post-graduate education and is a qualified lawyer, Certified Public Accountant
and Senior Economist. He was previously in charge of the audit department of the Shenzhen Stock
Exchange, a Director and Deputy General Manager of Hong Kong Guangxin Enterprise Company
and Deputy General Manager and Financial Controller of Beijing Bi Te Technology (Holdings) Co.,
Lid.

Directors’, Supervisors’ and Senior Management’s interests in shares (A shares) during the
Reporting Period

Shares Shares
held as at held as at
1 January 31 December Reason for
Name Position 2003 2003 change
(share) {share)
Mr. Cai Zhixiang Director 14,700 14,700 Note
Mr. Li Yimin Director 14,700 14,700 Note
Mr. Zhou Yuejin Director 3,700 28,900 Note
Mr. Feng Zansheng Director — —
Mr. Chu Youlin Independent Non-executive Director - —
Mr. Zhang Bohua Independent Non-executive Director — —
Mr. Liu Jinxiang Independent Non-executive Director - —
Mr. Wu Zhang Independent Non-executive Director - —
Mr. Huang Buren Independent Non-executive Director — —
Mr. Chen Canying Chairman of the
Supervisory Committee 9,800 9,800 Note
Mr. Tan Sima Supervisor — -
Mr. Luo Jidong Supervisor — -
Mr. He Shuhua Deputy General Manager and
Company Secretary 11,200 27,700 Note

Mr. Li Decheng
Mr. Gao Fang

Deputy General Manager — _
Financial Controller — —

Note: According to the long-term incentive scheme approved at the Company’s 2002 first Extraordinary General Meeting,
the senior management of the Company is entitled to an incentive bonus, provided that the target of operating profit
of the relevant year is achieved. Part of the bonus can be used to subscribe for the Company’s issued A Shares. The
senfor management’s interests in the Company have been reported to SSE in accordance with relevant rules and
regulations.

Directors’, Supervisors’ and Senior Management’s interests and short positions in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the company

As at 31 December 2003, the interests or short positions of the Directors, Supervisors and Senior
Management in the shares and underlying shares of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFQ), which were notified to the Company and
HKEX pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions
which they are taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO), or which were required,
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein, or which were
required pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers, to
be notified to the Company and HKEX, were as follows:
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Directors:

Name

Mr. Cai Zhixiang

Mr. Li Yimin

Mr. Zhou Yugjin

Supervisors:

Name

Mr. Chen Canying

Type of interests

Personal
Family

Family
Family
Family
Family
Family

Trust*

Personal
Family
Family
Family
Family
Family
Family
Trust *

Personal
Trust *

Type of interests

Personal
Personal

Senior Management:

Name

Mr. He Shuhua
Mr. Li Decheng

Type of interests

Personal

Personal
Personal

Company

A shares of the Company
Guangzhou Xing Qun Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.
(“Guangzhou Xing Qun”)

Guangzhou Pan Gao Shou Pharmaceutical Co., Lid.

(“Guangzhou Pan Gao Shou”)

Guangzhou Yang Cheng Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.
(“Guangzhou Yang Cheng’)**

Guangzhou Jing Xiu Tang Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd
(“Guangzhou Jing Xiu Tang”)

Guangzhou Guang Hua Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.
{“Guangzhou Guang Hua”)

Guangzhou Tian Xin Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.
(“Guangzhou Tian Xin")

Po Lian Development Company Limited (“Po Lian”)

A shares of the Company
Guangzhou Xing Qun
Guangzhou Pan Gao Shou
Guangzhou Yang Cheng
Guangzhou Jing Xiu Tang
Guangzhou Tian Xin
Guangzhou Guang Hua
Po Lian

A shares of the Company
Po Lian

Company

A shares of the Company
Guangzhou Yang Cheng

Company

A shares of the Company

Guangzhou Jing Xiu Tang
Guangzhou Yang Cheng

shares, except those in Po Lian and the A shares of the Company, are inner staff shares.

o
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Number of shares
(share)

14,700
1,900
1,670
1,960
2,240
1,670

1,670
200,000

14,700
1,900
1,670
1,960
2,240
1,670
1,670

200,000

28,900
200,000

Number of shares
(share)

9,800
22,150

Number of shares
(share)

27,700

3,820
1,680

Messrs. Cai Zhixiang, Li Yimin and Zhou Yuejin hold the said shares in Po Lian as trustees only. The above said

Guangzhou Yang Cheng changed its name as Guangzhou Wang Lao Ji Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd effected from 5
February 2004.
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(2) Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2003, none of the Directors, Supervisors, Senior
Management and their associates had any personal, family, corporate or other interests or short
positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which would have to be naotified to the
Company and HKEX pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or
short positions which they are taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO), or
which were required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred
therein, or which were required, pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
of Listed Issuers, to be notified to the Company and HKEX.

4.  Annual emoluments for the year

During the year, the total emoluments paid by the Group to Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management
of the Company amounted to RMB5,130,000. The total emoluments of the three highest paid Directors of
the Company amounted to RMB2,700,000 and the total emoluments of the three highest paid Senior
Management amounted to RMB890,000.

Allowances and other emoluments of the Independent Non-executive Directors are as follows:

Name Allowance for the year Other emoluments

RMB’000 RMB’000
Mr. Chu Youlin, David 94.3 Nil
Mr. Wu Zhang 42.0 Nil
Mr. Liu Jinxiang 58.9 Nil
Mr. Zhang Bohua 94.3 Nil
Mr. Huang Buren 19.8 Nil

Number of Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management who received their emoluments from the
Group was 15. The number of Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management of the Company classified
according to their emoluments are as follows:

Below RMB100,000 7
RMB 100,000 -RMB 400,000 2
Over RMB 400,000 6

Note:  Detaifs of the five highest paid employees are set out on the notes to the financial statements on page 130.
Policy on determining emoluments:

Emoluments of Directors and Supervisors were proposed by the Board of the Company. A resolution was
passed at the 2002 Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) authorising the Board to determine the amount of
emoluments and method of payment for services of the Company’s Directors and Supervisors. The amount
of emoluments and payment method of Senior Management were determined after taking into account
the Company’s operating results and individual performance.

None of the Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management received emoluments other than from the
Group. ‘
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Resignation of Directors, Supervisors and Senior Managemet during the Reporting
Period

During the Reporting Period, no Directors, Supervisors or Senior Management resigned nor any
new Directors, Supervisors and Senior Mangement has been appointed.

Note: Post the Reporting Period, as approved at the 28th meeting of the Second Section of the Board, Mr. Li Decheng
resigned as the Deputy General Manager of the Company due to work relocation.

Directors’ and Supervisors’ service contracts

A Summary of the service contracts between the Company and the Directors and Supervisors is
set out as follows:

The term of each contract entered into between the Company and the Directors of the Second
Section of the Board and the Supervisors of the Second Secion of the Supervisory Committee was
from 18 October 2000 to the date of election of the Third Section of the Board and the Third
Section of the Supervisory Committee. The term of appointment of each Director and Supervisor
of the Company is approximately three years until the date of election of the Third Section of the
Board and the Third Section of the Supervisory Committee. All Directors and Supervisors are
eligible to offer themselves for re-election.

The service contracts with the Directors and Supervisors do not contain any terms of compensation
for termination of contract, or for failure in being re-elected after expiration of the appointment.

Employees of the Group

As at 31 December 2003, the number of employees on the payroll register of the Group was 8,772,
including:

No. of employees

Production 4,883
Sales 1,756
Technical engineering 870
Finance 273
Administration 990

Among the employees, 66 of the employees hold a master degree and 735 hold a bachelor degree.
The number of retirees was 4,362. The total salary paymerit for the year were approximately RMB381
mitlion.

The remuneration of the employees of the Group includes salaries, bonuses and other statutory
benefits. Remuneration of employee is determined according to their performance, experience,
position and other factors and in compliance with the relevant PRC rules and regulations.
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STATUS

The Company has been operating in strict compliance with the PRC Company Law, the Securities Law
and other relevant rules and regulations issued by the China Securities Regulatory Commission (the
“CSRC”) in order to continuously improve its corporate governance, regulate its operation and to enhance
the Company’s information disclosure.

1. During the year, the Company has been devoted to the improvement of its corporate structure with a
view to enhancing its corporate governance. Based on the Company’s Articles of Association, the
Company has set up a set of rules for corporate governance, including The Rules of Shareholders’
Meetings, The Rules of Board Meetings, The Rules for the Supervisory Committee, Working Regulations
of General Manager, The Rules for Independent Directors and the respective regulations for the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration & Evaluation Committee and the Investment Management Committee,
which has further strengthened the internal management of the Company.

2. The Company and its controlling shareholder

GPHL has standardised its operations and would not act beyond the shareholders’ meetings to interfere
directly or indirectly in the Company’s decision making or operations. It has not utilized the Company’s
capital nor demanded the Company to provide guarantees to it or other parties. The Company and its
controlling shareholder worked separately in respect of business, human resources, assets, organisation
and financing. For this reason, the Board, the Supervisory Committee and the internal organisation
mechanism were able to function independently and appropriately. The Company’s connected
transactions have been entered into on an arm’s length basis. Details on pricing method, the agreements
and their execution were adequately and timely disclosed.

3. Directors and the Board

The Directors were elected in accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association. The number of
Directors and the composition of the Board met the requirements of the relevant rules and regulations.
Each Director was able to carry out his duty in a trustworthy, responsible and diligent manner and
actively took part in training courses, had strong knowledge in the relevant rules and regulations, and
fully understood their rights, responsibilities and obligations. The Company has appointed Independent
Non-executive Directors and formed specialised committees. The Independent Non-executive Directors
have fully exercised their functions.

4. Supervisors and the Supervisory Committee

The number of Supervisors and the composition of the Supervisory Committee are in compliance with
the relevant rules and regulations. In doing their best to maintain the overall interests of the shareholders,
the Supervisors fulfilled their duties in a diligent manner and monitored the legitimacy of performance of
the Directors and management.

5. Evaluation and incentive mechanism

The Company has set up the Remuneration & Evaluation Committee under the Board and established
relevant evaluation mechanism and incentive measures, to further improve its evaluation and incentive
mechanism on the performance of the Directors and the Senior Management of the Company.

6. Interested parties

The Company respected and safeguarded the interests of the banks and other creditors, employees,
customers and other interested parties, paid attention to environmental protection and social welfare
issues so as to mutually promote the sustainable and healthy development of the Company.

7. Information disclosure and transparency

The Company delegated the Company Secretary the responsibility for the Company’s information
disclosure, handling queries and consultations from shareholders, responding to correspondence from
shareholders and posting out requested information. In accordance with the relevant rules and regulations
and the Articles of Association, the Company continued to disclose information in an honest, diligent,
objective, truthful, accurate, timely, and comprehensive manner. The Company also ensured that
shareholders have fair access to information relating to the Company.
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DUTIES OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Independent Non-executive Directors have fulfilled their duties by actively protecting the overall
interests of the Company and ensuring that the legal rights of the minority shareholders are not impaired,
and providing constructive advice towards the Company’s development in accordance with the relevant
rules and regulations. In fulfilling their duties, the Independent Non-executive Directors were independent
from the major shareholders, controlling person and other persons or companies with relevant interests
in the Company.

SEPARATION OF BUSINESS, HUMAN RESOURCES, ASSETS, ORGANISATION AND
FINANCIAL ARRANGEMENTS FROM THE CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER

1. Separation of business

The Group operates with an extensive business scope that is independent from the controlling
shareholder.

2. Human resources

The Group maintains independency in areas of staffing, personnel and payroll management. The
General Manager, Deputy General Manager, Company Secretary, Financial Controller, and other
senior executives of the Company are remunerated by the Group and do not take up any position
in any companies of the Company’s controlling shareholder or its subsidiaries.

3. Assets

The Company is equipped with an independent manufacturing system, a supplementary
manufacturing system and related equipments. It also has independent purchases and sales
systems. There are currently 38 trademarks used by the Company, the titles of which belong to
GPHL. The Company has an agreement with GPHL in relation to the use of trademarks. In addition,
the Company owns 4 trademarks, the registration of which are still valid. 3

4. Organisation RS

The Company has established an independent and comprehensive organizational_structure. The
Board, the Supervisory Committee and other departments are operating independently, possessing
independent decision making mechanisms and complete production unit. There does not exist any
supervisory or reporting relationships with the functional departments of the controlling shareholder
of the Company.

5. Finance

The Company has established an independent finance department, set up an accountlng system
and formulated independent financial management policy. In addition, the Company has maintained
independent bank accounts which are used for its business activities. 3L

DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S PERFORMANCE
ASSESSMENT, INCENTIVE MECHANISM AND RELEVANT REWARD SYSTEM

A Remuneration & Evaluation Committee under the Board has been established and is responsible for
investigating and approving performance evaluation standards and remuneration policies and schemes
for the Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management. A long-term incentive scheme had been discussed
and approved at the 2002 1st Extraordinary General Meeting of the Company, and became effective in
2001. The scheme is available for the Directors (excluding Independent Non-executive Directors), the
Supervisors (excluding external Supervisors), Senior Management, middle-level Management and key
technical staff. The incentive scheme aims to link the responsibilities, risk exposure and performance of
the Senior Management and key personnel with the Company’s long-term developments, so as to maintain
the continuous growth of the it's operation results.
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During the Reporting Period and up to the date of this report, one AGM has been convened

A resolution to convene the 2002 AGM of the Company was passed at the 22nd meeting of the Second
Section of the Board and a notice to convene such meeting was published on Shanghai Securities, Hong
Kong Economic Daily and The Standard on 24 March 2003. The 2002 AGM was held at the conference
room of the Company on 16 May 2003. Three shareholders and authorized representatives holding a
total of 513,216,000 shares, representing approximately 63.29% of the total issued share capital of the
Company, were present and were sufficient to form a quorum for the meeting in accordance with the PRC
Company Law and the Company’s Articles of Association. The 2002 AGM was chaired by Mr. Cai Zhixiang,
the Chairman of the Board and the Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management of the Company as
well as the Company’s laywers were present at the meeting.

The following matters were considered and passed at the 2002 AGM:

(1)  the 2002 Directors’ Report;

(2)  the 2002 Report of the Supervisory Committee;

(8)  the 2002 audited financial accounts;

(4) the 2002 auditors’ reports;

(5) the re-appointment of Guangzhou Yangcheng Certified Public Accountants Co., Ltd. and
PricewaterhouseCoopers as domestic and international auditors respectively, and the authorization
to the Board to determine the auditors’ remunerations;

_iF T -

(6) the scheme of profit distribution and dividend payment for 2002;

(7)  the authorization to the Board to determine the remuneration of the Directors for 2003;

(8)  the authorization to the Board to determine the remuneration of the Supervisors for 2003;

(9) the auth&rization to the Board to allot and issue new shares in accordance with the relevant rules
and regulations during the relevant period and the authorization to the Board to make any necessary
amendments to the Company’s Articles of Association and to register such changes with the relevant

authorities.

The resolutions of the 2002 AGM were published on Shanghai Securities, Hong Kong Economic Daily
and The Standard on 19 May 2003.
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(Unless otherwise stated, the financial data contained in this report is extracted from the accounts prepared
in accordance with PRC accounting standards and systems.)

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Business scope and analysis of operations

1.

Scope of business

The Group is principally engaged in (1) manufacture and sales of CPM; (2) wholesale, retail, import
and export of Western and Chinese pharmaceutical products and medical apparatus; and (3)
research and development of natural medicine and biological medicine.

Analysis of operating results

(1)

Principal activities and geographical analysis of operations

During the year, great impact had been caused to the domestic pharmaceutical market
owing to the following reasons: (i) due to the outbreak of SARS, demand for certain
pharmaceutical products changed significantly and purchases from medical institutions
dropped tremendously in some areas due to the decrease in the number of inpatients; (ii)
the implementation of the State regulations on pharmaceutical products has caused the
reduction in the price of certain pharmaceutical products: (iii) gross profit margin of the
pharmaceutical manufacturing operations decreased as a result of the increase in cost of
certain raw materials; (iv) the increasingly fierce competition in the pharmaceutical market
in certain large cities of the country as a result of the springing up of cheap chain pharmacies
has brought direct impact on the pharmaceutical trading business. Facing severe market
conditions, the Group analyzed the changes in the pharmaceutical market, adjusted its
marketing strategies on a timely basis and strengthened market expansion, so as to increase
its sales and ensure the stable growth of the Group’s results.

According to the Group’s consolidated accounts for the year ended 31 December 2003,
turnover of the Group under PRC accounting standards and systems was RMB6,971,963,000,
representing an increase of 17.30% over that of 2002. Turnover under HK GAAP amounted
to RMB6,973,113,000, representing an increase of 17.32% over that of 2002. Profit before
taxation under PRC accounting standards and systems amounted to RMB284,773,000,
representing a decrease of 0.95% over that of 2002. Profit before taxation under HK GAAP
amounted to RMB307,829,000, representing an increase of 56.77% over that of 2002.

ompany Limited Annual Report 2003
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An analysis of the Group's turnover and profit from principal activities for the year by segment
is set out as follows:

Turnover Profit from principal activities
Under PRC Under PRC
accounting accounting
standards standards
and systems  Under HK GAAP and systems Under HK GAAP
RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB000
Principal activities:
Manufacturing 1,889,215 1,890,364 990,842 1,009,308
Trading
Wholesale 4,544,134 4,544,134 288,774 293,271
Retail 354,438 354,438 82,913 84,144
Import and export 184,177 184,177 10,185 10,226
Sub-total 5,082,749 5,082,749 381,872 387 641
Total 6,971,963 6,973,113 1,372,714 1,396,949

Geographical analysis of sales of manufacturing and trading operations is set out as follows:

Manufacturing Trading
% of the % of the

manufacturing trading Total % of the
Region Turnover turnover Turnover turnover turnover turnover
Southern China 1,192,253 63.11 4,322,167 85.04 5,514,420 79.09
Eastern-China 243,940 12.91 225,862 4.44 469,802 6.74
Northern China 140,232 742 129,146 2.54 269,378 3.86
North-eastern China 110,342 5.84 75,014 1.48 185,356 2.66
South-western China 101,433 537 171,321 3.37 272,754 3.91
North-western China 61,693 3.27 80,926 1.59 142,619 2.05
Exports 39,322 2.08 78,312 1.54 117,634 1.69
Total 1,889,215 100.00 5,082,749 100.00 6,971,963 100.00

CPM manufacturing business (the “Manufacturing Operations”)

Turnover of the Manufacturing Operations in 2003 under PRC accounting standards and
systems was RMB1,889,215,000, representing an increase of 8.36% over that of 2002.
Turnover of the Manufacturing Operations in 2003 under HK GAAP was RMB1,890,364,000,
representing an increase of 8.43% over that of 2002. Profit before taxation of the Manufacturing
Operations under PRC accounting standards and systems was RMB213,086,000,
representing a decrease of 0.23% over that of 2002. Profit before taxation of the Manufacturing
Operations under HK GAAP was RMB238,690,000, representing an increase of 61.82%
over that of 2002.
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In 2003, the Group has taken the following measures in its Manufacturing Operations: (i) it
has strengthened the connection and cooperation with large pharmaceutical enterprises.
During the year, several large exhibitions and technical promotion meetings were conducted,
which has effectively improved the brand image of the Group and increased its sales. (ii) it
has done its best to improve the promotion and marketing in some major products such as
Xiao Ke Wan and Hua Tuo Zai Zao Wan, set up manager responsibility system for major
products and strengthened its market control and management on certain major products;
(iii) it has further improved the marketing of some major products with high market potential
such as Hua Zhi Quan, Xu Han Ting, Mi Lian Chuan Bei Pi Pa Gao and Wu Ji Bai Feng Wan,
striving to explore new profit source for the Group; (iv) it further strengthened promotions of
pharmaceutical products to end-users such as hospitals and medical institutions,
endeavouring to make up for the loss caused by the decrease in sales to hospitals.

The implementation of the aforementioned strategies have good impact. In 2003, the sales
of certain key products such as Mi Lian Chuan Bei Pi Pa Gao, the series of Wang Lao Ji
Liang Cha, Hua Zhi Quan and Xu Han Ting increased significantly by 59.95%, 33.25%,
54.67% and 51.08% respectively as compared with 2002.

As affected by SARS, the turnover of the Company’s diabetes curing medicine decreased
by 14.58% as compared with 2002.

Sales analysis of major products is as follows:

Turnover Gross profit
Products 2003 2003

RMB’000 RMB’000
Heat clearing and antitoxic 475,617 236,707
Diabetes curing 311,501 207,160
Cough and phlegm clearing 248,569 121,894
Arthritis curing 210,935 123,204
Gastric 102,690 47,796

The Group emphasizes on accelerating the process of the technology upgrades. During the
year, twelve projects which utilised proceeds from issue of A shares have been completed,
including the technology upgrade of Xiao Ke Wan, technology upgrade for syrup production,
automation of pill production and syrup workshop upgrade. During the Reporting Period,
Guangzhou Qi Xing Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd, Guangzhou Jing Xiu Tang, Guangzhou Huan
Ye Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd, Guangzhou Xing Qun, Guangzhou Chen Li Ji Pharmaceutical
Factory and Guangzhou Yang Cheng have been granted the GMP certification for their
completed renovation. Currently, all of the Company’s eight manufacturing subsidiaries, except
Guangzhou Zhong Yi Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd due to relocation of production plant, have
passed GMP examination (Guangzhou Pan Gao Shou has passed the GMP examination,
but has not been granted with GMP certification yet).

During the year, inventory turnover days of the Manufacturing Operations decreased by
5.77 days, while accounts receivable turnover days increased by 1.07 days as compared
with 2002.
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The Group continued to push the research and development of new products and the
redevelopment of certain major products. In 2003, two new drugs applied for approval of
clinical research, one product was approved for clinical research, one product applied for
new drug certification, one product was under clinical research and 18 products such as Zhi
Yan Xiao Granules (sugar free), Compound Tui Re Quan for Children and Ke Gan Li Yan
Syrup were granted with production approvals.

In 2003, the implementation of the ERP system in the Company’s seven manufacturing
subsidiaries has been completed. The Company’s ERP project in the Manufacturing
Operations passed the examination by the assessment team organized by Guangzhou
Economic Commission and gained the recognition by the experts. Currently, the Company
is in the progress of implementing the ERP system in the Trading Operations.

Pharmaceutical trading business, including wholesale, retail, import and export (the “Trading
Operations”)

Turnover of the Group’s Trading Operations in 2003 under both PRC accounting standards
and systems and HK GAAP was RMB5,082,749,000, representing an increase of 20.01%
over that of 2002. According to the accounts prepared in accordance with PRC accounting
standards and systems, profit before taxation of the Trading Operations amounted to
RMB71,687,000, with a decrease of 3.02% over that of 2002. According to the accounts
prepared in accordance with HK GAAP, profit before taxation was RMB69,139,000,
representing an increase of 41.51% over that of 2002.

In 2003, due to the impact caused by changes in the pricing policy for pharmaceutical products
and the tendering system adopted by hospitals, gross profit margin of the Trading Operations
continued to decline and accounts receivable as at the end of the Reporting Period climbed.
The trading subsidiaries of the Company carried out effective measures to react to the above
market conditions. Firstly, they made timely adjustments to its marketing strategies according
to market changes, focused on the logistics management for the SARS related medicine
and tried to maintain their market share. They also strengthened the promotion on the SARS
related medicine, especially to end-users such as hospitals and retail pharmacies, so as to
ensure a continuous sales growth. Secondly, they continued to seek and develop new famous
pharmaceutical products and their agency and distribution rights, and tap up the market in
major cities and rural areas outside Guangdong Province. Thirdly, they strengthened its
wholesale business and tried to maintain its rapid growth. Fourthly, they made timely
adjustments to their development strategies in the retail business according to the market
changes. Fifthly, they made efforts to accelerate the construction of the pharmaceutical
logistics center, further streamlined their business, accelerated delivery speed and shortened
inventory turnover days.

As at 31 December 2003, the Group had 224 chain pharmacies, including 124 “Cai Zhi Lin”
Traditional Chinese Medicine (TCM) chain pharmacies and 100 “Jian Min” chemical medicine
chain pharmacies. The number of the clients of the Trading Operations increased by 2,103,
products with distribution rights increased by 2,077 types and products with exclusive
distribution rights grew by 36 types. That has been crucial to the sales growth of the Trading
Operations of the Group.
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Details and operating results of the Company’s major subsidiaries

Name

Guangzhou Zhong Vi
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd

Guangzhou Chen Li Ji
Pharmaceutical Factory

Guangzhou Qi Xing
Pharmaceutical Factory

Guangzhou Xing Qun
Pharmaceutical Co,, Ltd

Guangzhou Jing Xiu Tang
Pharmaceutical Co., Lid

Guangzhou Pan Gao Shou
Pharmaceutical Co., Lid

Guangzhou Yang Cheng

Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd
Guangzhou Huan Ye

Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd
Guangzhou Bai Di Bio-

Technology Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd

Guangzhou Han Fang Contemporary Medicine

Research & Development Co., Ltd
Guangzhou Pharmaceutical Corporation

Guangzhou Chinese Medicine Corporation

Guangzhou Pharmaceutical Import &
Export Corporation

Principal activities and
major products

Production and salss of CPM:;
major products are Xiao Ke Wan etc.
Production and sales of CPM:
major products are Wu Ji
Bai Feng Wan etc.
Production and sales of CPM;
major products are Hua Tuo
Zai Zhao Wan etc.
Production and sales of CPM;

major products are Xia Shang Ju etc.

Production and sales of CPM;
major products are
Qing Re Xiao Yan Ning, etc.

Production and sales of CPM;
major products are Mi Lian
Chuan Bei Pi Pa Gao, efc.

Production and sales of CPM;
major products are Bao Ji Wan, etc.

Production and sales of
phytochemical medicing

Research and production of
bio-tech medicine

Research and production of CPM

Trading of chemical pharmaceutical
products and medical apparatus

Trading of CPM and Chinese raw medicine

Import and export of TCM and
chemical medicine

Total assets
asat31
December 2003
RMB'000
469,808

265,364

178,517

304,488

183,939

299,628

178,657

34,303

67,831

85,382

1,824,061

351,949
121,144

Net assets

as at 31
December 2003
RMB'000

332,680

189,545

166,969

202,840

100,467

177,489

141,373

24,152

62,575

71,205

391,118

92,231
19,821

Net profit
for the year
RMB'000
56,999

20,130

12,908

27,202

5,270

3,029

18,810

253
(4,704)
(4,131)
40,473

(1,126)
848

None of the Company’s subsidiaries investment income account for more than 10% of the Group’s
net profit for the year.
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4. Major customers and suppliers

During the year, purchases of goods and services by the Group from the 5 largest suppliers amounted
to RMB972,248,000, representing approximately 16.51% of the total purchases. The purchases
from the largest supplier amounted to RMB255,763,000, representing 4.34% of the total purchases.
Goods and services sold to the 5 largest customers amounted to RMB388,693,000, representing
5.58% of the total sales. Sales to the largest customer amounted to RMB145,646,000, representing
2.09% of the total sales of the Group.

Acknowledged by the Board, none of the Directors, their associates or shareholders holding more
than 5% of the Company’s total issued share capital had any interest in any of the major suppliers
or customers noted above.

5. Issues arising from operations and solutions

The changes in the pricing policy for pharmaceutical products, the increase in the price of certain
raw medicine and the springing up of cheap chain pharmacies have brought certain impact on the
Group’s operation. In response to the severe market conditions, the Group made timely adjustment
to its marketing on the basis of prudent analysis of market changes, made greater efforts in market
expansion and endeavor to improve the sales of the Group, so as to ensure the steady growth of
the Group’s results.

The Company’s investments
1. Use of net proceeds from the issue of A shares

Upon the approval from the CSRC, the Company issued 78,000,000 A shares at the issue price of
RMB9.80 per share in the PRC on 10 January 2001. The net proceeds raised from the issue of A
shares was RMB737,990,000. As at 31 December 2003, an aggregate of RMB583,770,000 of the
net proceeds from the issue of A shares were utilised. The remaining unused proceeds amounting
to RMB154,220,000 are currently placed as bank deposits or used as working capital. The Company
will gradually utilise the funds according to the requirement of the projects.
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As at 31 December 2003, the use of the proceeds from the issue of A shares was in line with the
undertakings made in the prospectus for the issue of A shares. Details of the application of the proceeds
are set out as follows:

Budgeted injection  Amount injected Stage of
Category  Projects from the proceeds  during the year completion
RMB'000 RMB000 (%)
Projects for the technology upgrade and
industrialisation of new products
Pills Xiao Ke Wan upgrade 29,800 29,800 100
Bao Ji Wan upgrade 11,000 11,000 100
Industrialisation of Wei Re Qing Capsules 29,000 7,990 80
Automation of pill production 11,000 11,000 100
Technology upgrade of Hua Tuo Zai Zao Wan 17,000 17,000 100
Technology upgrade cf throat, spleen and intestine pills 29,100 17,580 70
Syrup Technology upgrade for syrup production 29,500 29,500 100
Industrialisation of Ke Gan Li Yan Syrup 19,600 19,600 100
Granules  Technology upgrade of Xu Han Ting Granules 12,000 12,000 100
Automation of granules upgrade 29,900 29,900 100
Technology upgrade of flu granules for children 23,000 23,000 100
Tablets Industrialisation of Fu Yan Xiao Solutable Tablets 29,500 8,640 45
Technology upgrade of spleen, intestine and pimples tablets 17,800 17,800 100
Technology upgrade of syrup workshops 29,500 29,500 100
Technology upgrade of suppository workshops 12,000 12,000 100
Industrialisation foundations 29,900 30,920
Modermnisation of extraction and purification technology 29,900 23,720 83
Critical purification of CO, technology foundation 29,900 13,1 80?~ 80
Trading
Expansion of chain pharmacies
Jian Min 89,300 84,230 94
Cal Zhi Lin 59,500 20,840 60
Logistics centre upgrade 20,000 20,000, 81
ERP upgrade for the Trading Operations 20,000 15,620, 80
Bio-tech research centre 80,000 50,180, 63
Additional working capital 50,000 79,690“1(Note} -
Total 708,300 583,770

_—

Note: The proceeds from the issue of A shares were approximatelyRMB737,990,000. The portion exceeded the budgeted
proceeds amounted to RMB29,690,000 was used as additional working capital.

(1)  Explanatory note on returns on projects and the stage of completion

During the Reporting Period, additional sales and gross profit from the completed projects
amounted to RMB437,590,000 and RMB246,250,000, respectively.

Among the above projects, the completion of industrialisation of Fu Yan Xiao Solutable Tablets
and industrialisation of Wei Re Qing Capsules were delayed till the end of 2004 due to the
relocation of production plants, while the expansion of chain pharmacies slowed as a result
of fierce competition in the domestic pharmaceutical market.
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At end of the Reporting Period, there was no change in the proposed use of the proceeds
from the issue of A shares as disclosed in the prospectus for the issue of A shares.

Investments with the funds generated from the Group’s operations during the Reporting Period

(1)

As approved at the meeting of the Investment Management Committee of the Company
held on 3 January 2003, the Company invested RMB1.2 million in the construction of the
Financial Information Control Platform of Guangzhou Pharmaceutical Company Limited.
The investment proposal has been considered and approved by the experts delegated by
Guangzhou Economic Commission. Guangzhou Economic Commission has agreed to
provide grants for the project.

As approved at the meeting of the Investment Management Committee of the Company
held on 26 May 2003, the Company entered into a joint venture agreement with Guangzhou
New Qasis Life Technology Co., Ltd and the Traditional Chinese Medicine Hospital of
Guangdong Province to establish Guangzhou Jin Shen Pharmaceutical Technology Co.,
Ltd, in which the Company injected RMB675,000, representing 45% of the equity interest
thereof. The Company is the largest shareholder of Guangzhou Jin Shen Pharmaceutical
Technology Co., Ltd. Guangzhou Jin Shen Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd is principally engaged in
the research, development and operation of TCM and TCM related healthcare products.

As approved at the meeting of the Investment Management Committee of the Company
held on 28 August 2003, Guangzhou Bai Di Bio-Technology Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd
(“Guangzhou Bai Di"), one of the Company’s major subsidiaries, invested RMB1 million in
the establishment of Guangzhou Hua Yin Bio-Technology Co., Ltd, in cooperation with
Guangzhou Han Shi Bio-Technology Co., Ltd and Guangzhou Bio-Technology Centre. The
registered capital of Guangzhou Hua Yin Bio-Technology Co., Ltd was RMB1 million, out of
whic%h RMB150,000 was contributed by Guangzhou Bai Di, representing 15% of the registered
capital thereof. in addition, Guangzhou Bai Di provides Guangzhou Hua Yin Bio-Technology
Co., Ltd a plant with an area of 500 m2 which is in compliance with GMP for a period of 5
years without any charges.

As approved at the meeting of the Investment Management Committee of the Company
held on 28 August 2003, Guangzhou Pharmaceutical Corporation (“Guangzhou
Pharmaceutical”), one of the Company’s major subsidiaries, set up Guangyao An Kang
Pharmaceutical Company Limited in Hubei Province in association with two individual
shareholders of Hubeiren Fu An Kang Pharmaceutical Materials Company. The registered
capital of the joint venture amounted to RMB6 million, out of which RMB3.06 million was
contributed by Guangzhou Pharmaceutical, representing 51% of the registered capital thereof.
The establishment of the joint venture is expected to facilitate Guangzhou Pharmaceutical
to expand the retail market in Hubei Province, improve its service to end-users, and greatly
increase the sales of its products outside Guangdong Province.

As approved at the meeting of the Investment Management Committee of the Company
held on 10 September 2003, the Company injected RMB20.1 milliom into Guangzhou Bai Di
which is a subsidiary of the Company.

The above investments provide more investment channels for the Company.
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Financial conditions

1.

Financial conditions

Prepared in accordance with PRC accounting standards and systems

2002
Before After
2003 adjustment adjustment Change
Item RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 %
Total assets 4,707,039 4173,194 4,173,194 12.79
Shareholders’ equity 2,429,476 2,286,929 2,335,583 4,02
Profit from principal activities 1,372,714 1,289,409 1,289,409 6.46
Net profit 139,795 158,478 158,478 (11.79)
Net increase in cash and

cash equivalents (201,038) 126,211 126,211 (259.29)

Prepared in accordance with HK GAAP
2003 2002 Change
items RMB'000 RMB’000 %
Total assets 4,954,091 4,410,210 12.33
Shareholders’ equity 2,551,417 2,454,080 3.97
Operating profit 307,365 219,485 40.03
Net profit 146,667 101,155 44,99
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (181,895) 104,988 (273.25)

Reason for changes:

Cash and cash equivalents of the Group for the Reporting Period decreased by of 259.29% as
compared with 2002 due to the significant increase of capital expenditure into GMP renovation.

Liquidity, financial resources and capital structure

As at 31 December 2003, long-term borrowings of the Group amounted to RMB107,180,000 (at 31
December 2002: RMB89,680,000). These borrowings were fixed interest loans denominated in
RMB and repayable within two to three years. As at 31 December 2003, the cash and cash
equivalents of the Group amounted to RMB816,440,000 (at 31 December 2002:
RMB1,019,900,000), out of which approximately 95.66% was denominated in RMB and 4.34%
was denominated in Hong Kong dollars.

Capital expenditure

The Group’s capital expenditure for 2004 is around RMB367,000,000 (2003: RMB363,000,000).
The Group has sufficient financial resources to meet the capital expenditure and daily working
capital requirements.

Exposure to fluctuations in exchange rates

As majority of the revenue, expenses, assets and liabilities of the Group are denominated in RMB,
the Group does not have significant risks in exposure to fluctuations in exchange rates.

Contingent liabilities

Up to 31 December 2003, the Group has no significant contingent liabilities.
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6. Charge on Group assets

As at 31 December 2003, the net book value of fixed assets pledged as collateral for the Group’s
bank loans amounted to RMB118,400,000 (at 31 December 2002: RMB118,030,000).

Impact caused by the changes in operation environment and macro economy on the Company

The implementation of GMP in the Manufacturing Operations will lead to the increase in the costs of the
Group. In addition, the gross profit margin of the Trading Operations will keep decreasing due to keen
competition in the domestic pharmaceutical market. It is expected that the above factors will cause certain
impact on the Group’s operating results.

The accounts of the Group and the Company for the year ended 31 December 2003 have been
audited by Guangzhou Yangcheng Certified Public Accountants Co., Ltd, the domestic auditors,
and PricewaterhouseCoopers, the international auditors. The Company’s domestic and international
auditors have both issued unqualified auditors’ reports thereon, respectively.

Operation plans for 2004

Year 2004 is a year full of challenges. Following the opening of the domestic pharmaceutical market,
especially the pharmaceutical trading market, competion in the domestic pharmaceutical market is expected
to be increasingly severe, and the Company will be encountered with new challenges and opportunities.
In strict adherence to its development strategy, the Company will further enhance its corporate governance,
strengthen its management and internal control, expand its core business and explore new profitable
business.

The Company’s operation plans for 2004 include:

1. To further strengthen the marketing and promotion of certain major products and products with
high market potential, and to explore more major products with great competitiveness, seeking to
increase the Group’s turnover and profit to a higher level;

2. To accelerate the construction of technology platforms, and to push the production and marketing
of new products such as Feng Shi Ping Capsules. In addition, it will continue to make great efforts
to enhance its competitiveness in technology.

3. To further regulate and perfect the SAP system of the Company and to accomplish the upgrading
of SAP system in the Manufacturing Operations in the first half of 2004, at the same time to accelerate

the implementation and training of the ERP system in the Trading Operations;

4. To continue seeking opportunities for cooperations with quality domestic pharmaceutical enterprises
through acquisition and merger, with a view to broadening the profit base of the Group; and

5. To gradually improve its existing evaluation mechanism and long-term incentive scheme so as to
enhance the activity and creativity of the key staff.

In 2004, the Company will continue to strive generating favourable returns for its shareholders.




32

DAILY OPERATIONS OF THE BOARD

Board meetings

All Directors of the Company have fulfilled their duties in strict compliance with the PRC Company Law
and the Company'’s Articles of Association, and diligently executed the resolutions passed at the general
shareholders’ meetings. During the Reporting Period, seven board meetings have been convened, details
of which are set out as follows:

1.

The 21st meeting of the Second Section of the Board was held on 23 January 2003, at which the
following resolution was passed:

. The adoption of HK GAAP in the accounting treatment in relation to the medical insurance taken
out by the Group for its retired and retiring employees within 10 years as required by circular No.
17 Provisional Rules of Basic Medical Insurance for Employees in Guangzhou City promulgated
by the Guangzhou People’s Municipal Government.

The first extraordinary board meeting of 2003 was held on 12 March 2003 by means of written
resolution:

. To authorize HKEX to submit the announcements and relevant information disclosed by the
Company to the Hong Kong Securities and Futures Commission for records on behalf of the
Company, and to appoint Mr. Zhou Yuejin to sign on such authorization.

The 22nd meeting of the Second Section of the Board was held on 21 March 2003, at which the
following resolutions were passed:

. the 2002 Directors’ Report;
] the 2002 audited accounts;
. the 2002 auditors’ reports;

. to re-appoint Guangzhou Yangcheng Certified Public Accountants Co., Ltd. and
PricewaterhouseCoopers, as domestic and international auditors respectively, and to
recommend the 2002 AGM to authorise the Board to determine the auditors’ remuneration;

. the scheme of profit distribution and dividend payment for 2002;

. the projected profit distribution policy of the Company for 2003;

. the aggregate amount of emoluments to be paid to the Directors and Supervisors;

. to recommend the 2002 AGM to authorize the Board to allot and issue new shares; and
. to convene the 2002 AGM.

The 23rd meeting of the Second Section of the Board was held on 25 April 2003, at which the
following resolution was passed:

. the 2003 1st quarterl‘y report of the Company.

The 24th meeting of the Second Section of the Board was held on 7 August 2003, at which the
following resolution was passed:

. the connected transaction in relation to the increase in the registered capital of Guangzhou
Han Fang, one of the Company’s subsidiaries, with contributions by the Company’s controlling
shareholder namely GPHL and five other individual shareholders such as Mr. Liu Ju Yan.
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6. The 25th meeting of the Second Section of the Board was held on 15 August 2003, at which the
following resolutions were passed:

. the 2003 interim report of the Company; and
. the unaudited financial report and profit distribution scheme for the first half of 2003.

7. The 26th meeting of the Second Section of the Board was held on 28 October 2003, at which the
following resolutions were passed:

. the 2003 3rd quarterly report of the Company;

. to purchase the liabilities insurance for the Company’s Directors and Senior Management,
which was proposed to be submitted to the Company’s shareholders’ meeting for consideration
and approval;

. the Working Rules of the Audit Committee under the Board of the Company;

. the Working Rules of the Remuneration & Evaluation Committee under the Board of the
Company; and

. the Working Rules of the Investment Management Committee under the Board of the
Company.

The progress of execution in respect of the resolution passed at the general shareholders’ meetings
2002 final dividend

Pursuant to the resolutions passed at the 2002 AGM, a final dividend of RMB0.06 per share for 2002 had
been paid to the Company’s shareholders in June 2003. The registration date for H Shares’ shareholders
for the final dividend was 24 April 2003, while the closing date was 25 April 2003. The registration date for
A Shares’ shareholders for the final dividend was 29 May 2003 and the closing date was 30 May 2003.

PROPOSED SCHEME OF PROFIT DISTRIBUTION AND INCREASE IN SHARE
CAPITAL FROM CAPITAL RESERVE

According to the Company’s Articles of Association, the amount of retained profits available for distribution
to shareholders of the Company is the lower of the amount determined in accordance with PRC accounting
standards and systems and the amount determined in accordance with HK GAAP. The Board recommended
a final dividend of RMB0.06 per share (including withholding tax for A Shares) (2002: RMB0.06) for the
year ended 31 December 2003. The proposed final dividend will be submitted to the forthcoming 2003
AGM for consideration and approval {the notice to convene the 2003 AGM will be published separately).

During the year, there was no increase in share capital from the capital reserve.

33




34

CHANGE IN THE NEWSPAPERS DESIGNATED BY THE COMPANY FOR
INFORMATION DISCLOSURE

During the Reporting Period, there was no change in the newspapers designated by the Company for
information disclosure.

OTHER MATTERS

1.

Accounts

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2003 are set out in the consolidated
profit and loss account prepared in accordance with PRC accounting standards and systems and
HK GAAP on pages 47 and 109.

The financial conditions of the Group as at 31 December 2003 are set out in the consolidated
balance sheet prepared in accordance with PRC accounting standards and systems and HK GAAP
on page 45 and page 110, respectively.

The cash flows of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2003 is set out in the consolidated
cash flow statement prepared in accordance with PRC accounting standards and systems and HK
GAAP on page 50 and page 113, respectively.

The cash flows of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2003 is set out in the cash flow
statement prepared in accordance with PRC accounting standards and systems on page 586.

Financial summary

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the last five financial
years prepared in accordance with HK GAAP is set out on page 6.

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the last three financial
years prepared in accordance with PRC accounting standards and systems is set out on page 6.

Reserves

Movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company during the year prepared in accordance
with PRC accounting standards and systems and HK GAAP are set out on page 88 and pages 140
to 141.

Distributable reserves

In accordance with the Company’s Articles of Associations, the profit available for distribution to
shareholders is the lower between the amount determined in accordance with HK GAAP and the
PRC accounting standards and systems. The distributable reserves of the Company as at 31
December 2003 amounted to RMB76,050,000, calculated under HK GAAP.

Fixed assets

Details of fixed assets movement of the Group in accordance with PRC accounting standards and
systems and HK GAAP are set out on pages 73 to 74 and pages 132 to 133.

Directors’ and Supervisors’ interests in contracts

No contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s business to which the Company, its feliow
subsidiaries or its holding company was a party and in which a Director or Supervisor of the
Company had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or
at any time during the year.
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12.

Connected transactions
Details of the connected transactions were set out on pages 95 to 103 and pages 153 to 154.

Other transactions with jointly controlled entities and associated companies as disclosed on notes
to the accounts which do not constitute connected transactions under the Listing Rules.

The Directors believe that the above-mentioned connected transactions fully comply with the waivers
granted by HKEX.

The Independent Non-Executive Directors have reviewed the connected transactions and regarded
the transactions as being carried out within the Company’s ordinary operations and under ordinary
business terms. The relative terms were considered normal business terms or at least no more
favourable than the preferential terms offered to third parties.

Management contracts

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole or any substantial part
of the business of the Company were entered into or existed during the year.

Compliance with the code of best practice

Throughout the year, the Company was in compliance with the Code of Best Practice as set out in
Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee had reviewed the accounting policies, accounting regulations and methods
adopted by the Group and discussed with the Company’s management about the audit, internal
controls and financial reporting. The Committee also reviewed the audited accounts for the year
ended 31 December 2003.

Tax exemption

Pursuant to circular No. 45 of the Taxation Law of the PRC issued in 1993, companies established
in the PRC and expatriates working in the PRC are exempt from income tax on dividend income
derived from holdings shares in companies listed on overseas stock exchange. Except for the
above, there is no other tax preferential scheme.

Retirement scheme

Details of the retirement scheme and amounts of contributions charged to the profit and loss account
for the year are set out on page 120 and page 126.

SuzZhgzhog-Pharnacciiical
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13.

14.

Staff quarters

Pursuant to the Accommodation Service Agreement entered into between the Company and GPHL,
GPHL agreed to sell the staff quarters to the employees of the Group at a preferential price. The
Company shall pay to GPHL the staff quarters reform costs, which represent the difference between
the preferential price and the cost net of depreciation paid by GPHL on buildings acquired for such
staff quarters. The total staff quarters reform costs, which are payable to GPHL, amounted to
approximately RMB62,030,000 (2002: RMB62,030,000).

In addition, the Group has constructed or acquired certain staff quarters. As at 31 December 2003,
the difference between the construction cost or acquisition cost and the revenue from disposal of
the quarters totalled RMB42,437,000 (2002: RMB42,437,000).

The above mentioned staff quarters reform costs amounted to RMB104,467,000 as at 31 December
2003 (2002: RMB104,467,000). According to the regulation in Caiqi [2000] No.29, the Notice on
Accounting Treatment Method of Housing Reform Initiated in Enterprises, issued by the Ministry of
Finance, the costs arising there from should be dealt with in retained earnings as at 1 January
2003. Subject to the approval by the Board, any deficit balance should be appropriated to the
statutory public welfare fund, statutory surplus reserve fund, and capital reserve. This accounting
treatment has been adopted in the accounts prepared in accordance with PRC accounting standards
and systems.

For the accounts prepared in accordance with HK GAAP, the staff quarters reform costs have been
deferred and amortised on a straight-line basis to the profit and loss account over a period of 10
years, which is the estimated remaining average service life of the employees. The total accumulated
amortisation as at 31 December 2003 was approximately RMB45,896,000, and the amortisation
for 2003 was RMB10,446,000. As at 31 December 2003, the net carrying value of the deferred
staff quarters reform costs was RMB58,571,000. In the opinion of the Board of the Company, if the
aforesaid deferred staff quarter reform cost had been completely written off in 2003, the consolidated
net assets of the Group as as 31 December 2003 would have been reduced by approximately
RMB58,571,000. With respect to the document (Suifu [2000] 18) issued by the Guangzhou People’s
Municipal Government concerning the one-time cash accommodation allowance to (i) those
employees to whom the Group has not allocated staff quarters and (ii) those aged employees
whose allocated staff quarters do not meet required standards, the Directors consider that the said
document is not legally binding on the Group. From 2001 onwards, the Group has formulated its
own cash accommodation allowance policy to employees based on the Group’s situation.

Project under development and for sales

During the Reporting Period, the Group did not hold any properties for the purpose of development
and /or sale or for investment purpose of which the net book value is above 15% of the net book
value of tangible assets of the Group or the contribution to profit before tax from these properties is
over 15% of the Group’s total profit before tax.
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15. Bank loans, overdraft and other loans

As at 31 December 2003, the details of the bank loans, overdrafts, and other liabilities of the Group
are set out on pages 83 and 86, and payes 138 and 144. Company with 2002, there have been no
material adverse changes in respect of the amounts of bank loans, short-term borrowings and
total liabilities as at 31 December 2003.

16. Gearing ratio

Up to 31 December 2003, there has been no material adverse change in the gearing ratio of the
Group.

17. Auditors

Guangzhou Yangcheng Certified Public Accountants Co., Ltd. and PricewaterhouseCoopers were
respectively appointed as domestic and international auditors of the Company for the year 2003,
as approved at the 2002 AGM.

A resolution for the re-appointment of Guangzhou Yangcheng Certified Public Accountants Co.,
Ltd. and PricewaterhouseCoopers as domestic and international auditors respectively of the
Company for the year 2004 is to be proposed at the forthcoming 2003 AGM.

There was no change in auditors in the past 3 years.

EXPLANATION OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS IN RESPECT OF FUNDS
USED BY THE CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER AND OTHER CONNECTED
PARTIES OF THE COMPANY

Guangzhou Yang Cheng Certified Public Accountants Co., Ltd, the domestic auditors of the Company,
has made an explanation in respect of the flow of funds with the controlling shareholder and other connected
parties of the Company.

In accordance with the requirements as set out in the Notice Concerning the Regulation on the Flow of
Funds between Listed Companies and their Connected Parties and the Provision of Guarantees by
Listed Companies to External Parties (Zheng Jian Fa [2003] Directive No. 56) promulgated by CSRC and
the State Asset Management Commission under the State Council, the statement on the application of
funds by the Company’s controlling shareholder and other connected parties for the year ended 31
December 2003 was set out below:
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Connected parties

GPHL

Guangzhou Qiao Guang
Pharmaceutical Factory

Guangzhou Ming Xing
Pharmaceutical Factory
Guangzhou Tian Xin
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd
Guangzhou He Ji Gong
Pharmaceutical Factory
Guangzhou Guang Hua
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd
Guangzhou Pharmaceutical
Mechanics Factory
Guangzhou Wei
Cai Factory
Guangzhou Hua Nan
Medical Apparatus Co., Ltd
Guangzhou Pharmaceutical
Ying Bang Marketing
Co. Ld

Guangzhou Pharmaceutical
Economic Development
Company

Po Lian
Development Co., Ltd

Guangzhou Zhong Fu
Medical Co., Ltd

Guangzhou Pharmaceutical
Industrial Institute
Guangzhou Balyunshan
Enterprise Group
Guangzhou Baiyunshan
Pharmaceutical Factory
Guangzhou Balyunshan
Chinese Medicine Factory
Total

Relationship
with the
Company

Parent
company

Under the same
parent company

Under the same
parent company
Under the same
parent company
Under the same
parent company
Under the same
parent company
Under the same
parent company
Under the same
parent company
Under the same
parent company

Under the same
parent company

Under the same
parent company
Under the same
parent company
Affiliated
company

Under the same
parent company
Under the same
parent company
Under the same
parent company
Under the same
parent company

Account

Other
receivables
Accounts
receivable
Other
receivables
Accounts
receivable
Accounts
receivable
Accounts
receivable
Accounts
receivable
Other
receivables
Accounts
receivable
Other
receivables

Accounts
receivable
Other
receivables

Accounts
receivable
Other
receivables
Accounts
receivable
Other
receivables
Other
receivables
Accounts
receivable
Accounts
receivable
Accounts
receivable
Other
receivables
Accounts
receivables

Balance

asat31
December
2003
RMB'000

7,226.8

5,572.5

288.4

3,140

178

4338

328.3

100

1,763.3

5,000

25.8

§,221.6

187.6

3.4

7,765.6

851.9

20,551.8

20,3758

Report 2003

Balance
asati
January
2003
RMB'000

8,130.3

7,2365

1971

917.8

171

336.9

333

1,1417

100

3,507

5,029.6

5,796.2

4773

2,000

64136

3704

21,2865

20,420.1

Transaction
amount
(Denhit)
RMB'000

358167

1,666.1

17,527.8

120.5

32378

1,806.5

22,498.9

258

4,088.6

1,416

227.2

22,742.7

1,581.5

4,315.8

108,439.3

Transaction
amount
(Credit)

RMB000

903.5

374797

197.1

1,379.7

15,305.4

120

3,140.9

333

2,618.8

242426

296

1,663.2

1,706.7

2238

2,000

6,413.6

14,9771

1,100

5,060.5

108,483.6

Nature

Deposits

Trade

Deposits

Trade

Trade

Trade

Trade

Deposits

Trade

Deposits

Trade

Borrowings

Trade

Deposits

Trade

Deposits

Borrowings

Trade

Trade

Trade
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EXPLANATION AND INDEPENDENT OPINIONS OF INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS IN RESPECT OF ACCUMULATED AND CURRENT
EXTERNAL GUARANTEES GRANTED BY THE COMPANY AND FUNDS USED BY
THE CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER AND OQTHER CONNECTED PARTIES OF THE
COMPANY

Pursuant to the principle as implied in the Notice Concerning the Regulation on the Flow of Funds between
Listed Companies and their Connected Parties and the Provision of Guarantees by Listed Companies to
External Parties (Zheng Jian Fa [2003] Directive No. 56), the Independent Non-executive Directors of the
Company have conducted examination of policies towards the guarantees provided to the external parties
by the Company in a serious manner. The relevant details are as follows:

As at 31 December 2003, the Company has not provided any guarantee to its controlling shareholder or
any other connected parties.

On behalf of the Board
Cai Zhixiang
Chairman

Guangzhou, the PRC
26 March 2004
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To all the shareholders:

On behalf of the Supervisory Committee of the Company (the “Supervisory Commiitee”), | hereby report
for your review, the duties performed by the Supervisory Committee during the year ended 31 December
2003 in accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association.

During the year, four meetings were held by the Supervisory Committee, details of which are set out as
follows:

1. The 12th meeting of the Second Section of the Supervisory Committee was held on 21 March
2003, at which the following resolutions were passed: .

. the 2002 Directors’ Report;

. the 2002 audited accounts;

. the 2002 auditors’ reports;

. the re-appointment of Guangzhou Yangcheng Certified Public Accountants Co., Ltd. and
PricewaterhouseCoopers, as domestic and international auditors respectively, and to
recommend the 2002 AGM to authorise the Board to determine the auditors’ remuneration;

. the scheme of profit distribution and dividend payment for 2002;

. the projected profit distribution policy of the Company for 2003;

. the aggregate amount of emoluments to be paid to the Directors and Supervisors in 2003;

. to recommend the 2002 AGM to authorise the Board to allot and issue new shares; and

. to convene the 2002 AGM.

2. The 13th meeting of the Second Section of the Supervisory Committee was held on 15 August
2003, at which the connected transaction in relation to the increase in the registered capital of
Guangzhou Han Fang by the Company’s controlling shareholder namely GPHL and five individuals
such as Mr. Liu Ju Yan was passed.
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3. The 14th meeting of the Second Section of the Supervisory Committee was held on 15 August
2003, at which the following resolutions were passed:

. the interim report of the Company for the first half of 2003;
. the unaudited financial accounts and the profit distribution scheme for the first half of 2003.

4, The 15th meeting of the Second Section of the Supervisory Committee was held on 17 October
2003, at which the 2003 3rd quarterly report was passed.

During Reporting Period, all the Supervisors of the Company have complied with the PRC Company
Law, the Company’s Articles of Association, and the Listing Rules, have fulfilled their responsibilities,
safeguarded the interests of the Company and the shareholders, abided by the principal of honesty
and trustworthiness, and devoted themselves to working cautiously and diligently. The Supervisory
Committee considered that the operation decisions made by management of the Company during
the year are in compliance with the rules and regulations of the State, the Articles of Association as
well as the Listing Rules, and are in the interests of the Company’s prospects and its shareholders.
The Company’s Directors and management have not committed any acts in breach of rules and
regulations, the Articles of Association, nor have they engaged in any acts involving the infringement
of the Company’s interest or infringement of shareholder interests.

The Supervisory Committee carefully reviewed the 2003 auditors’ reports issued by domestic and
international auditors and was in line with their opinion that the audited accounts of the Group and
the Company for the year ended 31 December 2003 exhibited a true and view of the state of the
Group and the Company as at 31 December 2003 and the results of the Group for the year then
ended. The domestic and international auditors issued unqualified auditors’ reports respectively
on the accounts of the Company and the Group for the year ended 31 December 2003.

The Company issued 78,000,000 A shares on 10 January 2001, and the net proceeds raised
amounted to RMB737.99 million. The use of the proceeds from the issue of A shares was in line
with the undertakings make in the prospectus for the issue of A shares. All of the proceeds were
utilised in prospective projects. During the year, there was no improper use of the proceeds.

The considerations for the purchase and sales of the assets are reasonable and on an arm’s
length basis. There have been no inside dealing transactions or transactions which harm the interests
of shareholders or led to the loss of the Company’s assets. The connected transactions are conducted
on an arm’s length basis and do not involve any actions which may harm the interests of the
Company.

On behalf of the Supervisory Committee
Chen Canying
Chairman

Guangzhou, PRC
26 March 2004
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Significant litigation or arbitration

The Group had no significant litigation or arbitration during the Reporting Period.
Significant disposal of assets, merger and acquisition

During the Reporting Period, there was no significant disposal of assets, merger or acquisition
activities occurred in the Company, subsidiaries or associated companies.

Significant connected transactions

During the Reproting Period, Guangzhou Han Fang, in which the Group originally owned 97.44%
equity interest, increased its registered capital with contributions by some new investors upon the
approval by the board of directors of Guangzhou Han Fang. GPHL, the Company’s controlling
shareholder, made an investment of RMB25,634,300 in the form of revalued fixed assets to
Guangzhou Han Fang. Huadong Chinese Patent Medicine Engineering Holdings Limited made
cash investment of RMB5,000,000 to Guangzhou Han Fang while Liu Ju Yan, Mo Shang Zhi, Cai
Xing Chun, Zhao Xiang Yong and Ge Fa Huan, directors and senior management of Guangzhou
Han Fang totally made cash investment of RMB2,650,000. The change of business registration
was completed on 17 April 2003. Upon the completion of capital contribution, the Company directly
and indirectly holds 58.66% equity interest in Guangzhou Han Fang. Details of the above connected
transaction were published on Shanghai Securities, Hong Kong Economic Daily and The Standard
on 12 August 2003.

Post the Reporting Period and up to the date of this report, the following connected transactions
have been entered into by the Company:

(1) The Company acquired 51% of the equity interest held by GPHL in Guangzhou
Pharmaceutical Ying Bang Marketing Co., Ltd at the consideration of RMB3,888,713.99.
Upon the completion of the transaction, the Company holds 51% equity interest in Guangzhou
Pharmaceutical Ying Bang Marketing Co., Ltd.

(2)  The connected transactions in relation to the lease of 2nd and 3rd Floor, Rear portion, 45
Shamian North Street, Guangzhou from GPHL by the Company and renewal of the lease of
2nd Floor, Front portion, 45 Shamian North Street, Guangzhou from GPHL by the Company.

Details of the above connected transactions were published on Shanghai Securities, Hong Kong
Economic Daily and The Standard on 9 February 2004.

The above connected transactions were in accordance with the requirements of relevant rules and
regulations.

Details of the connected transactions were set out in the notes to the financial accounts prepared
in accordance with PRC accounting standards and systems.
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Major contracts and their performance

(1)  During the Reporting Period, the Group did not hold on trust, sub-contract or rent assets of
other companies or vice versa, which generated profit that accounted for 10% or more of the
total profits for the year.

(2)  The Group did not provide any guarantee in favor of any third parties during the Reporting
Period.

(38)  Trusted fund management
During the Reporting Period, the Group has not had any trusted fund management activities.
Save as aforementioned, the Group was not involved in other major contracts.

As at 1 December 2003, capital commitments and lease commitments that were
contracted but not provided for by the Company amounted to RMB231,101,000 and
RMB69,360,000 respectively. During the Reporting Period, the contracted projects
were completed as scheduled.

In 2003, the Group paid auditors’s remuneration of RMB910,000 and RMB2,270,000
to Guangzhou Yangcheng Certified Public Accountants Co., Ltd. and
PricewaterhouseCoopers, respectively, Of the amount paid to Guangzhon Yangcheng
Certified Public Accountants Co., Ltd., RMB800,000 was for the 2002 annual audit,
RMB100,000 was for the 2003 interim review and RMBI10,000 was for capital
verification. An amount of RMB1,940,000 paid to PricewaterhouseCoopers was for
the 2002 annual audit and RMB330,000 was for the 2003 interim review. Both the
domestic and international auditors have provided audit services to the Group for 7
years.

No punishment was imposed on the Company or any of its Directors, Supervisors or
Senior Management by the regulatory bodies during the Reporting Period.

Save as those disclosed above, the Group did not have any other major event during
the Reporting Period.
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(English version translated for reference only)
Our reperence: (2004) YC 2297)

To the Shareholders of Guangzhou Pharmaceutical Company Limited

We have audited the balance sheet of the Company and the Group as at 31 December 2003 and the
related profit and loss account, profit appropriation statement and cash fiow statement for the year then
ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility
iS to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

We have conducted our audit in accordance with China’s independent Auditing Standards. Those Standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free from material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the accounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting policies used and significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating
the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our
opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred above conform with the Accounting Standards for Business
Enterprise and the Accounting System for Business Enterprise promulgated by the Central Government
of the People’s Republic of China and present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the
Company and the Group as at 31 December 2003 and the results of their operations and their cash flows
for the year then ended.

Guangzhou Yangcheng Certified Public Certified Public Accountant
Accountants Co., Ltd Huang Weicheng

Certified Public Accountant
Zhang Ning

Guangzhou, PRC
26 March 2004
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As at 31 December 2003

Form 1-1
in Bmb Yuan

Notes 31 December 2003 31 December 2002

ASSETS

Current Assets

Cash 7-1 816,439,041.14 1,019,903,178.95
Short-term investments . 7-2 49,499,310.37 61,194,385.90
Notes receivable 7-3 52,280,755.19 180,000.00
Dividends receivable 7-4 6,316,510.00 5,474,684.92
Interest receivable — —
Accounts receivable 7-5 878,361,678.85 716,482,532.62
Other receivables 7-6 130,980,738.37 122,975,499.77
Advances to suppliers 7-7 120,102,331.41 80,700,451.50
Subsidy receivable 7-8 10,325,834.50 10,064,712.63
Inventories 7-9 1,067,439,529.10 848,519,074.31
Prepaid expenses 7-10 91,300,355.06 81,727,619.19
Long-term investments
maturing within one year — —
Other current assets — —
Total current assets 3,223,046,083.99 2,947,222,139.79
Long-Term Investments
Long-term equity investments 7-11 74,867,192.97 86,789,969.55
Long-term debt investments — —
Total long-term investments 74,867,192.97 86,789,969.55
Fixed Assets
Fixed assets - cost 7-12 1,505,442,749.56 1,247,479,589.50
Less: Accumulated depreciation 7-12 498,586,610.77 442,207,260.76
Fixed assets - net amount 1,006,856,138.79 805,272,328.74
Less: Fixed assets impairment provision 7-12 25,786,824.47 29,564,343.45
Fixed assets - net book value 981,069,314.32 775,707,985.29
Construction supplies — —
Construction in progress 7-13 305,928,588.83 236,616,437.79
Fixed assets pending disposal - —
Total fixed assets 1,286,997,903.15 1,012,324,423.08
Intangible and Other Assets
Intangible assets 7-14 93,715,205.21 93,768,566.32
Long-term prepaid expenses 7-15 28,413,060.66 33,089,392.45
Other long-term assets — —
Total intangible and other assets 122,128,265.87 126,857,958.77

DEFERRED TAXES
Deferred tax debits

TOTAL ASSETS

_4,707,039,445.98

_4,173,194,491.19




46

As at 31 December 2003
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LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Current liabilities:

Short-term loans

Notes payable

Accounts payable

Advances from customers

Accrued payroll

Welfare benefits payable

Dividends payable

Taxes payable

Other levies payable

Other payables

Accrued expenses

Provisions for foreseeable liabilities

Portion of long-term liabilities due within one year

Other current liabilities

Total current liabilities

Long-Term Liabilities
Long-term loans
Debentures payable
Payables due after one year
Government grants payable
Other long-term payables

Total long-term liabilities

Defferred taxes:
Deferred tax credits

Total liabilities

Minority interest

Shareholders’ equity:
Share capital
Less: investment returned
Net share capital
Capital surplus
Surplus reserve
fncluding: statutory public welfare fund
Retained earnings
Including: cash dividend

Total Shareholders’ equity

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

Notes

7-16
7-17
7-18
7-19

7-20
7-21
7-22
7-23
7-24

7-25

7-26

7-27
7-28

7-29

7-30
7-31
7-31
7-32

31 December 2003

664,230,000.00
212,533,538.69
644,880,577.38
34,182,508.08
77,634,473.67
56,334,037.21
11,178.03
21,605,390.47
2,651,595.11
199,619,096.28
4,456,292,55

30,000,000.00

Form 1-2
In Bmb Yuan

31 December 2002

555,340,000.00
78,178,584.40
580,755,642.12
46,266,805.26
81,003,162.42
57,057,212.15
470,722.36
48,773,628.89
3,954,085.03
124,069,695.90
4,625,106.82

1,948,138,687.47

1,580,494,645.35

107,180,000.00 89,680,000.00
3,616,783.17 3,619,897.61
46,893,897.48 22,893,288.18
5,000,000.00 5,000,000.00
162,690,680.65 121,193,185.79
2,110,829,368.12 1,701,687,831.14
166,733,695.45 135,923,981.38
810,900,000.00 810,900,000.00
810,900,000.00 810,900,000.00
1,118,572,202.41 1,114,334,224.64
416,445,683.07 336,429,845.16
134,458,560.41 109,728,912.38
82,558,496.93 73,918,608.87
48,654,000.00 48,654,000.00
2,429,476,382.41 2,335,582,678.67
4,707,039,445.98 4,173,194,491.19
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ltem

Revenues from main operations
Less: Cost of main operations
Tax and levies on main operations

Profit from main operations

Add:  Profit from other operations

Less: Selling expenses
General and administrative expenses
Financial expenses

Operating profit

Add: Income from investment
Subsidy income
Non-operating income

Less: Non-operating expenses

Total profit

Less: Income tax
Less: Minority interest

Net profit

Supplementary information:

Profit from sale, disposal of a business
unit or investments
Loss due to natural disaster
Increase/(decrease) in total profit as a result
of changes in accounting policies
Increase/{decrease) in total profit as a result
of changes in accounting estimates
Losses from debt restructuring
Other

Notes

7-33
7-34
7-35

7-36

7-37

7-38

7-39
7-40

For the Year ended 31 December 2003

2003

6,971,963,246.21
5,575,381,494.57
23,867,921.27

1,372,713,830.37
43,331,577.75
480,112,918.89
617,672,250.86
22,200,163.99

296,060,074.38
2,714,764.17
276,208.28
2,616,643.99
16,894,247.44

284,773,443.38
134,425,044.95
10,552,991.99

Form 2-1
In Rmb Yuan

2002

5,943,823,330.51
4,630,442,992.22

23,971,060.12

1,289,409,278.17

31,799,024.38
418,080,004.45
557,186,117.00
15,329,165.53

330,613,015.57
(16,898,852.55)
314,068.00
2,858,663.60
29,380,807.14

287,506,087.48
113,122,444.16
15,905,895.38

139,795,406.44

158,477,747.94

969,762.78
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a (Supplementary Informa}ion)
For the Year ended 31 December 2003

Form 2-2
In Amb Yuan
2003 2002
Return on Earnings Return on Earning
net assets per share net assets per share

Fully Weighted Fully Weighted Fully Weighted Fully Weighted
diluted average diluted average diluted average diluted average

Profit from main operations 56.50%  57.65% 1.69 1.69  5521%  56.64% 1.59 1.59
Profit from operations 1219%  12.43% 0.37 037 1416% 14.52% 0.41 0.41
Net profit for the year 575%  5.87% 0.17 017  6.79%  6.96% 0.20 0.20
Net profit after deduction

of extraordinary items 595%  6.06% 0.18 018  695%  7.12% 0.20 0.20

48
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ltem

Net profit
Add: Retained earnings

at beginning of year
Add: Transfer from others

Distributable profit
Less: Transfer to statutory
surplus reserve
Less: Transfer to public welfare fund
Less: Transfer to staff bonus
and welfare fund
Less: Transfer to reserve fund
Less: Enterprise expansion fund
Less: Profit return on investments

Profit distributable to shareholders

Less: Dividend for preferred shares

Less: Transfer to discretionary
surplus reserves

Less: Dividend for ordinary shares

Less: Dividend for ordinary shares
transfer to share capital

Retained earnings at end of year

Notes

7-32

7-31
7-31

7-31
7-32

For the Year ended 31 December 2003

2003

139,795,406.44

74,594,593.92

214,390,000.36

32,076,133.21
24,892,774.22

2,507,077.69
940,154.13
940,154.13

153,033,706.98

21,821,210.05
48,654,000.00

Form 3
In Rmb Yuan

2002

158,477,747.94

49,665,627.95
3,972,143.34

212,115,518.23

34,419,291.99
26,812,654.95

2,144,451.47
804,169.31
804,169.31

147,130,782.20

24,558,173.33
48,654,000.00

82,558,496.93

73,918,608.87
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For the Year ended 31 December 2003

Cash flows from operating activities:

Cash received from sale of goods or rendering of services

Refund of tax and levies
Other cash received relating to operating activities

Sub-total of caéh inflows

Cash paid for goods and services

~Cash paid to and on behalf of employees

Payments of all types of taxes
Other cash paid relating to operating activities

Sub-total of cash outflows

Net cash flows from operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities:

Cash received from disposal of investments

Including: cash received from disposal of subsidiaries

Cash received from returns on investments

Net cash received from disposal of fixed assets,
intangible assets and other long-term assets

Other cash received relating to investing activities

Sub-total of cash inflows

Cash paid to acquire fixed assets, intangible assets
and other long-term assets

Cash paid to acquire investments

Other cash paid relating to investing activities

Sub-total of cash outflows
Net cash flows from investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Cash received from capital contribution

Cash received from capital contribution by minority shareholders

Cash received from borrowings
Other proceeds relating to financing activities

Sub-total of cash inflows

Cash repayments of amounts borrowed
Cash payments for interest expenses
and distribution of dividends or profits
Cash payments for dividends to minority shareholders
Other cash payments relating to financing activities

Sub-total of cash outflows
Net cash flows from financing activities

Effect of foreign exchange rate changes on cash

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents

Notes

7-42

7-43

Form 4-1
In Rmb Yuan

7,949,850,555.19
7,702,554.51
76,171,204.49

8,033,724,314.19

6,463,193,346.47
491,208,618.60
439,393,768.03
646,758,977.06

8,040,554,710.16

(6,830,395.98)

24,138,436.81
3,077,200.00
4,900,136.83

2,777,805.04

31,816,378.68

367,176,513.22
9,825,000.00

377,001,513.22

(345,185,134.54)

7,650,000.00
678,230,000.00
107,687,857.13

793,567,857.13

521,840,000.00

81,376,182.62
9,105,010.88
30,422,628.06

642,743,821.56

150,824,035.57

153,235.76

(201,038,259.19)
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Supplemental Information
1.

Reconciliation of net profit to cash flows from
operating activities:

Net profit

Minority interest

Add: Provision for asset impairment
Depreciation of fixed assets
Amortization of intangible assets
Amortization of long-term prepaid expenses
Decrease in prepaid expenses (less: increase)
Increase in accrued expenses (less: decrease)
Losses on disposal of fixed assets, intangible

assets and other long-term assets (less: gains)

Losses on scrapping of fixed assets
Financial expenses (less: gains)
Losses arising from investments (less: gains)
Deferred tax credit (less: debit)
Decrease in inventories (less: increase)
Decrease in operating receivables (less: increase)
Increase in operating payables (less: decrease)
Others

Net cash flows from operating activities

Investing and financing activities that do not
involve cash receipts or payments

Conversion of debt into capital

Reclassification of convertible bonds expifing
within one year as current liabilities

Fixed assets acquired under finance lease

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents:
Cash at the end of period
Less: Cash at the beginning of the period

Add: Cash equivalents at the end of the period
Less: Cash equivalents at the beginning of period

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents

For the Year ended 31 December 2003

Form 4-2
In Rmb Yuan

139,795,406.44
10,552,991.99
32,743,975.65
88,008,290.55
3,684,535.13
10,506,483.88
(9,572,735.87)
(168,814.27)

1,311,332.19
3,606,761.89
32,678,736.34
(2,714,764.17)
(218,920,454.79)
(292,781,383.90)
190,126,875.89
4,312,367.07

(6,830,395.98)

816,439,041.14
1,019,903,178.95

(203,464,137.81)

Note: There is a difference of Rmb?2,425,878.62 of the “Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents” between the Consolidated Cash
Flow Statement and which in the supplemental information, which is due to the change in consalidation scope (please refer to

Note 4 for details).




52

As at 31 December 2003

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash
Short-term investments
Notes receivable
Dividends receivable
Interest receivable
Accounts receivable
Other receivables
Advances to suppliers
Subsidy receivable
Inventories
Prepaid expenses

Long-term investments maturing within one year

Other current assets
Total current assets

Long-term investments:
Long-term equity investments
Long-term debt investments

Total long-term investments

Fixed Assets
Fixed assets - cost
Less: Accumulated depreciation
Fixed assets - net amount
Less: Fixed assets impairment provision
Fixed assets - net book value
Construction supplies
Construction in progress
Fixed assets pending disposal

Total fixed assets

Intangible and Other Assets
Intangible assets
Long-term prepaid expenses
Other long-term assets

Total intangible and other assets

Deferred taxes
Deferred tax debits

TOTAL ASSETS

Notes 31 December 2003

231,542,044.04

Form 5-1
In Bmb Yuan

31 December 2002

204,624,119.72

49,499,310.37 61,194,385.90

6,316,510.00 5,106,895.00

8-1 319,285,854.82 285,792,292.21
606,643,719.23 556,717,692.83

8-2 1,853,732,823.78 1,772,278,585.65

1,853,732,823.78

1,772,278,585.65

37,407,029.02
10,215,684.50
27,191,344.52

7,109,752.25
20,081,592.27

31,605,410.76
7,279,372.15
24,326,038.61
7,109,752.25
17,216,286.36

4,330,352.17

20,081,592.27

21,546,638.53

1,997,842.14

2,404,510.41

1,997,842.14

2,404,510.41

_ 2,482,455,977.42

_ 2,352,947 427 42
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LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Current liabilities:
Short-term loans
Notes payable
Accounts payable
Advances from customers
Accrued payroll
Welfare benefits payable
Dividends payable
Taxes payable
Other levies payable
Other payables
Accrued expenses
Provisions for foreseeable liabilities
Portion of long-term liabilities due within one year
Other current liabilities

Total current liabilities

Long-Term Liabilities
Long-term loans
Debentures payable
Payables due after one year
Government grants payable
Other long-term payables
Total long-term liabilities

Deferred taxes
Deferred tax credits

Total liabilities

Shareholders’ equity :
Share capital
Less: investment returned
Net share capital
Capital surplus
Surplus reserve
Including: statutory public welfare fund
Retained earnings
Including: cash dividend

Total shareholders’ equity

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

31 December 2003

As at 31 December 2003
Form 5-2

in Bmb Yuan

31 December 2002

2,485,598.66 2,629,148.66
3,074,976.99 2,568,305.87
11,137.00 22,017.14
716,641.71 408,494.06
13,161.85 9,880.96
40,995,862.85 11,947,614.68
2,000,000.00 3,250,000.00
49,297,379.06 20,836,361.37
1,000,000.00 —
1,000,000.00 —
50,297,379.06 20,836,361.37
810,900,000.00 810,900,000.00
810,900,000.00 810,900,000.00
1,119,405,462.95 1,114,220,189.56
145,803,875.54 124,276,436.70
59,176,788.16 52,000,975.21
356,049,259.87 282,714,439.79
48,654,000.00 48,654,000.00
2,432,158,598.36 2,332,111,066.05
2,482,455,977.42 2,352,947,427 42
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Item Notes

Revenues from main operations
Less: Cost of main operations
Tax and levies on main operations

Profit from main operations

Add: Profit from other operations

Less: Selling expenses
General and administrative expenses
Financial expenses

Operating profit

Add: Income from investment 8-3
Subsidy income
Non-operating income

Less: Non-operating expenses

Total profit
Less: Income tax

Net profit

2003

4,267,200.40

31,534,143.01
(4,365,400.55)

(22,901,542.06)

Form 6
In Rmb Yuan

2002

3,299,534.99

27,642,298.17
(5,006,323.96)

(19,336,439.22)

166,528,032.74 178,636,602.10
725.46 216,632.01
110,957.22 7,141,463.06
143,516,258.92 152,375,331.83
— 581,635.02
143,516,258.92 151,793,696.81




ltem

Net profit

Add:
Add:

Retained earnings at beginning of year
Transfer from others

Distributable profit

Less:
Less:
Less:
Less:
Less:
Less:

Transfer to statutory surplus reserve
Transfer to public welfare fund

Transfer to staff bonus and welfare fund
Transfer to reserve fund

Enterprise expansion fund

Profit returns on investments

Profit distributable to shareholders

Less:
Less:
Less:
Less:

Dividend for preferred shares
Transfer to discretionary surplus reserves
Dividend for ordinary shares
Dividend for ordinary shares
transfer to share capital

Retained earnings at end of year

For the Year ended 31 December 2003

Form 7

In Rmb Yuan
2003 2002
143,516,258.92 151,793,696.81
282,714,439.79 201,269,113.29
—_ 1,074,684.21
426,230,698.71 354,137,494.31
14,351,625.89 15,179,369.68
7,175,812.95 7,589,684.84
404,703,259.87 331,368,439.79
48,654,000.00 48,654,000.00
356,049,259.87 282,714,439.79
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For the Year ended 31 December 2003

Cash flows from operating activities:

Cash received from sale of goods or rendering of services
Refund of tax and levies

Other cash received relating to operating activities

Sub-total of cash inflows

Cash paid for goods and services

Cash paid to and on behalf of employees
Payments of all types of taxes

Other cash paid relating to operating activities

Sub-total of cash outflows
Net cash flows from operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities:

Cash received from disposal of investments

Cash received from returns on investments

Net cash received from disposal of fixed assets,
intangible assets and other long-term assets

Other cash received relating to investing activities

Sub-total of cash inflows

Cash paid to acquire fixed assets, intangible assets
and other long-term assets

Cash paid to acquire investments

Other cash paid relating to investing activities

Sub-total of cash outflows
Net cash flows from investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities

Cash received from capital contribution

Cash received from borrowings

Other proceeds relating to financing activities

Sub-total of cash inflows

Cash repayments of amounts borrowed
Cash payments for interest expenses
and distribution of dividends or profits
Other cash payments relating to financing activities

Subtotal of cash outflows
Net cash flows from financing activities
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes on cash

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

armaceutical Company Limited Annual Report 2003

Form 8-1
In Rmb Yuan

6,267,728.25

6,267,728.25

10,467,841.34
233,370.03
8,449,750.42

19,150,961.79

(12,883,233.54)

20,000,000.00
109,477,064.46

2,600.00
225,941,418.07

355,421,082.53

1,824,350.35
29,775,000.00
235,496,743.73

267,096,094.08

88,324,988.45

48,677,066.35

48,677,066.35

(48,677,066.35)

153,235.76

26,917,924,32




For the Year ended 31 December 2003

Form 8-2
In Rmb Yuan
Supplemental Information
1. Reconciliation of net profit to cash flows from operating activities:
Net profit 143,516,258.92
Add: Provision for asset impairment 100,408.71
Depreciation of fixed assets 3,137,038.85
Amortization of intangible assets ’ -
Amortization of long-term prepaid expenses 1,186,247.13
Decrease in prepaid expenses (less: increase) —
Increase in accrued expenses (less: decrease) {1,250,000.00)
Losses on disposal of fixed assets, intangible assets
and other long-term assets (less: gains) —
Losses on scrapping of fixed assets 43,703.78
Financial expenses (less: gains) 153,235.76
Losses arising from investments (less: gains) (166,528,032.74)
Deferred tax credit (less: debit) —
Decrease in inventories (less: increase) -
Decrease in operating receivables (less: increase) 5,225,701.10
Increase in operating payables (less: decrease) 1,532,204.95
Others —
Net cash flows from operating activities _ (12,883,233.54)
2. Investing and financing activities that do not
involve cash receipts or payments
Conversion of debt into capital —
Reclassification of convertible bonds expiring
within one year as current liabilities _
Fixed assets acquired under finance lease —
3. Net increase in cash and cash equivalents:
Cash at the end of period 231,542,044.04
Less: Cash at the beginning of the period 204,624,119.72
Add: Cash equivalents at the end of the period -
Less: Cash equivalents at the beginning of period —
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents ' { 26,917,924.32’




N e e el e S

5Ilyy!Q;?_A(meiU«:,&%tmr_,i!|;x,g__%;ué__susﬁi&iwuxuwi_&u&m#@ﬁn&m

A i i

g

]

58

ltem

For the Year ended 31 December 2003

Total provision
for bad debts
Including: Accounts receivable
Other receivables

Total provision

for short-term investments
Including: Share investment
Debt investment
Fund investment

Total provision

for inventories
Including: Merchandise
Raw materials

Total provision for
long-term investment
Including: Long-term equity
investment
Long-term debt investment

Total provision for fixed assets
Including: Land and buildings
Machinery and equipment
Provision for intangibie assets
Including: Patent

Trademark

Provision for construction
work in progress

Provision for loan by trust

Total

1 January
2003  Additions

45,769,189.55 28,802,542.77
38,791,512.37 19,781,958.13
6,977,677.18 9,020,584.64

2,395,536.76 1,677,300.00
920,003.76 -

— 1,677,300.00
1,475,533.00 -
689,096.81  311,626.12
390,344.03  311,626.12
298,752.78 —
32,555,294.68  522,553.95
32,555,294.68  522,553.95
29,564,343.45 1,183,270.00
21,648,669.49 -
7,505,296.38 1,157,064.00
966,151.46 -

- 80,000.00

Form 9
in Amb Yuan

Reversals

Recovery of
assets value  Written off
— 9,089,155.46

— 3,025,977.87
— 6,063,177.59

2,366,536.76 -
920,003.76 —

1,446,533.00 -

—  140,988.74
— 140,988.74

1,123,370.42 30,171,779.81

1,123,370.42 30,171,779.81

4,960,788.98
3,508,844.99
1,422,947 .96

31 December
Sub-total 2003

9,089,155.46 65,482,576.86
3,025,977.87 55,547,492.63
6,063,177.59 9,935,084.23

2,366,536.76 1,706,300.00
920,003.76 -
1,677,300.00
29,000.00

1,446,533.00

140,988.74  859,734.19
140,988.74  560,981.41
—  298,752.78

31,295,150.23 1,782,698.40

31,295,150.23 1,782,698.40

4,960,788.98 25,786,824.47
3,508,844.99 18,139,824.50
1,422,947.96 7,238,412.42

—  966,151.46

- 80,000.00

111,839,612.71 32,577,292.84

3,489,907.18 44,362,712.99

47,852,620.17 96,664,285.38
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Company backgroup information

Guangzhou Pharmaceutical Company Limited (the “Company”} is a joint stock company with limited
liability established initially in this form in the People’s Republic of China pursuant to a reorganization
of eight Chinese patent medicine manufacturing entities and three pharmaceutical trading entities
formerly under the supervision and control of Guangzhou Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited (the
“Holding”) with the capital injection of operating assets and the state owned equity in accordance
with the TGS [1997] 139 article issued by the Economic Structure Reform Committee of the State.
The Company obtained an enterprise legai person business license with the official code of
4401011101830 on 1 September 1997.

Pursuant to the document with ref. TGS [1997] 145 issued by the Economic Structure Reform Committee
of the State and the ZWF [1997] 56 article issued by the Securities Committee of the State Council, the
. Company issued 219.9 million H shares of stock listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
in October 1997. Approved by the China Securities Regulatory Committee, the Company issued 78
million A shares on 10 January 2001. The total amount of shares of the Company is RMB810,900,000,
including RMB513,000,000 shares owned by the State, representing 63.26% of the total shares, and
public shares of RMB297,900,000, representing 36.74% of the total shares.

The Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) engage in capital management, investment,
development, financing, the development and manufacturing of Chinese patent medicine, the
manufacturing of biological products, health protection medicines and drinks, and the wholesale, retail
and import & export of Chinese patent medicine, western pharmaceutical products and various medical
apparatus.

The Group’s current structure includes seven Chinese patent medicine manufacturing entities,
one chemical materials medicine manufacturing entity, two medical research & development entities
and three pharmaceutical trading entities.

Principal Accounting Policies, Accounting Estimates and Method for
Preparation of Consolidated Financial Statements

1. Accounting System

The Group adopts the Accounting Standard for Business Enterprises and the Accounting
System for Business Enterprises and the supplementary stipulations.

2. Accounting Period
The Groups accounting year starts on 1 January and ends on 31 December.
3. Recording Currency
The recording currency of the Group is the Renmibi (“RMB”).
4. Basis of Accounting and Measurement Bases
The Group follows the accrual basis of accounting. And assets are recorded at historical cost.
5. Foreign Currency Translation

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated into Renminbi at the exchange
rates prevailing at the transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies at the balance sheet date are translated into Renminbi at the exchange
rates-prevailing at the balance sheet date. Exchange differences arising from these translaticns
are recorded as financial expenses of the current period.
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Cash Equivalents

Cash equivalents refer to short-term and highly liquid, investments that are readily convertible
to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

Provision for Bad Debts

The Group provides provision for bad debts. The balances will be written off against provision
when bad debts recognised.

Bad debts are recognised when:

A If the debtor becomes bankrupt or dies, the amount remaining after repayment by
liquidation property or legacy, will be the bad debts.

B. If the debtor does not make repayment for over three years and there is obvious
evidence showing that the receivables can not be recalled, the amount remaining will
be bad debts upon the approval of the board of directors.

The Group provides provision based on aging of receivables, as approved by the Board. In
addition, specific provisions made against balances which may not be collectible, after
individual assessment of the financia! position, repayment ability etc. of the creditor.

Details of the provision method is as follows:

Provision for bad debts

Aging as a percentage of receivables
Within 1 year 1%

1~2 years 10%

2~3 years 30%

3~4 years 50%

4~5 years 80%

Over 5 years 100%

Debtors comprise accounts receivable and cther receivables. The Group provides provision
for other receivables excluded inter-company, unreimbursed balances and other receipts on
behalf of others.

Inventories

Inventories of the Group include finished goods, merchandise, work in progress, raw materials,
goods in transit, low-value consumables and packaging materials.

Inventories are recorded at cost using the perpetual method.

Subsidiaries of the Company are segmented as manufacturing and trading enterprises, which
adopt inventory valuation policies detailed as follows:

(1)  Manufacturing enterprises:

Raw materials and finished goods are recorded at standard cost. Cost variances are
allocated between cost of sold and inventory using reasonable basis. For these
enterprises not using standard cost method, raw materials and inventories are recorded
using weighted average method or first-in-first-out method.

Low-value consumables and packaging materials are recorded at cost and enter into
profit and loss account upon consumption.
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(2) Trading enterprises:

Inventories of wholesale enterprises are stated at cost. Inventories are accounted for
using the first-in-first-out method.

Inventories of retail enterprises are accounted for using the selling price method. The
amount is adjusted for price variances to arrive at actual cost at month end.

The Group wiil examine the status of inventories at each month end. Provisions are
made against damaged, obsolete stocks, and those stocks with decreased selling
prices. Inventories are presented at lower of cost and net realisable value.

Short-term Investments

(1)  Short-term investments of the Group are recorded at acquisition cost deducting any
cash dividends or interest which have been declared but not received. Cash dividends
or interest shall be net against the carrying amount of investments upon receipt. On
disposal of an investment, the difference between the sale proceeds received and the
carrying amount of the investment shall be recognized as an investment gain or loss.

(2)  Short-term investments of the Group are measured at the lower of cost and market
value. An impairment provision is made against dimination in short-term investment
values make when market value is lower than cost.

Long-term Equity Investments
Long-term equity investments by the Group are stated at the actual cost.

The cost method shall be applied if the Group holds less than 20% of the voting capital of
the investee, or it holds 20% or more of the voting capital of the investee but dose not have
significant influence over the investee. The equity method shall be applied if the Group holds
20% or more of the voting capital of the investee, or it holds less than 20% of the voting
capital of the investee but has significant influence over the investee. The equity method
shall be applied and consolidated accounting statements shall be prepared if the Group
holds 50% or more of the voting capital of the investee, or it holds less than 50% of the
voting capital of the investee but has significant influence over the investee.

When the equity method is adopted, the Group recognizes investment gain or loss according
to its attributable share of the investee’s net profit or loss. When the cost method is adopted,
profits or cash dividends declared to be distributed by the investee are recognized as
investment income in the current period.

Equity investment differences are amortized averagely over the investment period, if any, as
stipulated in the investment contract. If the investment period is not specified in the contract, the
excess of the investment cost over the investor’s share of owner’s equity of the investee is amortized
over a period not more than 10 years. The shortfall of investment cost over the investor’s share of
owner’s equity of the investee is amortized over a period of not less than 10 years.

Long-term Debt investments

Long-term debt investments of the Group are stated at investment cost and investment
income is accounted for at cost method.

Premiums or discounts are amortized at a straight-line method when recognizing related
interest income over the period between the acquisition date and the maturity date of the
debenture.
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Provision for Long-term Investments

Approved by the board of directors, provision is made against long-term investments if its
recoverable amount is lower than its carrying amount, and the decline other than temporary
occurred, or operation of the investee deteriorate to such an extent that the decline with
persist to the foreseeable future, the carrying amount of such investments will be reduced to
its recoverable value.

Fixed Assets and Depreciation

Fixed assets include land and buildings, motor vehicles, machinery and equipment which
have useful lives over one year and whose unit costs are greater than RMB2,000. Fixed
assets are stated at cost. Fixed assets are depreciated over their useful lives using straight-
life method, taking into account the estimated residual value of 0% to 10%. The annual rates
of depreciation are as follows:

Fixed assets category Depreciation life Depreciation rate
Land and buildings 15-50 years 1.80%-6.60%
Machinery equipment 4-18 years 5%-24.75%
Vehicles 5-10 years 9%-19.80%
Electric equipment 5-10 years 9%-19.80%
Office equipment 4-8 years 11.25%-24.75%
Renovation of fixed assets 5 years 20%
Other equipment 4-15 years 6%-24.75%

When depreciation is provided to the assets with provision for impairment, the depreciation
rate and amount are recomputed based on the book value of assets (i.e., original cost less
accumulated depreciation and provision for impairment), and the remaining useful lives; in
case the value of fixed assets with provision is recovered, the depreciation rate and amount
shall be recomputed at the new book value and the remaining useful life.

In the event that the fixed assets’ recoverable amounts are less than the carrying value due
to a continuing decline in market value or obsolesce, damage, long idleness or other economic
reasons, the Group will provide provision for the difference.

Construction in Progress

(1)  Project cost of construction work in progress is determined based on the actual cost,
and transferred to fixed assets when the work reaches its expected usable condition.

(@)  Inthe event that the construction work is suspended for a long period and will not restart
in the foreseeable future, or is outdated in function or technology, and the economic
proceeds which the work will bring are very uncertain, or with other full elements evidencing
that value of the construction work is impaired, provision will be provided for the difference
between the carrying amount and the lower recoverable amount.
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Accounting treatment for income tax

Intangible Assets and Amortization

Intangible assets, which are mainly land use rights and non-proprietary technologies, are
stated at acquisition cost and amortized averagely over their expected useful lives
commencing from the month in which they are acquired.

At the end of period intahgible assets of the Group are measured at the lower of book value
and recoverable amount. If recoverable amount is lower than book value, provision will be
made for the difference.

Long-term Prepaid Expenses

Long-term deferred expenses are stated at cost. Amortization is provided to write off the
cost evenly over the anticipated beneficial period.

Organization expenses are recorded in long-term deferred expenses upon occurrence, and
fully amortized in the first month of formal operation.

Borrowing Cost
Borrowing costs relating to operations are expensed when incurred.

The borrowing costs incurred in the acquisition of long-term assets such as fixed assets are
capitalized before the project is delivered for use, and included as a project cost.

The capitalization amount of borrowing costs is calculated on the weighted average amount
of accumulated expenditures incurred for the acquisition or construction of long-term assets
like fixed assets at the period-end timing the capitalization rate.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue from sales of goods is recognized when goods are dispatched, the title to the
goods and its major risks and rewards are passed to customers, the Group will not execute
the right of supervision and control over the goods, either the proceeds are received or the
entittement to proceeds is evidenced, and the cost of sale of goods can be measured reliably.

Revenue from rendering of services is recognized upon having rendered service and obtained
the payment or payment evidence.

The Group accounts for income tax using the tax payable method.
Basis of Preparation of Consclidated Financial Statements

The consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with ref. [1995] 11
“Temporary regulation of consolidation on financial statements” and CKEZ [1996] 2 “Reply
on the consolidation scope for the consolidated financial statements” issued by the Ministry
of Finance. The consolidated financial statements have included all principal subsidiaries in
the consolidation scope and eliminated sufficiently the business activities between the
Company and its subsidiaries or between subsidiaries, based on the individual financial
statements of the Company and each subsidiary in the consolidation scope.




3. Taxation and Other Additional Taxes
The type and rate of tax applicable to the Group is as follows:
1. Turnover tax and other additional taxes

(1)  Turnover tax

Taxable item Tax Rate
Revenue from sale of products Value-added tax 17%
Revenue from transfer of materials Value-added tax 17%
Revenue from rendering services Business tax 5%
Revenue of rental Business tax 5%
Revenue of capital employed Business tax 5%
Revenue from sale of wine products Consumption tax 10%

(2)  City construction tax

The city construction tax is calculated and paid based on 7% of the total amount of
turnover tax. Subsidiaries of the Group which are foreign invested enterprises are
exempted from city construction tax in accordance with PRC regulations.

(3) Education surcharge

The education surcharge is calculated and paid based on 3% of total turnover tax.
Subsidiaries of the Group which are foreign invested enterprises are exempted from
education surcharge in accordance with PRC regulations.

2. Enterprise income tax

The Group accrues and pays enterprise income tax at the rate of 33% in accordance with
“Temporary regulation of corporate income tax in the People’s Republic of China”.

Pursuant to “Enterprise Income Tax Law for Foreign Invested Enterprise in the People’s
Republic of China”, Guangzhou Qixing Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd., one of the Company’s
subsidiary, applies the enterprise income tax rate of 24% and local income tax rate of 3%.
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4. Subsidiaries and Joint Ventures

M

)

Major subsidiaries in the consolidation scope of the consolidated financial statements

Name of the Company

Guangzhou Hanfang Modern
Chinese Patent Medicine Research &
Development Co., Ltd.

Guangzhou Bio-technology Co., Ltd.

Guangzhou Huanye
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.
Guangzhou Xingqun
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.
Guangzhou Zhongyi
Pharmaceutical Co., Lid.
Guangzhou Chenlij
Pharmaceutical Factory
Guangzhou Qixing
Pharmaceutical Factory
Guangzhou Jing Xiu Tang
Pharmaceutical Co., Lid.
Guangzhou Pangaoshou
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.
Guangzhou Yangcheng
Pharmacedutical Co., Ltd.
Guangzhou Pharmaceuticals
Corporation
Guangzhou Chinese
Medicine Corporation
Guangzhou Pharmaceutical Import
& Export Corporation

Subsidiaries with over 50% equity interest held by the Group but not included in the

Stock capitai
RMB’000

83,280

70,100

8,000

77,170

166,000

94,000

82,420

86,230

85,440

106,380

222,000

69,700

15,000

consolidation scope are as follows:

The Group holds 80% equity interest in Guangzhou Medicine Commodities Exhibition Store,
but does not include it in the consolidation as it commenced its liquidation stage in the

current year.

The Group holds 65% equity interest of Guangzhou Chenliji Xingma Health Care Products

Invested amount
of the Group to
its subsidiaries

RMB’000

48,850

66,500

3,580

68,670

161,050

94,000

82,420

76,230

57,440

98,380

215,330

69,700

15,000

% of equity
interest

58.66

94.87

59.701

88.99

97.016

100

88.4

871.77

92.48

96.9941

100

100

Principal activities

Research & development of
medicine and products

of health care

Research &

development of medicine
Manufacturing chemical
material medicine

Production of Chinese

patent medicine

Production of Chinese

patent medicine

Preduction of Chinese

patent medicine

Production of Chinese

patent medicine

Production of Chinese

patent medicine

Production of Chinese

patent medicine

Production of Chinese

patent medicine

Trading of western pharmaceutical
products and medical apparatus
Trading of Chinese patent medicine
and Chinese raw medicine
import and export of medicine

Co., Ltd., but does not include it in the consolidation as it plans to cease operation.

The Group holds 72% equity interest in Shenzhen Qixing Lanzao Bio-technology Co., Ltd,,
but does not include it in the consolidation as it commenced its liquidation stage.
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(8)  Guangzhou Pharmaceutical Import & Export Corporation, a subsidiary, used to hold 100%
of the interests of Guangzhou Yongxin Medicine Trading Company and assigned 90% of it to
an external party in August 2003. The Group has taken the sold subsidiary’s related income,
cost and profit from the beginning of the reporting period to the assigning date into the
current consolidated income statement, while the related assets, liabilities and equities are
not considered in the consolidated balance sheet at the period-end.

Financial data of Guangzhou Yongxin Medicine Trading Company are as follows (in RMB’000):

Iltem 31 December 2002 Equity interests
transfer date

Total assets 13,454 1,174
Total liabilities 9,125 (23)
Owner’s equity 4,329 1,197
2002 1 January 2003 to

equity interests
transfer date

Main operating income 59,085 1,919
Main operating profit 2,236 151

Total profit 657 (250)
Net profit 522 (275)

(4)  Guangzhou Xingqun Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. and Guangzhou Jing Xiu Tang Pharmaceutical
Co., Ltd. held 41% and 12% respectively of Guangdong Xinghua Health Drink Co., Ltd..
According to the equity interests Transfer Agreement signed by Guangzhou Xingqun
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd., Guangzhou Jing Xiu Tang Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. with Nanhai
Weimei Food Trading Co., Ltd. in August 2003, the former two companies sold their equity
interests in Guangdong Xinghua Health Drink Co., Ltd. to the latter one at the price of
RMB6.765 million and RMB1.98 million respectively.

5. Profit Appropriation
The profit after tax shall be applied in the following order:
(1) allocated against losses;
(2)  allocation to statutory surplus reserve fund;
(3) allocation to statutory public welfare fund;
(4) allocation to discretionary surplus reserve fund;
(5)  payment of dividends.

The distribution of profit after tax and payment of dividends shall be proposed by the board
of directors and approved by the shareholders’ general meeting. Unless the shareholders
come to another agreement, the board of directors is authorized by the shareholders’ general
meeting to declare and pay interim dividends.
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Effect of @uwemchang@ in accounting policy

In accordance with the “Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises-Events Occurring after
the Balance Sheet Date” promulgated by the Ministry of Finance on April 14, 2003, the Group
made retroactive adjustment on the cash dividends in the profit distribution plan made by the board
of directors between the balance sheet date and the date on which the financial reports are
authorized for issue. The adjustment affects the financial status as follows:

2002 2001 2000
Undistributed profit:
Before adjustment 25,264,608.87  1,011,627.95 (26,958,138.43)
Adjustment amount 48,654,000.00 48,654,000.00 26,133,000.00
After adjustment 73,918,608.87 49,665,627.95 (825,138.43)

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (All amounts are stated in RMB
Yuan unless otherwise stated)

1. Cash
31 December 2003 31 December 2002
Cash on hand 1,636,651.51 1,613,278.00
Cash in bank 813,935,035.65 993,825,484.15
Other cash 867,353.98 24,464,416.80

816,439,041.14 1,019,903,178.95

(1)  Breakdown of cash in bank

31 December 2003 31 December 2002

Current deposit 795,273,557.32 964,825,484.15
Fixed deposit 18,661,478.33 29,000,000.00
_813,935,035.65 993,825,484.15

(2) Breakdown of other cash

31 December 2003 31 December 2002

Out-port bank deposit 49,292.78 —
Credit card deposit 257,790.04 238,696.27
L/C guaranty deposit 453,121.55 7,387,026.21
Bank bill deposit — 16,838,694.32
Other 107,149.61 —

867,353.98 _ 24,464,41 6.8Q

At the Qear'-enid’,'théiérbdb holds current deposit of HKD161,185.65 (equiv. to
RMB171,775.55) and USD851.89 (equiv. to RMB7,050.84) in Hongkong.
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Short-term investments

31 December 2003

Stock 3,565,014.57
Treasury bond 29,720,600.00
Fund 17,919,995.80

Impairment Market price at
provision 31 December 2003

51,205,610.37

— 5,175,021.15

1,677,300.00 28,043,300.00

29,000.00 18,275,435.96
1,706,300.00

Note: According to the closing price of the Shanghai Stock Exchange and the Shenzhen Stock Exchange on 31
December 2003, the Group made provision for the amount of which the market price was lower than cost.

Notes receivable

31 December 2003

Bank acceptance Notes
Commercial acceptance Notes

31 December 2002

35,611,830.71 180,000.00
16,668,924.48 —
52,280,755.19 180,000.00

Notes receivables as at 31 December 2003 increased by RMB52,101 thousand than year
2002 which mainly due to more customers of the Group use notes to settle the debtors.

Dividend receivable

31 December 2003

Nanhai Southern Packing
Company Limited

GETDD Yongcheng Medicine
Trading Co., Lid.

31 December 2002

6,316,510.00 5,106,895.00
— 367,789.92
6,316,510.00 5,474,684.92

Accounts receivable

(1)  Aging analysis of accounts receivable

31 December 2003
Bad debt Provision

Age Balance Percentage provision Percentage
Within 1 year 870,056,908.56 93.16% 8,856,680.31 1.02%
1-2 years 22,879,523.01 2.45% 13,419,533.32 58.65%
2-3 years 8,144,462.74 0.87% 3,185,631.44 39.11%
3-4 years 6,774,493.37 0.73% 4,570,482.67 67.47%
4-5 years 7,191,215.04 0.77% 6,652,596.13 92.51%

Over 5 years 18,862,568.76

933,909,171.48

2.02% 18,862,668.76 100.00%

100.00% 55,547,492.63 5.95%
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31 December 2002

Bad debt  Provision

Age Balance Percentage provision Percentage
Within 1 year 702,018,180.98 92.95% 7,463,417.61 1.06%
1-2 years 13,915,260.16 1.84% 1,396,272.50 10.03%
2-3 years 9,243,624.58 1.23% 3,026,900.14 32.75%
3-4 years 8,174,940.32 1.08% 6,028,518.11 73.74%
4-5 years 5,680,233.64 0.75% 4,634,598.70 81.59%
Over 5 years 16,241,805.31 2.15% 16,241,805.31 100.00%
100.00% 514%

755,274,044.99 38,791,512.37

No shareholders holding 5% or more ordinary shares of the Company have payable
balances included in the above.

(2) Included in balance as at 31 December 2003, RMB61,799,467.27 is due from the top
five customers which representing 6.62% of the total balance.

(3)  During the year, totaling 119 accounts receivable balances had been written off amounted
to RMB3,025,977.87, included in which there were no intercompany balances.

(4)  Accounts receivable aged 1-2 years included an amount of RMB11,720,123.47 which
is due from Puning Honghai Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.. Due to conflicts exist, the Group
provide full provision against the due balance based on conservative concept.

Other receivables
(1)  Aging analysis of other receivables
31 December 2003

Bad debt  Provision
Age Balance Percentage provision Percentage
Within 1 year 93,173,619.62 66.12% 119,286.94 0.13%
1-2 years 6,873,747.02 4.88% 63,544.95 0.92%
2-3 years 13,298,935.52 9.44% 26,706.28 0.20%
3-4 years 8,057,699.86 5.72% 512,939.25 6.37%
4-5 years 2,202,650.53 1.56% 265,780.12 12.07%
QOver 5 years 17,309,170.05 12.28% 8,946,826.69 51.69%
140,915,822.60 100.00% 9,935,084.23 7.05%

31 December 2002
Bad debt  Provision
Age Balance Percentage provision Percentage
.. Within 1 year 71,525,059.73 55.04% 811,666.25 1.13%
1-2 years 19,685,420.24 15.15% 1,862,697.62 9.46%
2-3 years 13,800,383.35 10.62% 41,052.51 0.30%
3-4 years 4,449,861.62 3.42% 50,000.00 1.12%
4-5 years 7,570,986.98 5.83% 668,841.08 8.83%
Over 5 years 12,921,465.03 9.94% 3,543,419.72 27.42%
129,953,176.95 100.00% 6,977,677.18 5.37%
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(2)  Details of other receivables at end of year:

Amount
Petty cash 2,076,005.92
Deposits and prepayments 6,802,582.70
Downpayment for the project and the equipment 17,762,100.48
Advance for operation 13,708,930.15
Staff borrowings 882,418.13
Current account between related parties 20,551,803.91
Other receivables 24,858,965.66
Current account with external company 54,273,015.65

_140,915,822.60

Among the other receivable accounts, the amount due from shareholder with 5% or
more shareholding is that due from the Holding with an amount of RMB7,226,782.86.

(3)  The five largest balances of RMB38,685,880.12, accounting for 27.45% of the total.

(4)  The current 29 reversals of other receivables amount to 2,873,992.95 and all are not
related to related party transactions.

Advance to suppliers

(1)  From the balance aforementioned, no advance is prepaid to shareholders with 5% or
more shareholding.

(2) - Advance to suppliers as at 31 December 2003 increased by 39,402 thousand, with an
increase of 49%, as compared with 1 January 2003, because more downpayments
are required for obtaining the sole agent of Some medicine.

Subsidy receivable

31 December 2003 31 December 2002

Output VAT refundable 10,325,834.@ _ 10,064,71 2.63
inventories
31 December 2003 31 December 2002
Balance Provision Balance Provision
Goods in transit 3,697,330.09 — 3,920,280.65 —
Raw materials 80,703,963.41 298,752.78 78,262,771.39 298,752.78
Work in progress 62,052,049.41 — 35,133,621.26 —
Finished goods 80,545,553.20 111,066.72 85,135,120.98 —
Low-value Consumables 1,916,496.77 - 1,554,527.27 —
Packing Materials 32,111,255.96 —  28,032,228.25 -
Consigned goods for process 600,394.57 - 1,342,025.86 —
Goods in stock 802,786,887.82 449,914.69  613,928,504.51 390,344.03
Others 3,885,332.06 — 1,899,090.95 —
1,068,299,263.29 859,734.19 849,208,171 .12 i 689,096.81
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At end of 2003, the Group provide net realisable value provision with an amount of
RMB859,734.19 for inventories. In accordance with the stipulations with ref. GYJZ [2003] 96
issued by the State Drug Administration, the document ref. of ratification for all medicines
are labeled as “GYZZ” and at the same time all medicines with local document reference of
ratification cease to be produced from 1 January 2004. The commercial enterprises
subordinate to the Company provided write-down provision with a sum of 449,914.69 for
medicines with local document reference of ratification. Net realizable value of damaged
inventories is determined at the expected recoverable value and that of long idled ones are
measured at the market price.

10. Prepaid expense

31 December 2002 Addition Amortization 31 December 2003
Insurance premium prepaid 2,600,600.95 2,356,736.66 3,140,588.06 1,816,749.55
Repair and maintenance
of fixes assets 582,927.48 3,247,962.85 3,830,890.33 —
Road toll 31,253.28 125,460.00 30,280.00 126,433.28
Advertising 1,152,000.00 14,990,380.00 9,903,222.00 6,239,158.00
Deductible input VAT 76,886,436.31 307,794,39354  302,284,720.93 82,396,108.92
Others 474,401.17 2,878,681.75 2,631,177.61 721,905.31

8172761919  331,39361480 321,820,878.93 91,300,355.06

11. Long-term equity investment

(1)  Details of long-term equity investment are as follows:

Holding Investment
Investee : Period  percentage cost
Indonesia Sanyou Industrial Company Limited 2014 50.00% 1,521,562.82
Guangzhou Zhongfu Pharmaceutical Company Limited N/A 50.00% 400,000.00
Shanghai Jiuhe Tang Chinese Medicine Company Limited 2007 31.56% 615,000.00
Guangzhou Chenliji Xingma Health Care Products Co., Ltd. 2004 65.00% 963,950.00
Hangzhou Zhe Da Han Fang Chinese Medicine Co. N/A 44.00% 440,000.00
Ming Tai Industrial (Thailand) Company Limited 2007 40.00% 516,930.33
East China Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. N/A 13.47% 264,000.00
Guangzhou Medicine Commodities Exhibition Store N/A 80.00% 861,392.58
Guangzhou Medicine Company Beijing Road
Chinese Medicine Bazaar N/A 20.00% 160,000.00
Guangzhou Yongxin Medicine Trading Co., Ltd. N/A 10.00% 119,700.00
Golden Eagle Asset Management Co. N/A 20.00%  20,000,000.00
Jihua Medical Appliance Company Limited N/A 24.00% 3,000,000.00
Guangzhou Jinshen Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. N/A 45.00% 675,000.00
Nanhai Nanfang Packaging Co., Ltd. 201 21.42%  30,000,000.00
Guoyao Group Industrial Co., Ltd. N/A 10.00% 8,000,000.00
Guangzhou Huayin Bio-technology Co., Ltd. N/A 15.00% 150,000.00
Shenzhen Qixing Lanzao Bio-technology Co., Lid. 2016 72.00% 3,600,000.00
Qixing Mazhong Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. 2005 40.00% 362,826.38
Communication Bank Guangdong Branch N/A 362,750.00
Everbright Bank N/A 0.30% 10,725,000.00
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Movement of long-term equity investment during 2003 is as follows

2003 Accumulated
equity equity

Investee 31 December 2003 pickup pickup Provision  Note
Indonesia Sanyou Industrial Company Limited 1,260,144.45 — (261,418.37)  1,260,144.45 1]
Guangzhou Zhongfu

Pharmaceutical Company Limited 1,707,895.91 504,969.53  1,307,895.91 -
Shanghai Jiuhe Tang Chinese

Medicine Company Limited 615,000.00 — — —
Guangzhou Chenliji Xingma

Health Care Products Co., Ltd. 346,209.02 (55,097.29)  (617,740.98) —
Hangzhou Zhe Da Han Fang

Chinese Medicine Co. 347,062.55 {53,009.20) (92,937.45) —
Ming Tal Industrial (Thailand) Company Limited 320,843.90 9,094.58 (196,086.43) -
East China Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. 264,000.00 — — —
Guangzhou Medicine

Commodities Exhibition Store 542,241.53 12,422.70 (319,151.08) —
Guangzhou Chinese Medicine

Corporation Beijing Road

Chinese Medicine Bazaar 218,399.05 — 58,399.05 —
Guangzhou Yongxin Medicine Trading Co., Ltd. 119,700.00 — — —
Golden Eagle Asset Management Co. 15,328,623.40  (4,671,376.680) (4,671,376.60) —
Jihua Medical Appliance Company Limited 1,972,052.79 (417,613.74) (1,027,947.21) -
Guangzhou Jinshen

Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. 675,000.00 — — -
Nanhai Nanfang Packaging Co., Ltd. 30,000,000.00 — — -
Guoyao Group Industrial Co., Ltd. 8,000,000.00 — — —
Guangzhou Huayin Bio-technalogy Co., Ltd. 150,000.00 — - —
Shenzhen Qixing Lanzao

Bio-technology Co., Ltd. 8§70,923.25 (487,106.25) (2,728,076.75)  522,553.95 12]
Qixing Mazhong Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. 362,826.38 - - —
Communication Bank Guangdong Branch 362,750.00 — — -
Everbright Bank 10,725,000.00 - - —
Guangzhou Pangaoshou Natural Health

Product Co., Lid. (Consolidation variance) 1,294,828.94 — — — [3]
Guangzhou Huanye Pharmaceutical

Co., Ltd. (Consalidation variance) 893,107.07 — — — (4]
Guangzhou Bio-technology

Co., Ltd. {Consolidation varlance) 273,283.13 — — — (5]

Note 1:

Note 2:

Note 3:

76,649,891.37 (5157,716.27) (8,549,439.88) _1,782,698.40

As the Group can not know the financial position of Indonesia Sanyou Industrial Company Limited
and thus is not aware of the present condition of the investee, provision is made in full amount for this
investment on the basis of conservatism principle.

Shenzhen Qixing Lanzao Bio-technology Co., Ltd. has suffered significant losses and it is hard to continue
1o operate, therefore it began liquidation at the end of 2003. According to the recoverability estimated by
the liquidation committee, the Group accrued provision for impairment at the rate of 60%.

Consolidation variance of Guangzhou Pangaoshou Naturai Health Product Co., Ltd. amounts to
1,294,828.94, representing the remaining amortized amount of the difference between the subsidiary,
Guangzhou Pangaoshou Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.'s payments for purchase of 32% and 15% of Guangzhou
Pangaoshou Natural Health Product Co., Ltd. in October 1999 and November 2002 respectively, and the
share of owners’ equity of Guangzhou Pangaoshou Natural Health Product Co., Ltd.. The initial amount
of the equity investment difference is 1,990,886.94, which is to be amortized averagely over the investment
period from the next month of obtaining the investment as stipulated in the contract. The current amortization
is 171,853.68 and the accumulated amortization is 696,057.00.
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Note 4: Consolidation variance of Guangzhou Huanye Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. amounts to 893,107.07,
representing the.difference between the total payments for purchase of the equity interests and the
increment of capital in December 2002, and the share of owners' equity acquired. The difference is
amortized evenly from January 2003. The current amortization is 99,234.12 and the accumulated
amortization is 99,234.12.

Note 5: Consolidation variance of Guangzhou Bio-technology Co., Ltd. amounts to 273,283.13, representing
the difference between the Company’s payments for purchases of the equity interests of Guangzhou
Bio-tachnology Co., Ltd. in June 2002 and November 2003, and the share of owners' equity of
Guangzhou Bio-technology Co., Ltd.. The current amortization is 18,072.26 and the accumulated
amortization is 18,072.26.

Fixed assets and accumutlated depreciation

Cost 31 December 2002 Addition Disposal 31 December 2003
Land & buildings 681,829,795.79 173,225,895.05 13,368,409.29 841,687,281.55
Machinery 419,142,341.08 94,631,301.11 39,627,882.63  474,145,759.56
Motor Vehicles 83,408,757.51 13,136,584.86 4,978,379.27 91,566,963.10
Electronic equipment 23,786,362.81 3,042,414.03 1,182,191.56 25,646,585.28
QOffice equipment 39,312,332.31 17,616,936.55 2342,307.17 54,586,961.69
Renovation of fixed assets — 17,809,198.38 — 17,809,198.38
1,247,479,58@ 319,462,329& ] 61 ,499,169.92 1,505,442,74@

Accumulated Change for
depreciation 31 December 2002 the year Disposals 31 December 2003
Land & buildings 137,809,341.32 29,460,932.03 3,892,445.99 163,377,827.36
Machinery 226,314,756.01 34,039,731.38 20,775,141.76  239,579,345.63
Motor Vehicles 47 056,018.35 8,803,947.81 3,984,353.62 51,875,612.54
Electronic equipment 12,069,418.42 3,152,271.06 1,122,880.12 14,098,809.36
Office equipment 18,957,726.66 9,247,628.33 1,854,119.05 26,351,235.94
Renovation of fixed assets — 3,308,779.94 — 3,303,778.94
442 207,260.76 88,008,290.55 m 31 ,628,940_.5{ _ 498,586,610.72

Provision for

Provision for

impairment: 31 December 2002 the year Written off 31 December 2003
Land & buildings 21,648,669.49 — 3,508,844.99 18,139,824.50
Machinery 7,505,296.38 1,157,064.00 1,422,947.96 7,239,412.42
Motor Vehicles 280,857.44 26,206.00 28,996.03 278,067 41
Electronic equipment — — - —
QOffice equipment 129,520.14 — - 129,520.14
Renovation of fixed assets - — — —

29,564,343.45 1,183,270.00 4,960,788.98 25,786,824 47
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(1)  The Group re-classified part of fixed assets in the current year and the beginning

balance is adjusted retroactively.

Cost:

Land & buildings
Machinery

Motor Vehicles
Electronic equipment
Office equipment

Accumulated
depreciation:

Land & buildings
Machinery

Motor Vehicles
Electronic equipment
Office equipment

Provision for
impairment:

Land & buildings
Machinery

Motor Vehicles
Electronic equipment
Office equipment

1 January 2003 31 December 2002 Variance
681,829,795.79 681,829,795.79 —
419,142,341.08 439,590,073.71 (20,447,732.63)
83,408,757.51 83,408,757.51 —
23,786,362.81 11,877,149.99 11,909,212.82
39,312,332.31 30,773,812.50 8,538,519.81
1,247,479,589.50 1,247,479,589.5Q —
1 January 2003 31 December 2002 Variance

137,809,341.32

137,809,341.32

226,314,756.01 235,017,893.00 (8,703,136.99)
47,056,018.35 47,056,018.35 —
12,069,418.42 7,063,937.52 5,005,480.90
18,957,726.66 15,260,070.57 3,697,656.09
442,207,260.7Q 442 207,260.76 —
1 January 2003 31 December 2002 Variance
21,648,669.49 18,763,309.95 2,885,359.54
7,505,296.38 10,390,655.92 (2,885,359.54)
280,857.44 280,857.44 —
129,520.14 129,520.14 —
29,564,343.45 29,564,343.45

Jo—

(2)  During the year, construction in progress transferred to fixed assets amounted to
RMB252,214 thousand.

(3)  Asat 31 December 2003, the Group has pledged its fixed assets with net book value
of RMB118,400 thousand (Last year: RMB118,030 thousand) for bank loans.

(4)  Atthe year-end, the Group provided provision of RMB25,787 thousand for the difference
between recoverable amount and the book value owing to their technology
obsolescence, damage or long idleness.
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13. Construction in progress

(1)  Details of construction in progress are as follows:

% of fund
Project Budget  Financing source used to budget
Relocation of Guangzhou Xingqun
Pharmaceutical Company 243,688,046.72  Working Capital and loan 7%
Xingqun Manufacture Workshop
project at phase 3 16,835,778.76  Working Capital 97%
Xingqun Repair Workshop project at phase 2 465,000.00  Working Capital 100%
Zhong Yi dust removing project - Working Capital, loan and government
appropriation —
Zhong Yi relocation of Yunpu workshop 197,030,000.00  Working Capital 42%
Relocation and expansion of Chenliji factory 126,000,000.00  Working capital 101%
Chinese medicine absorbing base of Chenliji Working capital and stock capital —
Chenliji product technical alteration 29,100,000.00  Working capital and stock capital 80%
Chenliji product show room 4,000,000.00  Working capital 48%
Chenliji noise renovation project 38,000.00  Working Capital 95%
Hanfang Conghua base construction 118,840,000.00  Stock capital and government 35%
appropriation
Hanfang equipment installation project 3,786,349.50  Stock capital and government 100%
appropriation
Jingxiutang prepayment for equipment Working capital and loan —
Jingxiutang Anbike equipment installed Working capital —
Jingxiutang suppository production line 12,821,045.48  Working capital and stock capital 100%
Jingxiutang Zhuifengtouguwan production line 11,339,612.77  Working capital and stock capital 96%
Jingxiutang GMP upgrade project 30,300,000.00  Working capital and loan 28%
Jingxiutang Wanhuayou GMP 4,196,978.09  Working capital 96%
Jingxiutang sewage treatment pool Working capital —
Pangaoshou vehicles Working capital —
Pangaoshou office equipment Working capital -
Pangaoshou GMP reconstruction project 104,910,000.00  Loan and government appropriation 64%
Pangaoshou office in Fugian Building 7,707,542.02  Working capital 100%
Yangcheng inter-factory maintenance 1,000,000.00  Working capital 99%
Yangcheng manufacturing GMP werkshop 23,000,000.00  Working capital and foan 99%
Alteration of Yangcheng sewage treatment 400,000.00  Working capital 61%
Alteration of Yangcheng boiler project 600,000.00  Working capital 12%
Alteration of Yangcheng distilling workshop technology 1,700,000.00  Working capital 109%
Yangcheng pill workshop 11,000,000.00  Working capital and stock capital 87%
Yangcheng technology renovaticn for
Jianpilichangpian & Anchuangpian 17,800,000.00  Stock capital and loan 54%
Logistics in Huangjinwei warehouse 52,680,000.00  Working capital, stock capital 81%
of Guangzhou Pharmaceuticals Corporation and loan
Jianmin Yirentiandi 6,000,000.00  Working capital 4%
Computer installation of Guangzhou 1,120,260.00  Working capital and stock capital 100%
Pharmaceuticals Corporation
Office building renovation of Guangzhou
Pharmaceuticals Corporation 6,160,000.00  Working capital 92%
Caizhiling store in Jiahong Garden 2,179,473.00  Working capital and stock capital 100%
Caizhilin store in Wanfeng Garden 2,385,100.00  Working capital and stock capital 100%
Chinese medicine GMP reconstruction project 5,000,000.00  Working capital 59%
Medicine imp. & exp. ERP project 600,000.00  Stock capital 16%
Business ERP project 4,080,000.00  Stock capital 100%
Baidi thunder-proof project 37,499.00  Working capital 70%
Baidi GMP renovation project 104,770.00  Working capital 60%
Baidi equipment installation 2,000,000.00  Government appropriation 64%
Baidi equipment installation 2,738,972.00  Working capital 100%
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Project Budget
Huanye development zone office building 323,120.00
Huanye solid preparation workshop project 4,738,900.00
Huanye development zone testing 115,500.00
Treatment & renovation of Huanye before plantation 304,153.06
Renovation of Huanye Fangeun district —
Huanye raw materials workshop project 4,198,100.00
Qixing Xinchuangiju office building 16,872,455.01

Tianbao GMP warkshop reinforcement —
and renovation project

Changes of construction in progress in the current period are as follows:

Financing source

Working capital
Working capital
Working capital
Working capital
Working capital
Working capital
Working capital
Working capita

31 December Transferred to

Project 2002 Addition fixed asset
Relocation of Guangzhou Xingqun

Pharmaceutical Company 136,019,083.45 50,631,019.39 184,922,416.16
Xinggun Manufacture Workshop

project at phase 3 4,498,512.02 11,881,640.13 -
Xinggun Repair Workshop

project at phase 2 33,636.64 431,749.68 -
Zhong Yi dust removing project 80,000.00 - -
Zhong Yi relocation of

Yunpu workshop 23,172,973.19  51,570,427.26 —
Relocation and expansion

of Chenliji factory 3,320,038.08 322,578.00  1,280,461.82
Chinese medicine absorbing

base of Chenliji 7,692.00 - —
Chenliji product technical alteration 9,909,891.37  3,396,829.14 —
Chenliji product show room 29,400.00  1,893,848.86 —
Chenliji noise renovation project — 36,100.00 —
Hanfang Conghua base construction 1,686,180.99 38,423,833.40 —
Hanfang equipment installation project ~ 2,029,731.25  1,765,025.75  2,506,426.50
Jingxiutang prepayment for equipment  1,641,085.18  4,939,867.15  3,919,071.73
Jingxiutang Anbike equipment installed 50,000.00 — —
Jingxiutang suppository production line  7,631,363.06  3,304,976.35  6,572,312.93
Jingxiutang Zhuifengtouguwan

production line 7,985,355.32  1227,537.46  1,740,604.14
Jingxiutang GMP upgrade project 1,080,040.06 804,917.60 —
Jingxiutang Wanhuayou GMP 1,152,200.00  2,274,073.43 470,720.00
Jingxiutang sewage treatment pool — 558,281.00 -
Pangaoshou vehicles 532,200.00 — 532,200.00
Pangaoshou office equipment 45,800.00 — 45,800.00
Pangaoshou GMP

reconstruction project 7,427,043.52 59,638,317.45  1,462,052.88
Pangaoshou office in Fugian Building 80,000.00 — 80,000.00
Yangcheng inter-factory maintenance 170,000.00 817,119.48 140,000.00
Yangcheng manufacturing

GMP workshop 5,774,285.37 15,847,916.84 21,622,202.21
Alteration of Yangcheng

sewage treatment 11,007.64 586,094.75 —
Alteration of Yangcheng bailer project 10,000.00 91,851.96 —
Alteration of Yangcheng distilling

workshop technology 649,019.72  1,200,403.00  1,849,422.72
Yangcheng pill workshop - 730,000.00 630,000.00

Other
reduction

15,750.00

14,940.00

1,025,878.50

34,403.50
542,082.00

411,360.00

640,031.00
167,093.50

453,119.48

% of fund

used to budget

149%

52%
100%
100%
100%
100%

31 December
2003

1,727,686.68

16,364,402.15

450,446.32
80,000.00

74,743,400.45

1,336,275.76

7,682.00
13,306,720.51
1,923,248.86
36,100.00
40,110,014.39
1,263,927.00
2,119,798.60
50,000.00
3,852,666.48

6,832,257.64
1,727,864.16
2,955,553.43

558,281.00

65,603,308.09

394,000.00

597,102.38
101,851.96

100,000.00
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Project

Yangcheng technology renovation
for Jianpilichangpian & Anchuangpian
Logistics in Huangjinwei warehouse
of Guangzhou Pharmaceuticals
Carporation
Jianmin Yirentiandi

T 7 T Coniputer installation of Guangzhou

Pharmaceuticals Corporation
Office building renovation of
Guangzhou Pharmaceuticals
Corporation
Caizhiling store in Jiahong Garden
Caizhilin store in Wanfeng Garden
" “Chinese medicine GMP
reconstruction project
Medicine imp. & exp. ERP project
Business ERP project
Baidi thunder-proof project
Baidi GMP renovation project
Baidi equipment installation
Baidi equipment installation
Huanye development zone
office building
Huanye solid preparation
workshop project
Huanye development zone testing
Treatment & renovation of
Huanye before plantation
Renovation of Huanye Fangeun district
Huanye raw materials workshop project

__ Qixing Xinchuangju office building

©)

Tianbao GMP workshop reinforcement
and renovation project

31 December

2002

8,542,407.42

336,078.00

800,000.00
2,179,473.00

97,909.45
4,330,352.17

2,678,291.02

402,919.11

67,928.23
115,500.00

329,967.80
40,000.00

1,669,072.73

Addition

7,222,700.57

34,267,152.19
210,540.00

4,896,000.00

84,500.00

2,955,874.12

26,249.13
62,862.00
1,283,400.00
61,681.00

78,623.46

2,413,528.04

225,225.96
464,528.06
1,146,336.72

1 6,872',4557.01

670,337.14

Transferred to
fixed asset

6,843,265.57

336,078.00

5,696,000.00

4,330,352.17

2,678,291.02

159,436.57

141,414.07

480,023.76
364,682.48
1,071,166.72

2,339,409.87

Other 31 December
reduction 2003

— 379,435.00

— 42,809,558.61
- 210,940.00

- 2,179,473.00
— 84,500.00

— 295587412
— 97,909.45
— 26,249.13
- 62,862.00
—  1,283,400.00
- 61,681.00

75,170.00 246,936.00

114 2,340,041.06

115,500.00 -
75,170.00 -
75,170.00 64,675.58
75,170.00 -

— 16,872,455.01

236,616,437.79 325,316,801.48 252,213,811.32

3,710,839.12 306,008,588.83

Baiance of construction in progress as at 31 December 2003 increased by 69,392,000
than the beginning balance, representing 29.33%, mainly resulting from the additional
injection for Zhong Yi relocation of Yunpu workshop of Guangzhou Zhongyi
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd., Hanfang Conghua base construction of Guangzhou Hanfang
Modern Chinese Patent Medicine Research & Development Co., Lid., logistics center
in Huangjinwei warehouse of Guangzhou Pharmaceuticals Corporation.

At the year-end the Group made provision for impairment for Zhong Yi dust removing
project in a full amount of 80,000 because the project has been suspended for a long
time and may not be resumed in the foreseeable future.

77




SN OoR) U\ U\ @g\vuwww_wuuug;j b/ B A L L NS LU LR

(4) Capitalized interest expense included in the construction in progress are as follows:

31 December Transferred to Other 31 December
Project 2002 Addition fixed asset reduction 2003

Relocation of Guangzhou Xingqun
Pharmaceutical Company 13,048,046.72 — 13,048,046.72 - —
GMP reconstruction of
Pangaoshou workshop
Logistics in Huangjinwei warehouse
of Guangzhou Pharmaceuticals
Corporation 80,202.80 - — 80,202.80 —

62,540.00 — — 62,540.00

13,128,248.52 62,540.00 13,048,046.72 80,202.80 62,540.00

14. Intangible assets

(1)  Details of intangible assets are as follows:

Remaining
amortization
Acquisition period
ltems method Cost Provision  (No. of month)
Land use right of
Nanzhou Road factory Purchase 4,301,046.00 — 504.00
Land use right of
Renmin Road factory Purchase 2,686,602.00 — 504.00
Land use right of
No.34 of Guanlv Road Purchase 40,873.95 — 468.00
Malotilate emulsion technology ~ Purchase 1,500,000.00 - 117.00
Famciclovir soft capsule
technology Purchase 480,000.00 - 114.00
Land use right of No.19-29
of Ningxiheng Street Purchase 1,618,067.38 — 474.00
Land use right of
Conggui Road Purchase 245,477.00 — 528.00
Land use right of No. 77
of Shanmulan Purchase 189,200.00 — 557.00
Land use right of No. 32
of Duobao Road Changhua
New Street and
Shiguili No. 3 Purchase 1,465,822.00 — 199.00
Land use right of No. 194
of Beijing Road Purchase 2,362,581.08 - 533.00

Land use right of No. 1688

of Southern Guangzhou

Avenue Purchase 27,006,173.92 — 524.00
Land use right of No. 1688

of Southern Guangzhou

Avenue at the gate Purchase 325,818.02 — 476.00
Land use right of
Songgang Factory Purchase 20,417,970.00 — 480.00

O PPamE Bl
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Remaining

amortization

Acquisition period

ltems method Cost Provision  (No. of month)
Land use right of

Nanhai Huangqi Purchase 4,090,000.00 — 469.00

Land use right of

Panyu Dongsha

Development Distric Purchase 15,947,018.00 — 504.00
Land use right of Guangzhou

Baiyun District

Jiangcun factory Purchase 3,463,092.00 — 522.00
Land use right of Shi Er Pu

New Street Purchase 3,509,041.00 — 403.00
Land use right of

He Ping West Road

No. 136-138 Purchase 1,535,744.00 — 403.00
Land use right of

Huang Jin Wei Purchase 1,051,697.00 - 403.00
Land use right of No.103  Land appraisal

of Da Tong Road appreciation 17,928,863.00 — 358.00
Land use right of No.328

in Beijing Road Purchase 1,306,988.00 - 102.00
Land use right of A area

of Xin Zhou Warehouse Purchase 1,096,704.00 — 502.00
Land use right of B area

of Xin Zhou Warehouse Purchase 2,676,141.00 480,700.24 503.00
Land use right of

Sai Ba Kou Warehouse Purchase 402,518.00 — 502.00
Land use right of

Chang An Warehouse Purchase 114,675.00 — 444.00
Land use right of

Jiu Fo Warehouse Purchase £5,136.00 - 387.00
Land use right of

No.85 of Shang Jiu Road Purchase 3,195,793.33 — 432.00
Land use right of

No.26 of Hong Chang Street  Purchase 309,046.00 — 502.00
Land use right of

No.20 of Bao Hua Bei Road  Purchase 163,591.00 - 387.00
Land use right of No.44

of Bing Jiang Xi Road Purchase 577,360.00 — _ 44400
Land use right of No.54

of Xi Hua Road Purchase 21,541.00 — 534.00
Land use right of No.69

of Hong De Road Purchase 58,567.64 — 528.00
Land use right of No.265

of Da Xin Road Purchase 330,153.00 - 516.00
Land use right of No.1

of Sha Yuan 3rd Street Purchase 37,120.00 — 660.00




TR SN NTINES S

hserieimtmed oy M i e A e AL P12

Remaining
amortization
Acquisition period
ltems method Cost Provision  (No. of month)
Land use right of No.22
of Guang Zhi Road Purchase 109,032.00 - 660.00
Land use right of No.29
of Tong Fu Zhong Lu Long
Dao Tong Jin Purchase 27,045.00 — 660.00
Land use right of No.12
of Fangcun Sai Ba Road Purchase 1,764,522.90 — 521.00
Langcheng financial software  Purchase 1,649,746.91 485,451.22 51.00
New medicine technology
transfer fee Purchase 1,000,000.00 — 114.00
Land use right of No.33
of Xin Gang Zhong Road Investment
Chi Gang North Street accepted 1,755,288.00 — 540.00
Land use right of No. 5
of Panyu Dongsheng Factory Purchase 3,078,097.91 - 480.00
Medicine recipe and Investment
techniques accepted 338,640.00 - —
Proprietary technology of Investment
Luoxuanzao accepted 500,000.00 — -
_130,752,800.40 966,151.46

Provision for impairment of intangible assets is accrued at the difference of the carrying
amount and the fower recoverable amount.

(2)  Movement of intangible assets during 2003 is as below:

31 December Current  Accumulated 31 December

Project 2002 Addition  amortization  amortization 2003
Land use right

of Nanzhou Road factory 3,875,255.85 — 88,377.56 514,167.71  3,766,878.29
Land use right

of Renmin Road factory 2,365,584.82 - 54,828.63 375,845.81  2,310,756.19
Land use right of No.34

of Guanlv Road 35,631.27 — 890.26 6,232.94 34,641.01
Malotilate emulsion technology —  1,500,000.00 37,500.00 37,500.00  1,462,500.00
Famciclovir soft capsule technology — 480,000.00 24,000.00 24,000.00 456,000.00
Land use right of No.19-29

of Ningxiheng Street 1,380,974.72 17,520.38 34,420.37 243,992.65  1,374,074.73
Land use right of Conggui Road 220,929.32 — 10,186.03 34,733.71 210,743.29
Land use right of No. 77

of Shanmulan 188,908.00 — 17,902.02 28,184.02 171,005.98
Land use right of No. 32

of Duobao Road Changhua

New Street

and Shiguili No. 3 1,196,782.00 73,678.00 68,664.00 264,026.00  1,201,796.00
Land use right of No. 194

of Befjing Road 2,151,148.77 - 47,251,682 258,683.93  2,103,897.15

Land use right of No. 1688

of Southern Guangzhou Avenue 24,125,515.36
Land use right of No. 1688

of Southern Guangzhou Avenue

at the gate 251,801.95 16,643.02 6,183.50 63,556.55 262,261.47

540,123.48  3,420,782.04 23,585,391.88
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31 December Current  Accumulated 31 December
Project 2002 Addition  amortization  amortization 2003
Land use rightof Songgang Factory 1,820,381.37 — 44.989.64 18,642,578.27  1,775,391.73
Land use right of Nanhai Huangai 3,703,220.86 — 473,589.92 860,369.06  3,229,630.94
Land use right of Panyu Dongsha
Development Distric 14,051,869.00 - 318,941.00 2,214,001.00 13,732,828.00
Land use right of Guangzhou
Baiyun District Jiangcun factory 3,153,970.17 — 70,875.72 379,997.55  3,083,094.45
Land use right
of Shi Er Pu New Street 3,279,846.75 — 94,839.00 324,033.25  3,185,007.75
Land use right of He Ping West Road
No. 136-138 1,435,436.48 - 41,506.56 4181408  1,393,929.92
Land use right of Huang Jin Wei 983,004.99 — 28,424.28 97,116.29 954 580.71
Land use right of No.103
of Da Tong Road 15,287,410.16 — 49527240  3,136,725.24 14,792,137.76
Land use right of No.328
in Beijing Road 1,135,445.93 — 35,397.57 206,939.64  1,100,048.36
Land use right of A area
of Xin Zhou Warehouse 938,794.64 - 21,934.08 179,843.44 916,860.56
Land use right of B area :
of Xin Zhou Warehouse 2,307,494.74 — 42,483.60 411,128.86  2,265,011.14
Land use right
of Sai Ba Kou Warehouse 344,561.48 - 8,050.32 66,006.84 336,511.16
_. landuseright
of Chang An Warehouse 96,889.37 — 2,548.32 20,333.95 94,341.05
Land use right of Jiu Fo Warehouse 54,128.97 — 1,628.40 12,635.43 52,500.57
Land use right of No.85
of Shang Jiu Read 2,373,105.58 361,514.33 158,076.92 619,250.34  2,576,542.99
Land use right of No.26
of Hong Chang Street 264,547.69 - 6,180.96 50,679.27 258,366.73
Land use right of No.20
of Bao Hua Bei Road 135,946.78 — 4,089.72 31,733.94 131,857.06
Land use right of No.44
of Bing Jiang Xi Road 487,818.92 - 12,830.28 102,377.36 474,988.64
Land use right of No.54
of Xi Hua Road 19,602.40 — 430.80 2,369.40 19,171.80
Land use right of No.68
of Hong De Road 57,321.52 — 1,246.11 2,492.23 56,075.41
Land use right of No.265
of Da Xin Road 290,534.64 — 6,603.06 46,221.42 283,931.58
Land use right of No.1
B T Tt of Sha Yuan 3rd Street 32,866.88 — 927.96 5,181.08 31,938.92
' ' . " Land usé right of No.22
of Guang Zhi Road 96,538.85 — 2,725.80 15,218.95 93,813.05
Land use right of No.29
of Tong Fu Zhong Lu
Long Dao Tong Jin 23,945.77 — 676.20 3,775.43 23,269.57
Land use right of No.12
of Fangcun Sai Ba Road 1,568,821.87 - 35,290.44 230,991.47  1,533,531.43
Langcheng financial software 871,253.94 — 342,478.64  1,120,871.61 528,775.30
New medicine technology
transfer fee — 1,000,000.00 50,004.00 50,004.00 949,996.00
Land use right of No.33
of Xin Gang Zhong Read
Chi Gang North Street 1,614,863.96 — 35,104.76 175,628.80  1,579,759.20
Land use right of No. 5
of Panyu Dongsheng Factory 2,146,382.01 181,818.29 60,781.20 810,678,81  2,267,419.10
Medicine recipe and techniques 156,360.00 - 156,360.00 338,640.00 -
Proprietary technology of Luoxuanzao 199,920.00 — 199,920.00 500,000.00 —

94,734717.78  3,631,174.02  3,684,53513 36,071,443.37 94681,356.67
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15.

Long-term prepaid expense

(1)

Details of long-term prepaid expense are as follows:

Amortization

Item period
Renovation 5 years
Expenditure on leasehold improvement 5 years
Installation of telephone 5 years
Maintenance expenditure on fixed assets 5 years
Revaluation surplus of H shares 5 years
Computer system 5 years
GMP project improvement 5 years
ERP system 5 years
Medical fund for retired staff 5 years
Transitional medical fund for retired staff 10 years
Labor insurance premium 5 years
Others 2-5 years

Cost

35,542,916.42
1,982,790.62
2,756,400.00
7,162,070.45
8,199,065.99
5,798,076.31
4,426,817.44
5,257,364.82
2,414,500.00
3,049,676.46
417,623.11

5,840,569.96

82,847,871.58

Remaining
amortization
period

1to 5 years
Fully amortized
6 months

6 months

Fully amortized
12 months

12 months

12 months

2to 4 years

12 months

110 3 years
110 5 years

Movement of long-term prepaid expense during 2003 are as below:

ltem

Renovation
Expenditure on leasehold
improvement
installation of telephone
Mzaintenance expenditure
on fixed assets
Revaluation surplus of H shares
Computer system

GMP project improvement

ERP system

Medical fund for retired staff

Transitional medical fund
for retired staff

Labor insurance premium

Others

31 December Current Current  Accumulated 31 December
2002 Addition  Amortization  Amortization 2003
17,108,045.83  4,294,936.79  2230,402.17 16,370,335.97 19,172,580.45
231,192.50 — 231,192.50  1,982,790.62 —
152,859.00 - 46,809.74  2,650,440.74 105,959.26
5,104,460.57 322,790.06  3,417,309.89  5,152,129.71  2,009,940.74
195,927.46 — 195,927.46  8,199,065.99 —
1,506,826.80 122,128.00  1,076,702.24  5,245,823.75 552,252.56
351,528.60 — 222,018.00  4,297,306.84 129,510.60
1,926,353.84 479,270.00  1,291378.90  4,143,119.88  1,114,244.94
1,410,759.11 — 527,992.18  1,531,733.07 882,766.93
2,897,121.96 — 206,109.02 358,663.52  2,691,012.94
250,573.93 — 83,524.56 250,573.74 67,049.37
1,953,742.85 611,027.24 977,027.22  4,252,827.09  1,587,742.87

33,089,392.45

5,830,152.09  10,506,483.88

54,434,810.92  28,413,060.66
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16. Short-term loans

31 December 2003 31 December 2002

Loan by credit 50,000,000.00 —
Loan by mortgage and pledge 148,300,000.00 123,590,000.00
Loan by guaranty 465,930,000.00 431,750,000.00

] 664,230,000.00 _555,340,000.00

17. Notes payable

31 December 2003 31 December 2002

Bank acceptance bill 212,533,538.69 75,396,044.40
Commercial acceptance bill — 2,782,540.00
212,533,538.69 _ 78,178,584.40

Balance of notes payable as at 31 December 2003 increased by 134,355 thousand,
representing 172%, than the beginning balance, mainly because the purchase rose to meet
the dramatic increase of sales in the commercial enterprises of the Group, and on this
condition bank acceptance bills are used more often for settlement for the purpose of
management of fund.

18. Accounts payable

Of the balance as at 31 December 2003, no current account is due to shareholders with 5%
or more shareholding. :

19. Advances from customers

Within the balance aforementioned, no advance is paid to shareholders with 5% or more
shareholding.

20. Dividend payable

Name of shareholder 31 December 2003 Note
Minor shareholders 41.03 Dividend of 2002 unpaid
Overseas public shareholder 11,137.00 Balance of the dividends

for previous years

11,178.03
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Taxes payable

31 December 2003 31 December 2002

Business tax 912,882.34 740,573.03
Value added tax (27,869,188.13) 1,333,586.80
City construction tax 948,807.24 1,003,648.19
Enterprise income tax 44,824,745.71 42,033,131.60
Property tax 273,815.82 284,122.75
Withholding tax 2,318,100.42 3,218,901.49
Others 196,227.07 159,665.03

21,605,390.47

48,773,628.89

Taxes payable decreased by RMB27,168 thousand, representing a decrease of 56%, mainly
because input VAT is larger than output VAT, owing to the great increase in purchase by the
commercial enterprises of the Group.

Other liabilities

Note 31 December 2003 31 December 2002

Education surcharge (1) 410,733.97 434,453.48
Flood prevention levy (2) 2,216,500.01 3,383,546.08
Others 24,361.13 136,085.47

2,651,595.11 4,171,680.15

(1)  Paid at 3% of the payable amount of VAT, business tax and consumption tax.

(2)  Flood prevention levy is paid at 0.05% to 0.13% of taxable revenue (VAT, Business
tax, consumption tax and resources tax).

Other liabilities decreased by RMB1,302 thousand, representing a decrease of 34%, mainly
resulting from the decrease of flood prevention levy rate from 0.13% to 0.05% for the
commercial enterprises of the Group in the current year.
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23.

Other payables

(1)

Break down of other payables as at 31 December 2003

Deposits
Technology improvement
Rental
Labor union fund
Staff education fund
Current accounts to
external companies
Tax addition and
government levies
Advance from staff
Labor insurance
Monetary subsidies
of staff housing
Payables to Guangzhou
Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited
Staff bonus and welfare fund
Centralization fund
Operator incentive fund
Payables to Communication Bank
Guangzhou Branch
(Collected on behalf)
Estimated payment for fixed assets
Others

31 December 2003

8,975,189.47
1,236,707.46
518,746.38
1,216,230.20
10,443,909.59

35,358,597.55

248,990.64
2,894,381.70
413,811.12

14,089,890.99

13,813,546.79
1,964,745.69
11,937,942.10
3,800,000.00

79,954,738.54
9,883,917.00
2,867,751.06

_199,619,096.28

31 December 2002

8,780,521.04
5,768,611.34

390,321.04
1,052,161.41
9,813,5631.62

51,578,116.68

1,556.10
640,345.21
609,183.24

2,051,227.59

10,806,457.07
6,473,607.43
14,212,615.04
5,522,549.41

6,368,891.68

_124,069,695.90

Among the other payable accounts, the amount payable to the shareholder who holds
5% or above of the total share was payable to the Holding RMB13,813,546.79.

Other payables as at 31 December 2003 increased by 75,549 thousand, representing
an increase of 61%. The increment is from payables to Communication Bank
Guangzhou Branch, mainly because Guangzhou Pharmaceuticals Corporation, a
subsidiary, has sold part of its accounts receivable to the bank for quick cash turnaround
by signing an agreement, and thereafter assisted the bank with fund collection as
stated in the agreement. The closing balance represented the amount collected on

behalf but not returned to the bank.
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25.

26.

27.

Accrued expenses

31 December 2003

Interest on loan 675,992.25
Rental 408,735.53
Audit fee 2,000,000.00
Flood prevention project 139,981.86
Advertising expense 911,582.91
Others 320,000.00

4,456,292.55

Portion of long-term liabilities due within one year

31 December 2002

683,341.90
539,648.30
3,250,000.00

152,116.62

4,625,106.82

Long-term liabilities due within 1 year at end of 2003 amounted to RMB30,000,000.00, which

was guaranteed by the Company.
Long-term loans

Interest rate

Lender Period per annum 2003
{CBC Guangzhou 2003.07~222005.07.21 4.94%  20,000,000.00
No. 1 Branch
ICBC Guangzhou 2003.1.6~2008.1.2 5.49%  59,500,000.00
No. 13 Sub-branch
China Construction Bank 2002.12.2~2005.12.2 549%  27,680,000.00
Liwan Branch
107,180,000.00

31 December

Security
Guaranty
Mortgage

Guaranty

Long-term loan at end of 2003 increased by 17,500 thousand, representing an increase of
20%. The main reasons are: (1) Guangzhou Pangaoshou Pharmaceutical Co. Ltd., a
subsidiary, borrowed 27,500 thousand from bank for its GMP renovation project; (2)
Guangzhou Zhongyi Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. borrowed 20,000 thousand from bank for

relocation of Yunpu workshop.

Payables due after one years

Creditor Content 31 December 2003 31 Decerﬁber 2002
Guangzhou Finance Bureau State dividends 2,732,919.49 2,732,919.49
Others 883,863.68 886,978.12

3,616,783.17 '3,619,897.61
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28. Government grants payable
31 December 2003 31 December 2002

Government appropriation as science

and technology fund 28,402,491.94 20,712,649.94
interest subsidies of government 16,926,405.54 1,468,638.24
Special fund for technology export 925,000.00 25,000.00
GMP relocation project-draining project 640,000.00 680,000.00
46,893,897.48 22,893,288.18

Balance at end of 2003 increased by RMB24,001 thousand than 2002, representing an
increase of 105%, mainly resulting from the special appropriation of 22,292 thousand from
Guangzhou Finance Bureau in the current year.

29. Share Capital

Item 31 December 2002 Addition Decrease 31 December 2003
Shares owned by the State 513,000,000.00 - —  513,000,000.00
Domestic public shares 78,000,000.00 — — 78,000,000.00
Qverseas public shares 219,900,000.00 - —  219,900,000.00

_ 610,900,000.00 — 810,900,000.0Q

= =

The share capital of the Company has been verified by Guangzhou Yangcheng Certified
Public Accountants Co., Ltd. with a capital verification report with ref. [2001] YYZ No. 4526.

30. Capital Surplus

31 December 2002 Addition Decrease 31 December 2003

Share premium 912,565,150.29 3,564,622.18 —  916,129,772.47
Provision for donation

in the form of non-cash 1,773,107.29 — — 1,773,107.29
Donation in the form of cash 219,652.84 - - 219,652.84
Transter from appropriation 14,206,086.32 253,730.00 — 14,459,816.32
Other capital surplus 185,196,334.81 1,419,625.59 — 186,615,960.40
Exchange gain on foreign

currency capital 373,893.00 —_— - 373,893.09

1,114,334,224.64 5,237 977.77 —  1,119,572,202.41




Capital surplus increased by RMB5,237 thousand, mainly due to:

(1)  The increment of provision for equity investment comes from the Group’s proportion
of share premium from new shareholder in the capital increment of Guangzhou Hanfang
Modern Chinese Patent medicine Research & Development Co., Ltd. in April 2003.

(2) Theincrease of transfer from appropriation represents the special fund for technology
export appropriated by Guangzhou Finance Bureau to Guangzhou Chenliji
Pharmaceutical Factory and Guangzhou Huanye Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd., which was
transferred to the account of capital surplus;

(3)  Other capital surplus is mainly accounts payable that should not be paid.

31. Reserve fund

31 December 2002 Addition Decrease 31 December 2003

Statutory reserve fund 160,635,151.61 33,016,287.34 306,675.31 193,344,763.64
Statutory public welfare fund 109,728,912.38 24,892,774.22 163,126.19 134,458,560.41
Discretionary reserve fund 61,092,288.10 22,761,364.18 184,786.33 83,668,865.95
Transfer from tax exemption 4,973,493.07 — — 4,973,493.07
336,429,845.16 _‘80,670,425.74’ . 776547,587.873| . 415,445,683.0{

(1)  The addition mainly represented the reserve fund based on the current net profit.
According to the resolution of Session 20 of the second meeting of the board of
directors, the Company accrued statutory reserve fund and statutory public welfare
fund at the rate of 10% and 5% of the profit after tax respectively; the industrial
enterprises subordinate to the Company accrued statutory reserve fund, statutory
public welfare fund and discretionary reserve fund and at the same rate of 10% of the
profit after tax; the commercial enterprises subordinate to the Company accrued
statutory reserve fund and statutory public welfare fund at the rate of 10% of the profit
after tax and discretionary reserve fund at the rate of 20% of the profit after tax.

(2)  The reduction represented the beginning reserve fund with an amount of 675,985.05
of the subsidiaries that are eliminated from the altered consolidation scope after the
Company changed its consolidation scope in the current year.

32. Undistributed profit

Please refer to Consolidated Profit Appropriation Statement for the details of undistributed
profit.

(1)  Inaccordance with the “Accounting System for Business Enterprises-Events Occurring
after the Balance Sheet Date” promulgated by the Ministry of Finance on April 14,
2003, the Group made retroactive adjustment on the cash dividends in the profit
distribution plan made by the board of directors between the balance sheet date and
the date on which the financial reports are authorized for issue (See Article 6 of Notes
to the Consolidated Accounting Statements).
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33.

34.

(2)  Guangzhou Pharmaceutical Import & Export Corporation, a subsidiary, used to hold
100% of the share of Guangzhou Yongxin Medicine Trading Company and assigned
90% of it to external party in August 2003. The Group has taken the subsidiary’s
related income, cost and profit from the beginning of the reporting period to the
assigning date into the current consolidated income statement, while the related assets,
liabilities and equities are not considered in the consolidated balance sheet at the
period-end. That is, the balance of the reserve fund of the Group did not include the
beginning balance of Guangzhou Yongxin Medicine Trading Company with a sum of
675,985.05 and correspondingly the beginning balance of undistributed profit was
raised by the same amount.

(8)  The profit distribution policy of the Company is stated in Note 5.
(4)  In accordance with the dividends allocation plan for the year 2002, the Company
allocated RMBO0.06 per share, therefore the total dividends allocated summed up to
48,654,000.00 at the total share of 810,900,000.
Revenue from main operations
2003 2002

1,889,214,683.01 1,743,449,746.47

(1)  Manufacturing

(2)  Trading
Wholesale 4,544,133,795.01 3,794,685,908.00
Retail 354,437,902.37 307,500,860.52

Import & export sales

184,176,865.82

5,082,748,563.20

6,971,963,246.21

98,186,815.52

4,200,373,584.04

5,943,823,330.51

Sales from the top five customers totals to RMB388,692,569.74, representing 5.58% of the

total net sales.

Cost of main operations

2003 2002

(1)  Manufacturing and selling 880,274,084.73 789,366,023.51
(2) Trading

Wholesale 4,250,863,145.85 3,524,050,881.74

Retail 270,293,631.73 227,241,620.52

Import & export sales

173,950,632.26

4,695,107,409.84

5,575,381,494.57

89,784,466.45

3.841,076,968.71

4,630,442,992.22




Income from other operations
Rental

33,362,108.14
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35. Sales tax and levies
2003 2002
Business tax 820,395.64 650,094.22
City construction tax 16,185,358.55 16,372,409.64
Education surcharge 6,852,172.95 6,751,985.69
Others 9,994.13 196,570.57
23,867,921.27 23,971,060.12
36. Profit from other operations
2003 2002

35,521,912.81

Sales of raw materials 4,198,632.65 1,645,826.79
Warehouse rental and conference fee 3,706,150.13 230,954.96
Import and export agency charge 318,018.27 695,978.20
Income of member store 633,927.34 341,000.00
Products promotion income 2,386,347.53 2,699,778.97
Consultancy income 6,593,540.01 3,199,388.44
Others 1,297,774.61 1,339,829.29
52,496,498.68 45,674,669.46
(2)  Cost of other operations

Rental 4,338,101.44 5,029,383.20
Sales of raw materials 3,147,317.56 5,478,554.09
Tax payable and sur-tax 1,106,800.99 852,020.38
Others 572,700.94 2,515,687.41
9,164,920.93 13,875,645.08

43,331,577.75

31,799,024.38

Profit from other operations increased by RMB11,533 thousand compared with that
of 20083 representing an increase of 36% which due to:

(1)  The group performed market research on new products for medicine
manufacturers in the current year, and the consulting income was increased by
3,394 thousand.

(2)  The group rented part of warehouses in the current year, and renting income
was increased by 3,577 thousand accordingly.

diangzho.
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37.

38.

Financial expenses

Net interest expense

2003

20,236,580.46

2002

14,091,898.54

Exchange loss 266,959.39 186,310.31
Financial institution charges 1,623,259.20 1,041,175.39
Others 73,364.94 9,781.29

22,200,163.99 15,329,165.53

The financial expense increased by RMB6,871 thousand, representing an increase of 45%
compared to that of last year. The reason is that the loans increased in 2003.

Investment income

2003 2002
Stock investment 294,447.72 78,094.09
Debt investment Debenture 698,950.74 —
Consigned loan - —
Other debt investment —_ 3,150,000.00

Profit form associate enterprises
or joint-ventures 4,872,521.97 5,394,255.36

Net increase or decrease of stock

investment under eguity method (5,410,972.27) (2,475,585.78)

Provision for impairment of investment 1,290,053.23 (23,045,616.22)
Disposal income of stock investment 969,762.78 —
2,714,764.17 (16,898,852.55)

(1)  There is an increase of the current investment income of RMB19,614 thousand than
that of last year, mainly because the Group accrued provision for impairment of 22,096
thousand for the investment on Guangdong Xinghua Health Drink Co., Ltd. last year.
The Group sold the equity interest and recorded the difference, RMB934 thousand,
between the transfer proceeds and the book amount of the investment as current
investment income.

(2)  The Group recorded the attributable share of Golden Eagle Asset Management Co.’s
net loss as investment loss with an amount of RMB4,671 thousand.

(3)  The proceeds from equity interests transfer of Guangzhou Yongxin Medicine Trading
Co., Ltd. amounted to RMB800 thousand in the current year.
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38.

40.

41.

Non-operating income
Items

Net profit from disposal of fixed assets
Sales of obsolete material

Fine

MTR removal compensation
Compensation for dismantling
Transfer gain

Others

Non-operating expenses

Net loss on disposal of fixed assets
Provision for impairment of fixed assets
Donation

Fine

Exceptional loss

Urban dyke protecting expenses
Family control bonus

Others

2003 2002
384,949.31 617,288.05
88,308.85 7,758.14
58,014.50 56,099.15
603,472.42 1,5663,295.02
519,520.00 —
466,555.00 —
495,823.91 614,223.24
2,616,643.99 2,858,663.60
2003 2002
5,303,043.39 11,322,791.63
1,263,270.00 11,802,296.39
3,814,592.99 1,5653,131.13
153,383.69 404,519.41
—_ 4,227.75
5,130,331.66 2,846,536.82
923,350.13 147,071.00
306,275.58 1,300,233.01

16,894,247.44

29,380,807.14

The non-operating expenses for 2003 decreased by RMB12,487,000, representing a drop
of 42% as compared with 2002, because the Group made provision of RMB1,263,000 for
assets impairment in 2003, in comparison with the amount of RMB11,802,000 made in
2002, representing a reduction of RMB10,539,000 as compared with 2002.

Extraordinary gain or loss

Gain or loss from disposal
of long-term equity investment
Government subsidies
Gain or loss from short-term investment
Gain or loss from consigned investment
Non-operating income
Non-operating expense less the accrued
provision for assets impairment
Reversal of provision for impairment
accrued in previous year

2003

(3,014,823.54)
276,208.28
738,155.98

2,231,694.68
(10,327,934.05)

3,489,907.18

(6,606,791.47)
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42. Other cash received relating to operating activities

Main ltem 2003

(RMB000)
Non-operating income 2,272
Interest income 12,175
Financial subsidies 23,078
Discount income 30,321
Meeting fee coliected on behalf 8,365

43. Cash paid relating to other operating activities

Main item 2003

(RMB'000)
Selling expenses paid in cash 333,634
General and administrative expenses paid in cash 278,634
Non-operating expense 10,321
Financial expense-bank charge 1,697
Meeting expense paid on behalf 8,310

8. Notes io the Accounts of the Company {amounts are in RMB unless otherwise
stated)

1.

Other receivables

(1)

Aging analysis of other receivable as at 31 December 2003

Age

Within 1 year
1~2 years
2~3 years
3~4 years
4~5 years
QOver 5 years

Age

Within 1 year
1~2 years
2~3 years
3~4 years
4~5 years
Over 5 years

Within the aforesaid balance, receivables due from shareholders holding 5% or above
of the total shares include those receivable from the Holding with an amount of

5,889,426.36.

Balance

129,998,940.69
24,461,984.40
82,625,413.97
22,298,715.76
59,900,000.00
502,843.54

319,787,898.36

Balance

25,411,541.19
119,059,174.05
63,853,054.95
76,443,870.77
1,425,486.08
800.00

286,193,927.04

31 December 2003

Proportion Bad debts
to the total provision
40.65% —
7.65% —
25.84% —
6.97% —
18.73% —
0.16% 502,043.54
100% 502,043.54

31 December 2002
Proportion Bad debts
to the total provision
8.88% —
41.60% —
22.31% —
26.71% —
0.50% 401,634.83
100.00% 401,634.83

Accrual
proportion

99.84%
0.16%

Accrual
proportion

28.18%

0.14%

23
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2. Long-term equity Investments

Name of investee

Guangzhou Xingqun
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.
Guangzhou Zhongyi
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.
Guangzhou Chenliji
Pharmaceutical Factory
Guangzhou Qixing
Pharmaceutical Factory
Guangzhou Jing Xiu Tang
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.
Guangzhou Pangaoshou
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.
Guangzhou Yangcheng
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.
Guangzhou Pharmaceuticals
Corporation
Guangzhou Chinese
Medicine Corporation
Guangzhou Pharmaceutical
Import & Export Corporation
Guangzhou Huanye
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.
Guangzhou Bio-Technology
Co., Ltd.
Guangzhou Hanfang
Modern Chinese Patent
medicine Research
& Development Co., Ltd.
Nanhai Nanfang Packing
Company Limited
Jihua Medical Apparatus
Company Limited
Guoyao Group Industrial Co., Ltd.
Golden Eagle Asset
Management Co.
Guangzhou Jinshen
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.
Everbright Bank

Cost

125,322,318.71
156,209,321.79
98,465,344.60
126,775,482.62
101,489,814.94
144,298,132.51
102,035,124.44
230,189,155.53
69,051,978.34
17,957,328.73
15,331,246.76

66,500,000.00

45,000,000.00
30,000,000.00

3,000,000.00
8,000,000.00

20,000,000.00

675,000.00

10,725,000.00

1,371,025,248.97

Holding
percentage

88.99%
90.36%
100.00%
100.00%
88.40%
87.77%
92.48%
90.09%
100.00%
100.00%
58.70%

94.86%

54.04%
21.42%

24.00%
10.00%

20.00%

45.00%
0.30%

Accumulated
increase
(decrease) of
the equity

55,184,875.40
144,405,305.21
91,079,904.31
36,412,786.15
(12,677,043.73)
11,483,228.36
28,707,063.83
122,169,082.66
23,179,160.64
1,863,849.74
(19,169.22)

(6,861,577.59)

(6,520,567.15)

(1,027,947.21)

(4,671,376.60)

31 December
2003

180,507,194.11
300,614,627.00
189,545,248.91
163,188,268.77
88,812,771.21
155,781,360.87
130,742,188.27
352,358,238.19
92,231,138.98
19,821,178.47
15,312,077.54

59,638,422.41

38,479,432.85
30,000,000.00

1,972,052.79
8,000,000.00

15,328,623.40

675,000.00
10,725,000.00

__482,707,574.80 L1,853,732,823.7Z




3. Income from invesiment
2003 2002
Stock investment 281,205.24 (2,002,393.21)
Debt investment Debenture 698,950.74 —

Entrusted loan —_ —
Other debt investment — —
Profit from associate
enterprises or joint-ventures 4,324,345.00 3,992,165.00
Net increase or decrease
of stock investment under

equity method 160,534,295.00 176,646,830.31

Provision for impairment
of investment 689,236.76 —
166,528,032.74 _ 178,636,602.10

9. Related Party Relationships & Transactions

(1) Related parties with control relationship

Relationship
Principal with the Economic Legal

Name Registered address business Company nature and type representative

Guangzhou Pharmaceutical 45 Shamian North Production Holding Company with Cai Zhixiang
Holdings Company Limited Guangzhou and sales limited liabilities

Guangzhou Xingqun 252 Renmin Central Production Subsidiary Joint stock company Li Xinghua
Pharmaceutical Co., Lid. Road Guangzhou and sales with limited liabilities

Guangzhou Zhongyi 77 Shanmulan Road Production Subsidiary Company with Mai Qijie
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. Guangzhou and sales limited liabilities

Guangzhou Chenliji 1688 Guangzhou Production  Subsidiary  Controlied Li Guoju
Pharmaceutical Factory Dadao Guangzhou and sales by the State

Guangzhou Qixing 33 Cigang North Street, Production Subsidiary Controlled Wen Xianwen
Pharmaceutical Factory Xingang Central Road,  and sales by the State

Guangzhou

Guangzhou Jing Xiu Tang 179 Renmin South Road, Production Subsidiary Joint stock company Huang Haitao
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. Guangzhou and sales with limited liabilities

Guangzhou Pangaoshou 618~620 Jiefang North Production Subsidiary Joint stock company  Liu Runfa
Pharmaceutical Co., Lid. Road, Guangzhou and sales with limited liabilities

Guangzhou Yangcheng Bridge side, Jiang Village, Production Subsidiary Joint stock company ~ Shi Shaobin
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. Baiyun District, and sales with limited liabilities

Guangzhou

Guangzhou Pharmaceuticals 97 Datong Road, Wholesale Subsidiary Company with limited ~ Feng Zansheng
Corporation Guangzhou and retail liability

Guangzhou Chinese 140 Guangfu South Road, Wholesale Subsidiary Controlled by the State  Su Degui

Medicine Corparation Guangzhou and retail
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2

Name Registered address

Guangzhou Pharmaceutical

Import & Export Corporation Guangzhou

Guangzhou Huanye
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. Fangeun District,

Guangzhou

Guangzhou Hanfang
Modern Chinese Patent
medicine Research
& Development Co., Ltd.

134 Jiangnan
Dadao Central,
Haizhu District,
Guangzhou

Guangzhou Bio-Technology
Co., Ltd.

Room 412, 134

Haizhu District,
Guangzhou

59 Shamian North Street,

195 Fangeun Dadao East,

Jiangnan Dadao Central,

Relationship
with the
Company

Principal
business

Wholesale
and retail

Subsidiary

Production
and sales

Subsidiary

Wholesale &
retail,
research &
development

Subsidiary

Wholesale &
retail,
research &
development

Subsidiary

Economic
nature and type

Legal
representative

Controlled by the State  Tu Kejin

Company with limited

liabilities

Company with limited

liabilities

Company with limited

liabilities

Feng Jinglin

Zhou Yugjin

Zhang Mingsen

Registered capital {(paid-in capital) of related parties with control relationship and its

change

Company name

Guangzheou Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited
Guangzhou Xinggun Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.
Guangzhou Zhongyi Pharmaceutical Co., Lid.
Guangzhou Chenliji Pharmaceutical Factory
Guangzhou Qixing Pharmaceutical Factory
Guangzhou Jing Xiu Tang

Pharmaceutical Co., Lid.
Guangzhou Pangaoshou

Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.
Guangzhou Yangcheng Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.
Guangzhou Pharmaceuticals Corporation
Guangzhou Chinese Medicine Corporation
Guangzhou Pharmaceutical Import

& Export Cerporation
Guangzhou Huanye Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.
Guangzhou Hanfang Modern Chinese

Patent medicine Research & Development Co., Ltd.
Guangzhou Bio-Technology Co., Ltd.

31 December 2002

Addition
RMB'000 RMB'000
1,007,700 —
77,170 -
166,000 -
94,000 —
82,420 —

86,230 -

65,440 -
106,380 -
222,000 -
69,7000 —

15,000 -
8,000 -

50,000 33,280
50,000 20,100

Decrease
RMB’000

31 December 2003
RMB'000

1,007,700
77,170
166,000
94,000
82,420

86,230

65,440
106,380
222,000

69,700

15,000
6,000

83,280
70,100
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(3) Shareholding or equity interest held by related parties with control relationship and
its change

31 December 2002 Addition Reduction 31 December 2003
Company name Amount %  Amount %  Amount %  Amount %
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

Guangzhou Pharmaceutical

Holdings Company Limited 513,000 63.26 — — - — 513,000 63.26
Guangzhou Xingqun

Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. 88,670 88.99 - - - — 68,670 88.99
Guangzhou Zhongyi

Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. 150,000 90.36 - — — — 150,000 90.36
Guangzhou Chenliji

Pharmaceutical Factory 94,000 100 — — — — 94,000 160
Guangzhou Qixing

Pharmaceutical Factory 82,420 100 — — — — 82,420 100
Guangzhou Jing Xiu

Tang Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. 76,230 88.40 - — — — 76,230 88.40
Guangzhou Pangaoshou

Pharmaceutical Co., Lid. 57,440 87.77 — - — — 57,440 87.77
Guangzhou Yangcheng

Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. 98,380 92.48 — — — — 98,380 92.48
Guangzhou Pharmaceuticals

Corporation 200,000 90.09 — - — — 200,000 90.09
Guangzhou Chinese

Medicine Corporation 89,700 100 — — — — 69,700 100
Guangzhou Pharmaceutical

Import & Export Corporation 15,000 100 — — — — 15,000 100
Guangzhou Huanye

Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. 3,580 59.70 — — - - 3,580 59.70

Guangzhou Hanfang Modern
Chinese Patent medicine
Research & Development

Co., Ltd. 45,000 90.00 - — — 35.96 45,000 54.04
Guangzhou Bio-Technology
Co., Ltd. 48,400 92.80 20,100 2.07 — — 66,500 94.87
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(4) Related party transactions
1. Nature of related parties with no control relationship

Name Relationship with the Company

98

Guangzhou Qiaoguang Pharmaceutical Factory
Guangzhou Mingxing Pharmaceutical Factory
Guangzhou Tianxin Pharmaceutical Company Limited
Guangzhou Hejigong Pharmaceutical Factory
Guangzhou Guanghua Pharmaceutical Company Limited
Guangzhou Medicinal Glasses Factory
Guangzhou Pharmaceutical Machinery Factory
Guangzhou Sanitation Production Factory
Gunagzhou South-china Medical Appliance Co., Ltd.
Guangzhou Pharmaceutical Goods and Supply Company
Guangzhou Pharmaceutical Trade Center
Guangzhou Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited

Ying Bang Marketing Co., Ltd.
Guangzhou Pharmaceutical Economic

Development Company
Baolian Development Company Limited
Guangzhou Zhongfu Medical Company Limited
Guangzhou Medical Industry Research Center
Guangzhou Medical Industry Design Institute
Guangzhou Baiyunshan Enterprise Group
Guangzhou Baiyunshan Pharmaceutical Factory
Guangzhou Baiyunshan Chinese Medicine Factory
Guangzhou Baiyunshan External Use Medicine Factory

Fellow subsidiary
Fellow subsidiary
Fellow subsidiary
Fellow subsidiary
Fellow subsidiary
Fellow subsidiary
Fellow subsidiary
Fellow subsidiary
Fellow subsidiary
Fellow subsidiary
Fellow subsidiary

Fellow subsidiary

Fellow subsidiary
Fellow subsidiary

Associated company

Fellow subsidiary
Fellow subsidiary
Fellow subsidiary
Fellow subsidiary
Feliow subsidiary
Fellow subsidiary




2. Purchase of goods

2003 2002
Company name RMB’000 RMB’000
Guangzhou Qiaoguang Pharmaceutical Factory 26,602 15,798
" Guangzhou Mingxing Pharmaceutical Factory 24,975 18,108
Guangzhou Tianxin
Pharmaceutical Company Limited 6,815 6,259
Guangzhou Hejigong Pharmaceutical Factory 3,081 1,264
Guangzhou Guanghua
Pharmaceutical Company Limited 29,538 26,480
Guangzhou Medicinal Glasses Factory 413 —
Guangzhou Sanitation Production Factory 4,581 6,611
Gunagzhou South-china
Medical Appliance Co., Ltd. 124 60
Guangzhou Pharmaceutical Goods
and Supply Company 19 -
Guangzhou Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited
Yingbang Marketing Co., Ltd. 46,395 34,074
Guangzhou Pharmaceutical
Economic Development Company 15 —
Baolian Development Company Limited 6,244 1,601
Guangzhou Baiyunshan Enterprise Group 109 -
Guangzhou Baiyunshan Pharmaceutical Factory 785 181
Guangzhou Baiyunshan Chinese
Medicine Factory 3,601 306
Guangzhou Baiyunshan External
Use Medicine Factory — 150
153,297 110,890

The above purchases are all based on the price approved by government authority or

using the pricing method in accordance with the regulation of government authority.
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3. Sales of goods
2003 2002
Company name RMB’000 RMB’000
Guangzhou Qiaoguang Pharmaceutical Factory 37,068 29,800
Guangzhou Mingxing Pharmaceutical Factory 1,424 397
Guangzhou Tianxin
Pharmaceutical Company Limited 17,776 8,567
Guangzhou Hejigong Pharmaceutical Factory 1,066 —
Guangzhou Guanghua
Pharmaceutical Company Limited 2,767 1,917
Guangzhou Sanitation Production Factory 1,544 2,488
Gunagzhou South-china
Medical Appliance Co., Ltd. 1 —
Guangzhou Pharmaceutical Goods
and Supply Company 152 288
Guangzhou Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited
Yingbang Marketing Co., Ltd. 19,839 29,767
Guangzhou Zhongfu Medical Company Limited - 1,459 1,853
Guangzhou Medical Industry Research Center 62 —
Guangzhou Baiyunshan Enterprise Group - 5,927
Guangzhou Baiyunshan
Pharmaceutical Factory 22,756 5,045
Guangzhou Baiyunshan Chinese
Medicine Factory 1,352 824
107,266 87,504

The above sales are all based on the price approved by government authority or
using the method in accordance with the regulations set by government authority.

4. Receivables and payables
31 December 2003 31 December 2002

Company name RMB’000 RMB’000
Accounts receivable:
Guangzhou Qiaoguang Pharmaceutical Factory 5,572 7,237
Guangzhou Mingxing Pharmaceutical Factory 288 2
Guangzhou Tianxin Pharmaceutical

Company Limited 3,140 918
Guangzhou Hejigong Pharmaceutical Factory 18 17
Guangzhou Guanghua Pharmaceutical

Company Limited 434 337
Guangzhou Sanitation Production Factory 329 1,142
Guangzhou Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited

Yingbang Marketing Co., Ltd. 1,763 3,507
Guangzhou Pharmaceutical Economic

Development Company 26 —
Guangzhou Zhongfu Medical Company Limited 188 477
Guangzhou Baiyunshan Enterprise Group 0 6,414
Guangzhou Baiyunshan Pharmaceutical Factory 7,766 —
Guangzhou Baiyunshan Chinese

Medicine Factory 852 370

100
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Accounts payable:

Guangzhou Qiaoguang Pharmaceutical Factory 987 20
Guangzhou Mingxing Pharmaceutical Factory 487 59
Guangzhou Tianxi Pharmaceutical
Company Limited 438 322
Guangzhou Hejigong Pharmaceutical Factory 106 127
Guangzhou Guanghua Pharmaceutical
Company Limited 782 584
Guangzhou Sanitation Production Factory 962 345
Gunagzhou South-china Medical
Appliance Co., Ltd. 23 —
Guangzhou Pharmaceutical Goods
and Supply Company 22 —
Guangzhou Pharmaceutical Group
Yingbang Marketing Co., Ltd. 844 517
Baolian Development Company Limited 17 —
Guangdong Xinhua Health Drinks
Company Limited 361 3,311
Guangzhou Medical Industry Research Center 18 18
o ~ Guangzhou Baiyunshan Pharmaceutical Factory 47 —
- . . _ . __ . _ Guangzhou Baiyunshan Chinese Medicine Factory 297 24

Other receivables:
Guangzhou Pharmaceutical Holdings

Company Limited 7,227 8,130
Guangzhou Qiaoguang Pharmaceutical Factory —_ 197
Guangzhou Pharmaceutical Machinery Factory — 33
Gunagzhou South-china Medical Appliance Co., Ltd. 100 100
Guangzhou Pharmaceutical Group

Yingbang Marketing Co., Ltd. 5,000 5,030
Baolian Development Company Limited 8,222 5,796
Guangzhou Zhongfu Medical Company Limited 3 —
Other payables:

Guangzhou Pharmaceutical Holdings

Company Limited 13,814 10,806
Guangzhou Zhongfu Medical Company Limited 207 —
Guangzhou Medical Industry Research Center 831 —
Guangzhou Qiaoguang Pharmaceutical Factory — 36

Guangzhou Pharmaceutical Goods
and Supply Company - 1,024
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5. Provision or receipt of services
2003 2002
Item Note RMB’000 RMB'000
Service fee on staff housing [1] 361 463
Comprehensive service fee 2] 857 522
1,218 985

Note[1] Pursuant to the Accommodation Service Agresment entered into by the Group and the Holding on 1
September 1997 and supplemented by a netice dated 31 December 1997, the Holding has agreed
providing continuously staff quarters to the employees of the Company. The Company agreed to pay
a service fee equal to 6% of the net book value of the relevant staff quarters. The Accommodation
Services Agreement will expire on 31 December 2007.

Note[2] Pursuant to the Composite Services Agreement entered into by the Company and the Holding on 1
Septemnber 1997, the Holding agreed to provide certain welfare facilities to the Group. The Company
agreed to be responsible for the operation, management and maintenance of the facilities and pay a
fee equal to the Holding's total depreciation charges of the welfare facilities in the year ended 31
December 1997 plus a 10% annual increment based on the fee rate of the previous year. The
Composite Service Agreement will expire on 31 December 2007.

6. Rentai

Pursuant to the Tenancy Agreement and the Office Tenancy Agreement both entered
into by the Group and the Holding on 1 September 1997, the Holding has granted to
the Company the right to use certain premises such as warehouses and offices (the
term for offices is 3 years and will be renewed when expired) at a fixed annual rate
(and is subject to the adjustment of standard rent as prescribed from time to time by
the Guangzhou Real Estate Administration Bureau), plus public facilities and other
outgoings which are payable based on the actual consumption; other property tenancy
agreements will expire on 1 September 2007.

Pursuant to the Office Tenancy Agreement entered into by the Group and the Holding
on 6 February 2004 from 1 January 2003, the Company rents the back tower of the
Holding's building at No. 45 Shamian Beijie at a fixed annual rent (and is subject to the
adjustment of standard rent as prescribed from time to time by the Guangzhou Real
Estate Administration Bureau), the lease shall be expired until the rental prepayment
is fully utilized.

The Group shall pay such rental charges of RMB3,242 thousand for the current period
(2002: RMB2,621 thousand).

7. License fee

Pursuant to the Trademark License Agreement entered into by the Group and the
Holding on 1 September 1997, the Holding has granted the Company an exclusive
right to use 38 trademarks owned by the Holding for a term of 10 years commencing
at the signature date. The Company agreed to pay license fees for the use of the
trademarks at 0.1% of its aggregate net sales. The Trademark License Agreement will
expire on 1 September 2007. The Group shall pay the above License fee of RMB7.542
thousand for the current period (2002: RMB5,879 thousand).
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8. Prepaid rental

Pursuant to the Premises Agreement entered into by the Company and the Holding
on 28 August 1998, the Holding agreed to grant the Company the right to use certain
units of the new office building it had built. The rental payable by the Company will be
determined by reference to a 38% discount on the market rental rate at the time the
formal tenancy agreement is signed. As the Holding requires funds for constructing
the new office building, the Company made an advance payment of RMB6,000
thousand to the Holding during the year. The advance payment shall be used by the
Holding exclusively for the construction of the new office building and shall offset the
rental for the premises payable to the Holding by the Company. The lease shall be
expired until the advance payment is fully utilized. The Company has prepaid such
rental charges of RMB5,448 thousand as at December 31, 2003.

X. Contingent events
1) The Group
At 31 December 2003, the Group does not provide any guarantee to external parties.
2) The Company

As at 31 December 2003, the Company has provided guarantee for the following subsidiaries:

Company guaranteed Guaranty content Amount Term
RMB’000

Guangzhou Pharmaceuticals Woring capital 360,000 1 year
Corporation

Guangzhou Pharmaceuticals Discounts of bank 71,500 1 year
Corporation acceptance

Guangzhou Chinese Working capital 35,000 1 year
Medicine Corporation

Guangzhou Chinese Discounts of bank 29,520 1 year
Medicine Corporation acceptance

Guangzhou Pharmaceutical Working capital 22,000 1 year
Import & Export Corporation

Guangzhou Pharmaceutical Guarantee for 3,110 1 year
import & Export Corporation credit facility

Total 521,130
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11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

Commitments

Up to 31 December 2003, material commitments of the Group are as follows:

2003 2002
RMB’000 RMB’000

Contracted but not provided for construction in
progress and machinery and equipment 231,101 159,643
Lease commitment for non-cancellable contracts 69,355 49,675
Contracted but not provided for-unit trust . — 8,000

Non-adjusting evenis occurring after the balance sheet date

1. In accordance with the Stock Transfer Contract sign between the Company and GPHL on 6
February 2004, GPHL sold 51% of its equity interests in Guangzhou Pharmaceutical Holdings
Limited Yingbang Marketing Co., Ltd. to the Company. The Company has paid 3,888,713.99
on a lump-sum basis to the Holding for the equity interests transfer on 27 February 2004,
thereby obtaining 51% of the stock of Guangzhou Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited Yingbang
Marketing Co., Ltd..

2. Proposed by the board of directors, profit distribution plan for the year 2003 is: the Company
plans to allocate RMBO0.06 per share, therefore the total dividends to be allocated sums up
to RMB48,654,000.00 at the total shares of 810,900,000.

Debit restructuring events

Up to 31 December 2003, there are no debt restructuring events in the Group.
Non-monetary transactions

Up to 31 December 2003, there are no material non-monetary transactions in the Group.
Other significant events

The Group decided to liquidate Shenzhen Lan Zhao Biological Co., Ltd. and Guangzhen Chen Li Ji
Co., Ltd. in 2004.

16 AN ANALYSIS ON SIGNIFICANT CHANGES IN THE ITEMS OF THE ACCOUNTS

The items in the Group’s consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2003, which recorded a
change of 30% or more as compared with that as at 31 December 2002 and accounted for 5% or
more of the Group’s total assets as at 31 December 2003 and those items in the consoclidated
profit and loss accounts for the year which recorded a change of 30% or more and accounted for
10% or more of the Group's total profit for the year are set out as follows:

ltems 2003 2002 Differences
Amount  Change
RMB RMB RMB %
Profit from other operations 43,331,577.75 31,799,024.38 11,5632,553.37 36.27
Net cash flow from operating activities (6,830,395.98)  169,014,289.92 (175,844,685.90)  (104.04)




(1)  Profit from other operations for 2003 recorded increased by RMB11,533,000, representing a
growth of 36.27% compared with that of 2002, which was contributed by the consulting fees of
RBM3,394,000 from market research for new products on behalf of the manufacturers conducted
by the Group and rental income of RMB3,577,000 from warehouses leased to others.

(2)  Net cash flow from operating activities for 2003 decreased by 104.04% as compared with
that of 2002, which was mainly due to the increase in accounts receivable and inventory of
the Group as at 31 December 2003.

EXPLANATIONS OF DIFFERENCE IN NET ASSETS AND NET PROFITS
PREPARED IN ACCORDANCE WiTH PRC ACCOUNTING STANDARDS AND
SYSTEMS AND HK GAAP

Group
As restated

31 December As at 31
2003 December 2002
Note RMB’000 RMB’000

Net assets under PRC accounting standards
and systems 2,429,476 2,335,583
Provision for bad debts 1 —_ (26,067)
Intangible asset capitalised 2 58,571 69,017
Difference in fixed assets revaluation 3 132,808 134,783

Overprovision of research and

development cost 4 — 4,228
Provision for employee benefits 5 (66,782) (71,762)
Deferred taxation 6 12,708 26,590
Reversal of payables write-off 10 — (5,144)
Difference in minority interests 11 (15,364) (13,148)
Net assets under HK GAAP 2,551,41 7’ 2,454,0&0

As restated

2003 2002
RMB’000 RMB’000
Net profit under PRC accounting standards
and systems 139,795 158,478
Amortisation of intangible asset capitalised 2 (10,446) (10,446)
Additional depreciation on revalued fixed assets 3 (1,975) (1,975)
Research and development cost undercharged 4 (4,228) (8,530)
Government subsidies recognised as income 7 290 3,600
Reversal/(Provision) of employee benefits 5 4,980 (71,762)
(Reversal)/Provision of deferred taxation 6 (13,882) 30,341
Provision for staff bonus and welfare fund 9 (2,507) (2,144)
Reversal of bad debts provision 1 26,067 —
Income arising from dilution of interest
in a subsidiary 8 3,565 —
Payables write-off recognised as income 10 7,224 —
Difference in minority interests 11 (2,216) 3,593
Net profit under HK GAAP 146,667 101,155
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Exptanations for differences:

1.

This is the provision for bad debts made under HK GAAP in prior years. It has been taken up
in the accounts prepared under PRC accounting standards and systems in 2003 or it has an
indication to prove that bad debts previously written-off can be recovered. Therefore, provision
for bad debts was released under HK GAAP in 2003.

This is an amortisation of staff quarter reform costs incurred by the Group prior to 2000 in
relation to purchases of staff quarters by its employees. Under HK GAAP, such cost are
recognised as an asset and are subject to amortisation on a straight line basis over a period
of not more than 10 years to reflect the estimated remaining average service life of its
employees in which the related economic benefits are recognised. Under PRC accounting
standards and systems, the staff quarter reform costs are written off against retained earnings
when it incurred.

The Group's fixed assets were revalued by the international valuers in 1997 for the purpose
of listing of the Company’s H shares. Although the revaluation has been taken into the accounts
of the Group prepared under HK GAAP, this is not acceptable to the accounts prepared
under PRC accounting standards and systems. Accordingly, the depreciation charge under
HK GAAP is higher than that calculated under PRC accounting standards and systems as
the depreciation charge under HK GAAP is based on the revalued amount of fixed assets.

Prior to 2003, the Company made provision for research and development cost based on
certain percentage on turnover in the accounts prepared in accordance with PRC accounting
standards and systems. In 2003, the Company changed its accounting policy in respect of
provision for research and development cost, which is to recognise a provision in light of a
legal or constructive obligation and reliable estimate. This is consistent with HK GAAP.
Provision for research and development cost made under PRC accounting standards and
systems in 2002 but used in 2003 has been taken up in the profit and loss account prepared
under HK GAAP in 2003.

On 1 December 2001, the Group has participate in a medical insurance scheme set up and
managed by the Guangzhou People’s Municipal Government as required by the Provisional
Rules of Medical Insurance issues by the Guangzhou People’s Municipal Government. Medical
insurance relating to contributions accrued for the past service rendered by the retired and
retiring employees are recognized as expenses in prior years under HK GAAP. However, in
the accounts prepared under PRC accounting standards and systems, medical insurance
for the past service is recognised as expenses on cash basis. Cash basis is not acceptable
to HK GAAP.

The Group has not made provision for deferred tax in the accounts prepared in accordance
with PRC accounting standards and systems. Under HK GAAP, deferred tax is accounted
for using the balance sheet liability method on all taxable temporary differences for deferred
tax liability, and to recognise deferred tax assets to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profits will be available against which deductible temporary differences can be utilised.
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Government subsidies are recognised as capital reserve in the accounts prepared in
accordance with PRC accounting standards and systems. Under HK GAAP, government
subsidies are recognised as other income in the profit and loss account and is transferred
from profit after taxation to capital reserve.

Income arising from dilution of interest in a subsidiary is recognised as capital reserve in the
accounts prepared in accordance with PRC accounting standards and systems. Under HK
GAAP, it is recognised as other income in the profit and loss account and is transferred from
profit after taxation to capital reserve.

This is staff bonus and welfare fund appropriated from profit after taxation in the accounts
prepared under PRC accounting standards and systems. Under HK GAAP, it is recognised
as expenses in the profit and loss account.

Payables write-off is recognised as capital reserve in the accounts prepared in accordance
with PRC accounting standards and systems. Under HK GAAP, it is recognised as other
income in the profit and loss account and is transferred from profit after taxation to capital
reserve.

This is resulted from the above difference in the accounts prepared under PRC accounting
standards and systems and HK GAAP.
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF GUANGZHOU PHARMACEUTICAL COMPANY LIMITED
(a joint stock company established in the People’s Republic of China with limited liability)

We have audited the accounts on pages 109 to 155 which have been prepared in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong.

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors

The Company’s directors are responsible for the preparation of accounts which give a true and fair view.
In preparing accounts which give a true and fair view it is fundamental that appropriate accounting policies
are selected and applied consistently.

It is our responsibility to form an independent opinion, based on our audit, on those accounts and to
report our opinion solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Basis of opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Statements of Auditing Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Society of Accountants. An audit includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the amounts
and disclosures in the accounts. It also includes an assessment of the significant estimates and judgements
made by the directors in the preparation of the accounts, and of whether the accounting policies are
appropriate to the circumstances of the Company and of the Group, consistently applied and adequately
disclosed.

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the information and explanations which we
considered necessary in order to provide us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance as to
whether the accounts are free from material misstatement. In forming our opinion we also evaluated the
overall adequacy of the presentation of information in the accounts. We believe that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

Opinion
In our opinion, the accounts give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the
Group as at 31 December 2003 and of the Group's profit and cash flows for the year then ended and have

been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 26 March 2004

‘Pharmaceutical Company Limite
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For the year ended 31 December 200
(Prepared in accordance with HK GAAP)

As restated

2003 2002
Note Rmb’000 Rmb’000
Turnover 2 6,973,113 5,943,823
Cost of sales (5,576,164) (4,630,443)
Gross profit 1,396,949 1,313,380
Other revenue 2 74,923 68,373
Distribution costs (504,230) (442,051)
Administrative expenses (606,298) (677,678)
Other operating expenses (19,807) (13,735)
Operating profit 3 341,537 248,289
Finance costs 4 (34,172) (28,804)
Share of profits less losses of
Jointly controlled entities — (23,435)
Associated companies 464 310
Profit before taxation 307,829 196,360
Taxation 5 (148,393) (82,892)
Profit after taxation 159,436 113,468
Minority interests (12,769) (12,313)
Net profit for the year 146,667 101,155
Dividends 22(c) 48,654 48,654
Earnings per share 7 Rmb0.181 Rmb0.125
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As at 31 December é003
(Prepared in accordance with HK GAAP)

Non-current assets
Intangible assets
Fixed assets
Construction in progress
Interests in joint ventures
Interests in associated companies
Investment securities
Deferred tax assets

Current assets
Inventories
Trade and other receivables
Trading securities
Bank balances and cash

Current liabilities
Trade and other payables
Taxation payable
Current portion of long-term liabilities
Short-term bank loans

Net current assets
Total assets less current liabilities

Financed by:
Share capital
Reserves

Shareholders’ funds

Minority interests

Non-current liabilities
Long-term liabilities
Employee benefits
Deferred tax liabilities

Cai Zhixiang Li Yimin
Director Director

b

Note

10
11
13
14
15
24

17
18
16

19

23
20

21
22

23
26
24

As restated

2003 2002
Rmb’000 Rmb’000
61,483 69,017
1,231,917 1,032,234
305,929 236,616
- 6,208

5,292 2,930
68,873 77,802
56,533 72,462
1,730,027 1,497,269
1,067,900 848,519
1,289,775 983,325
49,500 61,194
816,889 1,019,903
3,224,064 2,912,941
1,271,128 1,004,416
44,825 48,774
30,000 —
664,230 555,340
2,010,183 1,608,530
1,213,881 1,304,411
2,943,908 2,801,680
810,900 810,900
1,740,517 1,643,180
2,551,417 2,454,080
182,627 149,072
107,180 89,680
58,858 62,975
43,826 45,873
2,943,908 2,801,680
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As at 31 December 2003
(Prepared in accordance with HK GAAF)

S R

As restated

S e . 2003 2002
T C Note Rmb’000 RBRmb’000
Non-current assets
Intangible assets 9 1,458 1,701
Fixed assets 10 21,740 19,620
Construction in progress 11 — 4,330
Investments in subsidiaries 12 1,504,535 1,484,435
Investment in associated companies 2,648 —
Investment securities 15 68,527 70,725
1,598,908 1,680,811
Current assets
Qther receivables 18 382,125 342,543
Trading securities 16 49,500 61,194
Bank balances and cash 231,542 204,624
663,167 608,361
Current liabilities
Other payabies 19 50,363 20,492
Taxation payable — 407
50,363 20,899
Net current assets 612,804 587,462
Total assets less current liabilities 2,211,712 2,168,273
Financed by:
Share capital 21 810,900 810,900
Reserves 22 1,400,812 1,357,373
Cai Zhixiang Li Yimin
Director Director

2,211,712 2,168,273
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(Prepared in accordance with HK GAAF)

Total equity at 1 January, as previously reported
Effect of changes in accounting policies

Total equity at 1 January, as restated

Profit for the year

Release from reserves upon disposal of a subsidiary
Dividends

Share issue expenses

Total equity at 31 December

Note

22

22

22

22

22

2003 2002
Rmb’000 Rmb’000
2,455,066 2,408,430
(986) (7,580)
2,454,080 2,400,850
146,667 101,155
(676) —
(48,654) (48,654)
— 729
2,551,417 2,454,080




Cash generated from operations
Interest paid
Taxation paid-PRC enterprise income tax

Net cash (outflow) / inflow generated
from operating activities

Investing activities
Purchase of fixed assets
Payments for construction in progress
Purchase of intangible assets
Sale of fixed assets
Sale of a subsidiary, net of cash disposed
Government granis received
Interest received
Purchase of a subsidiary, net of cash acquired
Dividends received from investments
Dividends received from an associated company
Sale of trading securities
Purchase of trading securities
Proceeds received from disposal of a joint venture
Purchase of associated companies
Purchase of investment securities

Net cash outflow from investing activities

Net cash outflow before financing activities

Financing activities
Capital contribution from minority shareholders
New ioans payable
Repayment of amounts borrowed
Dividends paid
Dividends paid to minority shareholders

Net cash inflow from financing activities

(Decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January

Cash and cash équivélents at 31 December

S OISO VMUCUIEN U SIIE

Note

25(a)

25 (d)

25(b)

25(e)

For the year ended 31 December 2003
(Prepared in accordance with HK GAAF)

As restated

2003 2002
Rmb’000 Rmb’000
106,268 273,711
(34,252) (27,918)
(131,633) (94,200)
(59,617) 151,593
(46,620) (100,936)
(314,313) (134,255)
(2,980) —
5,254 11,072
1,569 —
23,075 30,968
11,202 13,475
— 2,285
3,671 4,652
281 182
20,000 3,151
(8,000) —
— 173
(1,675) —
(150) (29,468)
(308,686) (198,701)
(368,303) (47,108)
7,650 6,545
882,685 662,310
(646,340) (461,820)
(48,654) (48,654)
(8,933) (6,285)
186,408 152,096
(181,895) 104,988
998,784 893,796
816,889 998,784
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1

Principal accounting policies

The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these accounts are set out below:

(@)

(&)

Basis of preparation

The accounts have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong and comply with accounting standards issued by the Hong Kong
Society of Accountants (“HKSA”). They have been prepared under the historical cost
convention except that, as disclosed in the accounting policies below, certain properties and
investments in securities are stated at fair value.

In the current year, the Group adopted SSAP 35 “Government Grants and Disclosure of
Government Assistance” and SSAP 12 “Income Taxes” issued by the HKSA which are effective
for accounting periods commencing on or after 1 July 2002 and 1 January 2003, respectively.

The changes to the Group’s accounting policies and the effect of adopting these new policies
are set out in Note(l).

Group accounting
(i) Consolidation

The consolidated accounts include the accounts of the Company and its subsidiaries
made up to 31 December.

Subsidiaries are those entities in which the Company, directly or indirectly, controls
more than half of the voting power; has the power to govern the financial and operating
policies; to appoint or remove the majority of the members of the board of directors; or
to cast majority of votes at the meetings of the board of directors.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the
consolidated profit and loss account from the effective date of acquisition or up to the
effective date of disposal, as appropriate.

All significant intercompany transactions and balances within the Group are eliminated
on consolidation.

The gain or loss on the disposal of a subsidiary represents the difference between the
proceeds of the sale and the Group’s share of its net assets together with any
unamortised goodwill or negative goodwill or goodwill/negative goodwill taken to
reserves and which was not previously charged or recognised in the consolidated
profit and loss account and any related accumulated foreign currency translation
reserve.

Minority interests represent the interests of outside shareholders in the operating
results and net assets of subsidiaries.

In the Company’s balance sheet the investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost
less provision for impairment losses. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by
the Company on the basis of dividends received and receivable.
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(Prepared in accordance with HK GAAP)

1 Principal accounting policies (continued)
(o) Group accounting (continued)
(i)  Joint ventures

A joint venture is a contractual arrangement whereby the Group and other parties
undertake an economic activity which is subject to joint control and none of the
participating parties has unilateral control over the economic activity.

The consolidated profit and loss account includes the Group’s share of the results of
jointly controlled entities for the year, and the consolidated balance sheet includes the
Group’s share of the net assets of the jointly controlled entities.

(iiiy  Associated companies

An associated company is a company, not being a subsidiary or a joint venture, in
which an equity interest is held for the long-term and significant influence is exercised
in its management.

The consolidated profit and loss account includes the Group’s share of the results of
associated companies for the year, and the consolidated balance sheet includes the
Group's share of the net assets of the associated companies.

Equity accounting is discontinued when the carrying amount of the investment in an
associated company reaches zero, uniess the Group has incurred obligations or
guaranteed obligations in respect of the associated company.

In the Company’s balance sheet the investments in associated companies are stated
at cost less provision for impairment losses. The resuits of associated companies are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividends received and receivable.

(iv) Translation of foreign currencies

The Company and its principal subsidiaries maintain their books and records in
Renminbi ("Rmb”).

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated at exchange rates ruling at the
transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities expressed in foreign currencies at
the balance sheet date are translated at rates of exchange ruling at the balance sheet
date. Exchange differences arising in these cases are dealt with in the profit and loss
account.

The balance sheet of subsidiaries, jointly controlled entities and associated companies
expressed in foreign currencies are translated at the rates of exchange ruling at the
balance sheet date whilst the profit and loss account is translated at an average rate.
Exchange differences are dealt with as a movement in reserves.

115
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(Prepared in accordance Wlf;7 HK 7GAAP)' '

1

Principal accounting policies (continued)

()

Intangibles

(i)

(i)

(iif)

Goodwill/negative goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition over the fair value of the
Group’s share of the net assets of the acquired subsidiary/ joint venture/ associated
company at the date of acquisition.

Goodwill on acquisitions occurring on or after 1 January 2001 is included in intangible
assets and is amortised using the straight-line method over its estimated useful life.
Goodwill arising on major strategic acquisitions of the Group to expand its product or
geographical market coverage is amortised over a maximum period of 15 years. For
all other acquisitions goodwill is generally amortised over 5-10 years.

Goodwill on acquisitions that occurred prior to 1 January 2001 was eliminated against
reserves. Any impairment arising on such goodwill is accounted for in the profit and
loss account.

Negative goodwill represents the excess of the fair value of the Group’s share of the
net assets acquired over the cost of acquisition.

For acquisitions after 1 January 2001, negative goodwill is presented in the same
balance sheet classification as goodwill. To the extent that negative goodwill relates to
expectations of future losses and expenses that are identified in the Group’s plan for
the acquisition and can be measured reliably, but which do not represent identifiable
liabilities at the date of acquisition, that portion of negative goodwill is recognised in
the profit and loss account when the future losses and expenses are recognised. Any
remaining negative goodwill, not exceeding the fair values of the non-monetary assets
acquired, is recognised in the profit and loss account over the remaining weighted
average useful life of those assets; negative goodwill in excess of the fair values of
those non-monetary assets is recognised in the profit and loss account immediately.

For acquisitions prior to 1 January 2001, negative goodwill was taken directly to
reserves on acquisition.

Patents

Expenditure on acquired patents is capitalised and amortised using the straight-line
method over their useful lives, but not exceeding 20 years. Patents are not revalued
as there is no active market for these assets.

Staff quarters reform costs

Staff quarters reform costs are expenditures incurred by the Group prior to year 2000
in relation to purchases of staff quarters by its employees. Such costs are recognised
as an asset. These costs are amortised on a straight-line basis over a period of not
more than 10 years to reflect the estimated remaining average service life of the
employees of the Group in which the related economic benefits are recognised.
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(Prepared in accordance with HK GAAP)

1 Principal accounting policies (continued)

{c) Intangibles (continued)

(iv)

(v)

Research and development costs

Research costs are expensed as incurred. Costs incurred on development projects relating
to the design and testing of new or improved products are recognised as an intangible
asset where the technical feasibility and intention of completing the product under
development has been demonstrated and the resources are available to do so, costs are
identifiable and there is an ability to sell or use the asset that will generate probable future
economic benefits. Such development costs are recognised as an asset and amortised
on a straight-line basis over a period of not more than 5 years to reflect the pattern in
which the related economic benefits are recognised. Development costs that do not meet
the above criteria are expensed as incurred. Development costs previously recognised as
an expense are not recognised as an asset in a subsequent period.

Impairment of intangible assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, the carrying amount of any intangible asset,
including goodwill previously written off against reserves, is assessed and written
down immediately to its recoverable amount.

(d) Fixed assets

()

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings in respect of which construction
work and development have been completed and which are held for their investment
potential, any rental income being negotiated at arm’s length.

Investment properties are valued annually by independent valuers. The valuations
are on an open market value basis related to individual properties and separate values
are not attributed to land and buildings. The valuations are incorporated in the annual
accounts. Increases in valuation are credited to the investment properties revaluation
reserve. Decreases in valuation are first set off against increases on earlier valuations
on a portfolio basis and thereafter are debited to operating profit. Any subsequent
increases are credited to operating profit up to the amount previously debited.

Upon the disposal of an investment property, the relevant portion of the revaluation
reserve realised in respect of previous valuations is released from the investment
properties revaluation reserve to the profit and loss account.

Property, plant and equipment

Land use rights and buildings other than investment properties are stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation and depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.

Amortisation of land use rights is calculated to write off their cost less accumulated
impairment losses on a straight-line basis over the unexpired land use period of 20 to
50 years.

Depreciation of buildings is calculated to write off their cost less accumulated
impairment losses on a straight-line basis over the unexpired land use period of 20 to
50 years or their expected useful lives to the Group, whichever is shorter, after taking
into account their estimated residual value.
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(Prepared in accordance with HK GAAP)

1 Principal accounting policies (continued)

(d) Fixed assets (continued)

(ii)

(ifi)

(iv)

Property, plant and equipment (continued) -

Other tangible fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses. Depreciation is calculated at rates sufficient to write
off their cost less accumulated impairment losses over their estimated useful lives on
a straight-line basis after taking into account their estimated residual value. The principal
estimated useful lives are as follows:

Plant, machinery and equipment 5-15 years
Motor vehicles and office equipments 5-10years

Impairment and gain or loss on sale

At each balance sheet date, both internal and external sources of information are
considered to assess whether there is any indication that assets included in properties
under construction and property, plant and equipment are impaired. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated and where relevant,
an impairment loss is recognised to reduce the asset to its recoverable amount. Such
impairment losses are recognised in the profit and loss account except where the
asset is carried at valuation and the impairment loss does not exceed the revaluation
surplus for that same asset, in which case it is treated as a revaluation decrease.

The gain or loss on disposal of a fixed asset other than investment properties is the
difference between the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant
asset, and is recognised in the profit and loss account. Any revaluation reserve balance
remaining attributable to the relevant asset is transferred to retained earnings and is
shown as a movement in reserves.

Construction in progress

Construction in progress is stated at cost less impairment losses. Cost comprises all
direct and indirect costs of acquisition or construction of buildings and plant and
machinery as well as interest expenses on the related funds borrowed during the
construction, installation and testing periods prior to the commissioning date. Plant is
considered to be commissioned when it is capable of producing saleable quality output
in commercial quantities on an ongoing basis.

CiiEEhos)
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(Prepared in accordance with HK GAAP)

Principal accounting policies (continued)

(e)

()

(@)

Government grants

A government grant is recognised, when there is a reasonable assurance that the Group will
comply with the conditions attaching with it and that the grant will be received.

Grants relating to income are deferred and recognised in the profit and loss account over the
period necessary to match them with the costs they are intended to compensate.

Government grants relating to the purchase of fixed assets are included in non-current
liabilities as deferred income and are credited to the profit and loss account on a straight-line
basis over the expected lives of the related assets.

Operating leases

Leases where substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of assets remain with the
leasing company are accounted for as operating leases. Payments made under operating
leases net of any incentives received from the leasing company are charged to the profit and
loss account on a straight-line basis over the lease periods.

Investments in securities
(i) Investment securities
Investment securities are stated at cost less any provision for impairment (osses.

The carrying amounts of individual investments are reviewed at each balance sheet
date to assess whether the fair values have declined below the carrying amounts.
When a decline other than temporary has occurred, the carrying amount of such
securities will be reduced to its fair value. The impairment loss is recognised as an
expense in the profit and loss account. This impairment loss is written back to profit
and loss account when the circumstances and events that led to the write-downs or
write-offs cease to exist and there is persuasive evidence that the new circumstances
and events will persist for the foreseeable future.

(i)  Trading securities

Trading securities are carried at fair value. At each balance sheet date, the net
unrealised gains or losses arising from the changes in fair value of trading securities
are recognised in the profit and loss account. Profits or losses on disposal of trading
securities, representing the difference between the net sales proceeds and the carrying
amounts, are recognised in the profit and loss account as they arise.
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(Prepared in accordance with HK GAAP)

1

Principal accounting policies (continued)

()

®

)

Inventories

Inventories comprise stocks and work in progress and are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost, calculated on the first-in, first-out basis, comprises materials, direct
labour and an appropriate proportion of all production overhead expenditure. Net realisable
value is determined on the basis of anticipated sales proceeds less estimated selling
expenses.

Accounts receivable

Provision is made against accounts receivable to the extent they are considered to be doubtful.
Accounts receivable in the balance sheet are stated net of such provision.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are carried in the balance sheet at cost. For the purposes of the
cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand, deposits held at
call with banks, cash investments with a maturity of three months or less from date of
investment and bank overdrafts.

Employee benefits
(i) Pension obligation

The Group’s contributions to the defined contribution retirement scheme organised
by the Guangzhou People’s Municipal Government are expensed when services are
rendered by the employees.

(i Housing benefit

The Group’s contributions to the housing fund scheme organised by the Guangzhou
People’s Municipal Government are expensed when services are rendered by the
employees.

Costs of the housing allowance scheme designed and implemented by the Group are
expensed when a legal or constructive obligation is established.

(i)  Medical insurance

The Group’s contributions to the defined contribution medical insurance scheme
organised by the Guangzhou People’s Municipal Government for existing employees
are expensed when services are rendered by the employees.

Contributions to the defined contribution medical insurance scheme for retired and
retiring employees are accrued based on the period of their past services. Where the
contributions do not fall due wholly within twelve months, the contributions payable
are discounted using the discount rate determined by reference to market yields at
the balance sheet date on high quality investments.

Further information of the Group’s employee benefits is set out in Note 26.
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1 Principal accounting policies (continued)

0

(m)

Deferred taxation

Deferred taxation is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences
arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the
accounts. Taxation rates enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date are
used to determine deferred taxation.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit
will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred taxation is provided on temporary differences arising on investments in subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures, except where the timing of the reversal of the temporary
difference can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse
in the foreseeable future.

In prior year, deferred taxation was accounted for at the current taxation rate in respect of
timing differences between profit as computed for taxation purposes and profit as stated in
the accounts to the extent that a liability or an asset was expected to be payable or recoverable
in the foreseeable future. The adoption of the new SSAP 12 represents a change in accounting
policy, which has been applied retrospectively so that the comparatives presented have
been restated to conform to the changed policy.

As detailed in Note 22 to the accounts, opening retained earnings at 1 January 2002 and
2003 have been increased by Rmb37,550,000 and Rmb43,492,000, respectively, which
represent the unprovided net deferred tax assets. Capital reserve at 1 January 2002 and
2003 have been reduced by Rmb45,130,000 and Rmb44,478,000, respectively, which

- represent the-unprovided deferred tax liabilities on the revaluation surplus arising from the

revaluation of fixed assets in 1997. The combined effect has resulted in an increase in deferred
tax assets and deferred tax liabilities as at 31 December 2002 by Rmb49,075,000 and
Rmb45,873,000, respectively and an increase in the profit for the year ended 31 December
2002 by Rmb6,594,000.

Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence
will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future
events not wholly within the control of the Group. It can also be a present obligation arising
from past events that is not recognised because it is not probable that outflow of economic
resources will be required or the amount of obligation cannot be measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed in the notes to the accounts. When a
change in the probability of an outflow occurs so that the outflow is probable, it will then be
recognised as a provision.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence will
be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain events not
wholly within the control of the Group.

Contingent assets are not recognised but are disclosed in the notes to the accounts when
an inflow of economic benefits is probable. When inflow is virtually certain, an asset is
recognised.

Ty TR T
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1 Principal accounting policies (continued)

(m)

(o)

®

Revenue recognition

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised on the transfer of risks and rewards of
ownership, which generally coincides with the time when the goods are delivered to customers
and title has passed.

Revenue from provision of services is recognised when the services are rendered.

Interest income is recognised on a time proportion basis, taking into account the principal
amounts outstanding and the interest rates applicable.

Royalty income is recognised on an accrual basis.
Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive payment is established.
Operating lease rental income is recognised on a straight-line basis.

Promotional income from suppliers is recognised when the right to receive payment is
established.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of
an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use
or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset.

All other borrowing costs are charged to the profit and loss account in the year in which they
are incurred.

Segment reporiing

In accordance with the Group’s internal financial reporting the Group has determined that
business segments be presented as the primary reporting format. No geographical segments
are presented unless the turnover and results attributable to the markets outside the PRC
are more than 10% of the Group’s consolidated turnover and consolidated results.

Unallocated costs represent corporate expenses. Segment assets consist primarily of
intangible assets, fixed assets, inventories, receivables and operating cash, and mainly
exclude investments in securities and investment properties. Segment liabilities comprise
operating liabilities and exclude items such as taxation and certain corporate borrowings.
Capital expenditure comprises additions to intangible assets, fixed assets and construction
in progress, including additions resulting from acquisition through purchase of subsidiaries.
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(Prepared in accordance with HK GAAP)

2 Turnover, revenue and segment information

The Group is principally engaged in the manufacturing and sales of Chinese Patent Medicine
(“CPM”) and the wholesale, retail, import and export of western pharmaceutical products, CPM,
Chinese raw medicine and medical apparatus. Revenues recognised during the year are as follows:

2003 2002
T Rmb’000 Rmb’000
Turnover:
Sales of goods ...8973113 | 5943,823
Other revenues:
Government grants and subsidies 290 8,432
Income arising from dilution of interest in a subsidiary 3,565 —
Income arising from disposal of a joint venture 934 —
Income arising from disposal of a subsidiary 1,786 —
Interest income 11,210 13,475
Gross rental income from investment properties 21,286 21,347
Gross rental income from other properties 9,201 11,060
Promotional income from suppliers 12,947 8,556
Royalty income 1,600 851
Dividend income from unlisted investments 4,880 4,652
Others 7,224 —
74,923 68,373
Total revenue 7,048,036 6,012,1 95
The Group is organised into the following business segments:
. Manufacturing of CPM;
. Wholesale of western pharmaceutical products, CPM, Chinese raw medicine and medical
apparatus;
. Retail of western pharmaceutical products, CPM, Chinese raw medicine and medical
apparatus;
. Import and export of western pharmaceutical products.

Other operations of the Group mainly comprise holding of investment properties and investment
securities, neither of which are of a sufficient size to be separately reported.
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2 Turnover, revenue and segment information (continued)
Year ended 31 December 2003
Import and
Manufacturing Wholesale Retail export Elimination Group
Rmb’000  Rmb’000 Rmb'000  Rmb’'000  Rmb’000  Rmb’000
Turnover
External 1,890,364 4,544,134 354,438 184,177 — 6,973,113
Internal 27,648 189,671 17,015 33,568 (267,902) —
Total ,1’91.8’013 ‘ 4,7331{5_05 371 453 217,745 (267,902) 6,973,113
Segment results 280,038 95,055 5205 1565 (12,44§) 369,418
Unallocated costs (27,881)
Operating profit 341,537
Finance costs (34,172)
Share of profits less losses of
- Associated companigs 464 464
Profit before taxation 307,829
Taxation (148,393)
Profit after taxation 159,436
Minority interests (12,769)
Net profit 146,667
Segment assets 2,193,747 2,004,166 179,183 120,949 (309,913} 4,188,132
Interests in associated companies 2,644 2,644
Unallocated assets 763,315
Total assets 4,954,091
Segment liabilities 658,459 1,642,500 63,367 71,444 (309,913) 2,125,857
Unaliocated liabilities 94,190
Total liabilities 2,220,047
Capital expenditure 303,812 54,732 4,145 665 363,354
Depreciation 80,901 20,481 4,064 209 105,655
Amortisation charge 7,468 3,015 - 30 10,514
Impairment charge 1,186 — — — 1,186
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2 Turnover, revenue and segment information (continued)

Year ended 31 December 2002 (As restated)

Import and
Manufacturing Wholesale Retail export Elimination Group
Rmb’000 Rmb’000 Rmb'000  Rmb’000  Rmb’000  Rmb’000
Turnover
External 1,743,449 3,794,686 307,501 98,187 — 5943823
Internal 25,585 250,757 8,944 28,280 (313,566) —
Total ) 1,769,034 ﬁ4,045,443 316,445 126,467 (313,566) i943,823
Segment results . 194,804 74681 76583 2670 (11,625) 268,193
Unallocated costs (19,904)
Operating profit 248,289
Finance costs (28,804)
Share of profits less fosses of
— Jointly controlled entities (23,435) (23,435)
- Associated companies 310 310
Profit before taxation 196,360
Taxation {82,892)
Profit after taxation 113,468
Minority interests (12,313)
Net profit 101,155
Segment assets 2,006,187 1,684,881 180,333 80,524 (271,614) 3,680,311
Interests in joint ventures 6,208 6,208
Interests in associated companies 2,930 2,930
Unallocated assets 720,761
Total assets 4,410,210
Segment liabilities 506,391 1,322,774 65,997 69,765 (271,614) 1,693,313
Unallocated liabilities 113,745
Total liabilities 1,807,058
Capital expenditure 219,521 26,174 6,487 311 252,493
Depreciation 67,337 16,295 5,408 201 89,241
Amortisation charge 7,401 3,015 - 30 10,446

Impairment charge 18,099 1,930 — — 20,029

o= e R s = = — e

—
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3  Operating profit

Operating profit is stated after charging and crediting the following:

2003 2002
Rmb’000 Rmb’000
Charging:
Depreciation and amortisation of fixed assets 105,655 89,241
Amortisation of intangible assets 10,514 10,446
Impairment charge of fixed assets (Note a) 1,186 20,029
Impairment charge of investment securities (Note c) 4,671 —
Outgoings in respect of investment properties 4,030 4,037
Outgoings in respect of other properties 1,840 2,212
Loss on disposal of fixed assets 4,917 3,696
Loss on disposal of a joint venture — 16
Realised losses on disposal of trading securities - 1,929
Unrealised losses on trading securities — 1,714
Research and development costs 35,536 26,500
Auditors’ remuneration 3,180 3,187
Staff costs:
Pension benefit (Note 26(a)) 58,311 50,537
Housing fund (Note 26(b)) 22,113 12,066
Medical insurance (Note 26(c)) 24,244 97,233
Housing allowances (Note 26(d)) 19,290 7,817
Salaries, wages and other staff benefits 436,145 412,808
Operating leases for land and buildings 30,716 27,315
Crediting:
Reversal of impairment charge of trading securities (Note b) 690 —
Recovery of bad debts previously written off 9,437 —
Reversal of write-down of inventories — 78§
Note:
(a Impairment charge mainly arose as a result of technology upgrade, modernisation of production facilities and significant
decline in market value of the assets.
(b) Reversal of impairment charge of trading securities was a result of the increase in market values of the securities
(Note 186).
fc) Impairment charge of investment securities was a result of the decrease in fair value at balance sheet date.
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4 Finance costs

2003 2002

Rmb’000 Rmb’000

Interest on bank loans 37,385 27,918
Other incidental borrowing costs 1,966 1,244
Total borrowing costs incurred 39,351 29,162
Less: interest capitalised in construction in progress (5,179) (358)
34,172 28,804

Ja—

The capitalisation rate applied to funds borrowed generally and used for the development of
construction in progress is approximately 5.49% (2002: 5.49%).

5 Taxation

The amount of taxation charged to the consolidated profit and loss account represents:

2003 2002
Rmb’000 Rmb’000
Current taxation:
- PRC enterprise income tax 134,425 113,123
Deferred taxation relating to the origination and
reversal of temporary differences 13,882 (30,341)
148,307 82,782
Share of taxation attributable to:
- Jointly controlled entities — —
- Associated companies 86 110
Taxation charges 148,393 82,892

The PRC enterprise income tax has been provided at the principal rate of 33% (2002: 33%) on the
estimated assessable profit for the year.
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Taxatlion (continued)

The taxation on the Group’s profit before taxation differs from the theoretical amount that would
arise using the taxation rate of the PRC enterprise income tax as follows:

2003 2002

Rmb’000 Rmb’000

Profit before taxation 307,829 196,360
Calculated at a taxation rate of 33% (2002: 33%) 101,584 64,799
Effect of different taxation rates in a subsidiary (2,488) (2,666)
Income not subject to taxation (13,350) (6,371)
Expenses not deductible for taxation purposes 63,995 50,217
Tax refund (1,348) (23,087)
Taxation charges 148,393 ( 82,893

An amount of Rmb1,348,000 relating to income tax credits granted for a reason of qualified purchase
of domestic equipment has been net off against the taxation charges for the year 2003.

Pursuant to a document [2000] 1063 issued by the Guangzhou Finance Bureau, enterprise income
tax of listed companies in Guangzhou City in 2001 was initially based on the unified tax rate of 33%
and the portion over 15% of the tax attributable to local government (i.e., 60% of the 18% of tax)
was refunded. Accordingly, the effective income tax refund rate of 2001 was 10.8%. The Company
and its major subsidiaries were effectively taxed at 22.2% in the year 2001.

An amount of Rmb23,087,000 relating to the said tax refund for tax paid during the second half of
2001 was received and net off against the taxation charges for the year 2002.

There is no such income tax refund since year 2002.

Companies comprising the Group that are incorporated outside the PRC are liable to pay income
tax on their taxable income in accordance with the tax laws of the countries in which they operated.

Profit attributable to shareholders

The profit attributable to shareholders is dealt with in the accounts of the Company to the extent of
Rmb67,000,000 (2002: Rmb42,910,000).

Earnings per share

The calculation of earnings per share for the year ended 31 December 2003 is based on the net
profit of Rmb 146,667,000 (2002: Rmb101,155,000) and the 810,900,000 shares (2002: 810,900,000
shares) in issue.
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(Prepared in accordance with HK GAAP)

8 Directors’ and senior management’s emoluments
(a) Directors’, supervisors’ and senior management’s emoluments

The aggregate amounts of emoluments payable to directors, supervisors and senior
management of the Company during the year are as follows:

2003 2002
Rmb’000 Rmb’000
Fees
Executive directors — —
Non-executive directors ' 309 313
Supervisors — —
Other emoluments for executive directors
Basic salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 866 865
Bonuses 2,438 1,863
Retirement benefits 57 49
Other emoluments for supervisors
Basic salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 242 273
Bonuses 321 288
Retirement benefits 14 12
Other emoluments for senior management
Basic salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 370 383
Bonuses 489 875
Retirement benefits 28 26
5,134 4,947

The emoluments for each of the Company’s directors (executive and non-executive),
supervisors and senior management, totalling 15 individuals (2002: 16 individuals) are within
the band of Nil to Rmb1,000,000 for the years ended 31 December 2003 and 31 December
2002.

No director, supervisor or senior management waived emoluments in respect of the years
ended 31 December 2003 and 31 December 2002.
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(Prepared in acco}dandé with HK GAAP)

8

Directors’ and senior management’s emoluments (continued)

()

Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the Group for the year include
four (2002: three) directors whose emoluments are reflected in the analysis presented above.
The emoluments payable to the remaining one (2002: two) individual during the year are as
follows:

2003 2002

Rmb’000 Bmb’000

Basic salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 140 456
Bonuses 690 1,118
Retirement benefits 14 25
844 1,599

The emoluments fell within the following band:

Number of individuals

2003 2002
Emolument bands
Nil - Rmb1,000,000 1 1
Rmb1,000,001 - Rmb1,500,000 — 1
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Intangible assets

(Prepared in accordance with HK GAAP)

Group
Staff quarters
reform costs Patent Total
Rmb’000 Rmb’000 Rmb’000
For the year ended 31 December 2003
Net book value at 1 January 2003 69,017 —_ 69,017
Additions —_ 2,980 2,980
Amortisation charge (10,446) (68) (10,514)
Net book value at 31 December 2003 _ 58,571 _ 2,912 _ 61,483
At 31 December 2003
Cost 104,467 2,980 107,447
Accumulated amortisation (45,896) (68) (45,964)
Net book value __ SS,E _ 2,913 _ 61,483
At 31 December 2002
Cost 104,467 — 104,467
Accumulated amortisation (35,450) — (35,450)
Net book value _ 69,017 __ — ) 69,0E
Company
2003 2002
Rmb’000 Rmb’000
Staff quarters reform costs
Net book value at 1 January 1,701 1,944
Amortisation charge (243) (243)
Net book value at 31 December _ 1,458 _ 1 ,70l
At 31 December
Cost 2,524 2,524
Accumulated amortisation (1,066) (823)
Net book value 1,@ 1,701
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10 Fixed assets

Group
Plant,
machinery
Investment  Land use and Motor
properties rights  Buildings equipment vehicles Total
Rmb'000  Rmb'000 Rmb'000 Rmb'000  Rmb'000  Rmb'000
Cost or valuation
At 1 January 2003 8,712 108,569 758,538 604,877 76,858 1,557,554
Additions — 651 30,861 24,986 16,514 73,012
Transfer from construction in progress — — 179,836 61,298 2,549 243,683
Disposals - — (8,558) (26,908) (4,701) (40,167)
At 31 December 2003 8,712 109,220 960,677 664,253 91,220 1,834,082
Accumulated depreciation
and amortisation
At 1 January 2003 - 14,753 159,920 304,047 46,600 525,320
Charge for the year — 3,383 40,480 52,888 8,904 105,655
Impairment charge (Note 3) — — — 1,186 — 1,186
Disposals - — (1,856) {24,327) (3,813) (29,996)
At 31 December 2003 - 18,136 198,544 333,794 51,691 602,1_65
Net book value
At 31 December 2003 ___8mn2 91,084 762,133 330,452 39,529 1,231,91Z
At 31 December 2002 8712 93816 598,618 300,830 30,258 1,032,234
The analysis of the cost or valuation at 31 December 2003 of the above assets is as follows:
At cost — 109,220 960,677 664,253 91,220 1,825,370
At 2003 valuation 8,712 — — — — 8,712
8,712 109,220 960,677 664,253 91,220 1,834,083

The analysis of the cost or valuation at 31 December 2002 of the above assets is as follows:
At cost — 108,569 758,538 604,877 76,858 1,548,842
At 2002 valuation 8,712 — — — — 8,712

__ 872 108,569 758,538 604,877 76,858 1,557,554
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10 Fixed assets (continued)

Company
Plant,
machinery
and Motor
Buildings equipment vehicles Total
Rmb'000 Rmb'000 Rmb'000 Rmb'000
Cost
At 1 January 2003 24,028 10,970 662 35,660
Additions 1,027 5,184 868 7,079
Disposals — (247) — (247)
At 31 December 2003 25,055 15,907 1,530 42,492
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 January 2003 11,169 4,706 165 16,040
Charge for the year 2,307 2,471 134 4,912
Disposals — (200) — (200)
At 31 December 2003 13,476 6,977 299 20,752
Net book value
At 31 December 2003 . 11,5L9 _ 8,930 1,231 21 ,74Q
At 31 December 2002 12,859 6,264 497 ] 19,620

All of the Group’s investment properties and buildings are located in the PRC, except for a property
with a net book value of Rmb@,819,000 (2002: Rmb10,282,000) which is located in Hong Kong.
The land use rights of the land where the Group’s investment properties and buildings situated in
the PRC were granted by the State Land Administration Bureau of Guangzhou for a period of 20 to
50 years.

Investment properties have been revalued at their open market value by Mr. K.K. Ip of Greater
China Appraisal Limited, an independent valuer, at 31 December 2003. Mr. K.K. Ip is a Chartered
~ Valuation Surveyor and a Registered Professional Surveyor.

At 31 December 2003, the net book value of fixed assets pledged as security for the Group’s bank
loans amounted to Rmb118,400,000 (2002: Rmb118,030,000).
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11

12

13

Construction in progress

Group Company

2003 2002 2003 2002

Rmb’000 Rmb'000 Rmb’000 Rmb’000

At 1 January 236,616 174,212 4,330 —
Additions 312,996 134,255 — 4,330
Acquisition of a subsidiary — 363 — —
Transfer to fixed assets (243,683) (72,214) (4,330) —
At 31 December , 305,_929 _ 2736,6‘1”6‘ , — _ 4,330

Construction in progress included interest capitalised amounted to Rmb62,540 (2002:
Rmb13,487,000).

Government grants of Rmb1,317,000 relating to the construction of fixed assets are deducted
from the carrying amount of the assets.

Investments in subsidiaries

Company
2003 2002
Rmb’000 Rmb’000
Unlisted shares, at cost 1,504,535 1,484,435
Particulars of principal subsidiaries are set out in Note 30.
Interests in joint ventures
Jointly controlled entities
Group
2003 2002
Rmb’000 Rmb’000
Share of net assets = 6,208

Unlisted shares, at cost —_ 39,644
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Interests in associated companies

Share of net assets

Unlisted shares, at cost

(Prepared in accordance with HK GAAP)

Group
2003 2002
Rmb’000 Rmb’000
5,292 2,930
5,469 2,338

At 31 December 2003 the Group held shares in the following major associated companies:

Name

Guangzhou Zhong Fu
Medical Co., Ltd.

Ming Tai Enterprise
(Thailand) Ltd.

Guangzhou Jihua
Bic-chemical Co., Ltd.

PT. Purusa Bhakti

Guangzhou Jinshen
Medical Co., Ltd.

Particulars
of equity held

Registered capital:
Rmb800,000

Ordinary shares
of Baht1 each

Registered capital;
Rmb 10,000,000

Ordinary shares of
US$1 each

Registered capital:
Rmb1,500,000

Place of
establishment/
registration
PRC

Thailand

PRC

Indonesia

PRC

% of
equity interest
50

35.1

24

45.6

45

Principal
activities

Production of
CPM

Dormant

Development,
manufacture
and sales of
medical
apparatus and
instruments

Dormant
Production of

healthcare
medicine




(Prepared in accordance with HK AP) '

15 Investment securities

Group Company
2003 2002 2003 2002
Rmb'000 Rmb'000 RmMb’'000 Rmb'000
Unlisted equity securities 68,873 77,802 68,521 70,725

At 31 December 2003 and 2002, all investment securities were stated at cost less any provision for
impairment losses.

The amount of provision for the unlisted equity securities at 31 December 2003 was Rmb4,671,000
(2002: Nil).

16 Trading securities

Group Company
2003 2002 2003 2002
Rmb'000 RAmb'000 Rmb'000 Rmb'000
Equity securities, listed in the PRC 3,565 2,742 3,565 2,742
Other unlisted investments 45,935 58,452 45,935 58,452
49,500 61,194 49,500 611 9&
Market value of listed investments _ 4,472 _ 2,742 » 4,47§ 2,743
17 Inventories
Group
2003 2002
Rmb’000 Rmb’000
Raw materials 116,341 106,295
Work-in-progress 62,652 35,134
Finished goods 80,768 85,135
Merchandise 802,337 613,929
Production supplies 5,802 8,026

1,067,900 848,519
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(Prepared in accordance wn‘h HK GAAP)

Trade and other receivables

Group Company

2003 2002 2003 2002

Rmb'000 Rmb'000 Rmb'000 Rmb'000

Trade receivables (Note a) 930,728 689,976 — —

Other receivables and prepayments 335,238 274,599 7,840 5,593

Due from:

Joint ventures (Note b) e 3,400 — —

Associated companies (Note b) — 3,420 — —

Subsidiaries (Note c) — _— 307,991 271,013
Ultimate holding company and

fellow subsidiaries (Note b) 23,809 11,930 3,795 9,186

Dividend receivable from subsidiaries —_ — 62,499 56,751

1,289,775 983,325 382,125 342,543

(a) Trade receivables generated from credit sales generally have credit terms of one to three
months. The ageing analysis of the trade receivables net of doubtful debt provision at 31
December 2003 is as follows:

Group
2003 2002
Rmb’000 Rmb’'000
Within 6 months 860,302 646,977
6 months to 1 year 53,452 39,972
Over 1 year 16,974 3,027
930,728 689,976

Provision is made for long outstanding and doubtful debts based on reviews of the status of
individual accounts. '

(b)  The amounts due are unsecured, interest free and repayable on demand.

(c)  The amounts due are unsecured, interest bearing at commercial market rate and repayable
on demand.
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20

Trade and other payables

Group Company

2003 2002 2003 2002

Rmb'000 Rmb'000 Rmb’'000 Rmb'000

Trade payables (Note a) 857,682 663,105 — _—

Due to subsidiaries (Note b) — — 36,407 344
Due to ultimate holding company

(Note b) 13,762 14,099 —_ —

Other payables and
accrued charges 399,684 327,212 13,956 20,148
1,271,128 1,004,416 ___ 50,363 20,492

(a)  The ageing analysis of the trade payables at 31 December 2003 is as follows:

Group
2003 2002
Rmb’000 Rmb’000
Within 1 year 811,038 617,433
1 year to 2 years 17,399 13,695
Over 2 years 29,245 31,977
857,682 663,105

(b)  The amounts due are unsecured, interest free and have no fixed term of repayments.

Short-term bank loans

Group
2003 2002
Rmb’000 Rmb’000
Secured 148,300 155,000
Unsecured 515,930 400,340

664,230 555,340
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(Prepared in accordance with HK GAAP)

21 Share capital

Registered, issued and fully paid

2003 2002
No. of shares Rmb’000 No. of shares Rmb’000
State Shares 513,000,000 513,000 513,000,000 513,000
H Shares 219,900,000 219,900 219,900,000 219,900
A Shares 78,000,000 78,000 78,000,000 78,000
Total ' ﬁ810,900,000 _ 810,900 £1 0,900,000 810,900
22 Reserves
Group
Statutory Statutory Discretionary
Share Capital surplus public surplus Retained
premium reserve reserve welfare reserve earnings Total
(Note a) (Note b) {Note b) (Note b)
Rmb'000 Rmb'000 Rmb'000 Rmb'000 Rmb'000 Rmb'000 Rmb'000

At 1 January 2002,

as previously reported 780,405 440,151 120,402 92,758 37,861 125,953 1,597,530
Changes in accounting policy
- provision for net deferred

tax liabilities (Note 24) — {51,861) — - — 44,281 (7,580)
At 1 January 2002, as restated 780,405 388,290 120,402 92,758 37,861 170,234 1,589,950
2001 Final dividend paid - — - — - (48,654) (48,654)
Profit for the year — — - — — 101,155 101,155
Transfers — 1,881 40,233 16,971 28,205 (87,290) —
Qverprovision of share issue expenses 729 - — — - — 729
At 31 December 2002 781,134 390,171 160,635 109,729 66,066 135,445 1,643,180
| com—— = | e | m——1 [—a———— | m———— | momtem—
Representing:
2002 Final dividend proposed (Note ¢) 48,654
Others 86,791
Retained earnings at 31 December 2002 135,445
| et —
The Company and subsidiaries 781,134 390,171 160,635 109,729 66,066 172,394 1,680,129
Jointly controlled entities — — - — - (35,602) (35,602)
Associated companies - - — — — (1,347} (1,347)

781,134 390,171 160,635 109,729 66,066 135,445 1,643,180

u:l:ﬂ::‘:z;—;;é
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22 Reserves (continued)

At 1 January 2003,
as previously reported
Change in accounting policy
- provision for net deferred
tax liabilities (Note 24)

At 1 January 2003, as restated

Profit for the year

2002 Final dividend paid

Transfers

Release upon disposal of a subsidiary

At 31 December 2003

Representing:
2003 Final dividend proposed (Note ¢)
Others

Retained earnings at 31 December 2003

The Company and subsidiaries
Associated companies

Group
Statutory Statutory Discretionary
Share Capital surplus public surplus Retained
premium reserve reserve welfare reserve earnings Total
(Note a) (Note b) (Note b) (Note b)
Rmb'000 Rmb'000 Rmb'000 Rmb'000 Rmb'000 Rmb'000 Rmb'000
781,134 443355 160,635 109,729 66,066 83,247 1,644,166
- (53,184) — — — 52,198 (9886)
781,134 390,171 160,635 109,729 66,066 135,445 1,643,180
— — — — - 146,667 146,667
- - - - - (48,654) (48,654)
- 7,418 33,978 24,893 21,821 (88,110) -
— - (307) (163) {206) - {676)
781,134 397,589 194,306 134,459 87,681 145,348 1,740,517
48,654
96,694
145,348
e
781,134 397,589 194,306 134,459 87,681 150,904 1,746,073
— — — — — (5,556) (5,556)
781,134 397,589 194,306 134,459 87,681 145,348 1,740,517
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(Prepared in accordance with HK GAAP)

22 Reserves (continued)

Company

Statutory  Statutory
Share Capital surplus public  Retained
premium reserve  Reserve welfare  earnings Total

(Notea)  (Noteb) {Note b)
Rmb'000 Rmb'000 Rmb'000  Rmb'000  Rmb'000  Rmb'000

At 1 January 2002 780,405 394,259 57,096 44 411 63,448 1,339,619
2001 Final dividend paid - — — — (48,654) (48,654)
Profit for the year — — — — 65,679 65,679
Transfers — — 15,179 7,590 (22,769) —
Reversal of overprovision of

share issue expenses 729 — — — — 729
At 31 December 2002 781,134 394,259 72,275 52001 57,704 1,357,373
Representing:

2002 Final dividend

proposed (Note c) 48,654
Others 9,050

Retained earnings at

31 December 2002 57,704
At 1 January 2003 781,134 394,259 72,275 52,001 57,704 1,357,373
2002 Final dividend paid — — - — (48,654) (48,654)
Profit for the year — — — — 92,093 92,093
Transfers — 3,565 14,352 7,176 (25,093) -
At 31 December 2003 781,134 397,824 86,627 59,177 76,050 1,400,812
Representing:
2003 Final dividend
proposed (Note ¢) 48,654
Others 27,396

Retained earnings at 31 December 2003 76,050




T T T T T N e AN e L RS

R R e R L T P S TS il ML B e e & fom . v i

(Prepared }n accofdance w)'!h HK GAAP)

22 Reserves (continued)
(a) Capital reserve
Transfers from retained earnings included:

- an amount of Rmb254,000 (2002: Rmb3,204,000), which is government grants received
net of minority interests during the year:

- an amount of Rmb3,565,000 (2002: Nil), which is income arising from dilution of interest
in a subsidiary;

- an amount of Rmb4,922,000 (2002: Nil), which is waiver of debts net of minority
interests entitled to the subsidiaries during the year.

Transfer to retained earnings was:

- an amount of Rmb1,323,000 (2002: Rmb1,323,000), which is the depreciation on
revalued fixed assets net of deferred tax credits.

(b) Surplus reserve

The Company, its subsidiaries, jointly controlled entities and associated companies
established in the PRC (“PRC Companies”) are required to maintain certain surplus reserves
by transferring from their profit after taxation in accordance with the relevant laws and
regulations and, if applicable, Articles of Association, before any dividend is declared and
paid.

Statutory surplus reserve

The PRC Companies are required to transfer 10% of their profit after taxation, in accordance
with the PRC accounting standards and systems, to the statutory surplus reserve fund until
the balance reaches 50% of their respective registered capital, where further transfers will
be at their directors’ recommendation. The statutory surplus reserve fund can only be used
to make up prior year losses or to increase share capital.

Statutory public welfare reserve

The PRC Companies are required to transfer 5% to 10% of their profit after taxation calculated
in accordance with PRC accounting standards and systems to the statutory public welfare
fund. The statutory public welfare fund can only be used for capital expenditure on employees’
collective welfare facilities. The fund is non-distributable other than in liquidation.
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(Prepared in accordance with HK GAAF)

22 Reserves (continued)

()

©

(d)

Surplus reserve (continued)
Discretionary surplus reserve
In accordance with relevant PRC regulations and subject to approval by shareholders in

general meeting, discretionary surplus reserve fund can be used to reduce any losses
incurred, to increase share capital, and to pay dividends.

Dividends
2003 2002
Rmb’000 Rmb’'000
Final, proposed, of Rmb0.06
(2002: Rmb0.06) per share __ 48,654 48,654

At a meeting held on 26 March 2004, the directors declared a final dividend of Rmb0.06 per
ordinary share. The proposed dividend is not reflected as a dividend payable in these accounts,
but will be reflected as an appropriation of retained earnings for the year ending 31 December
2004.

Profit distribution

The net profit of the Company shall be applied in accordance with the following order:

(i) making up losses;

(i)  allocation to statutory surplus reserve fund;

(iiy  allocation to statutory public welfare fund;

(iv) allocation to discretionary surplus reserve fund - to be recommended by directors;
and

(v) payment of dividends.

According to the Company’s Articles of Association, the amount of retained profits available
for distribution to shareholders of the Company is the lower of the amount determined in
accordance with PRC accounting standards and systems and the amount determined in
accordance with HK GAAP. The amount of retained earnings available for distribution
determined in accordance with HK GAAP as at 31 December 2003 was Rmb76,050,000

(2002: Rmb57,704,000).

R
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23 Long-term liabilities

Group
2003 2002
Rmb’000 Rmb’'000
Bank loans
Secured 59,500 32,000
Unsecured 77,680 57,680
137,180 89,680
Current portion of long-term liabilities (30,000) —
» 107,180 89,680
The analysis of the above bank loans is as follows:
Wholly repayable within five years 137,180 89,680
Not wholly repayable within five years —_ —
137,180 89,680
At 31 December 2003, the Group’s bank loans were repayable as follows:
Within one year 30,000 —
In the second year 47,680 89,680
In the third to fifth year 59,500 —
After the fifth year — —
137,180 89,680
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(I;réb;rre(-j"in adéordance with HK GAAP)
Deferred taxation

Deferred taxation are calculated in full on temporary differences under the liability method using a
principal taxation rate of 33% (2002: 33%).

The movement on the deferred tax liabilities / (assets) account is as follows:

Group
2003 2002
Rmb’000 Rmb’000
At 1 January (26,589) 3,752
Deferred taxation charged / (credited) to profit and
loss account (Note 5) 13,882 (30,341)
At 31 December . (12,701) . (26,58%)

Deferred taxation of Rmb652,000 (2002: Rmb652,000) was transferred within shareholders’ equity
from revaluation reserves (Note 22 (a)) to retained earnings. This represents deferred taxation on
the difference between the actual depreciation on land and buildings, plant, machinery and
equipment and the equivalent depreciation based on the historical cost of land and buildings,
plant, machinery and equipment.

The movement in deferred tax assets and liabilities during the year is as follows:

Deferred tax assets Provisions Impairment of assets  Employee benefits Others Total

_ 2003 2002 2003 2002 2003 2002 2003 2002 2003 2002
Rmb000 Amb000 Rmb'000 Amb000 ARmb'000 AmbOO0 Rmb000 Amb000 Rmb'000 Rmb’000

A1 January (25335) (24785) (18,699) (18,002) (23:367) ~ (G01)  (454) (T2462) (47141)
Charged / {credited) to profit
and loss account 6,164 (550) 11,350 203 1623 (23387) (3.208) (1567) 15,928 (25,321)

At 31 December (oi71) (53%5)  (149) (186%9) (1764) (837 (849)  (B04T) (68%5) (12462)

e e B e R e
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(Prepared in accordance with HK GAAP)

24 Deferred taxation (continued)

Fixed assets Research and
Deferred tax liabilities revaluation development expenses Total
2003 2002 2003 2002 2003 2002
Rmb000  Rmb'000 Rmb'000  Rmb000  Rmb'000  Rmb'000
At 1 January 44,478 45,130 1,395 5,763 45,873 50,893
Charged / (credited) to profit and .
loss account (652) (652) (1,395) (4,368) (2,047) (5,020)
At 31 December 43,826 44,478 — 1,395 43,826 45,873
The amounts shown in the balance sheet include the following:
2003 2002
Rmb’000 Rmb’000
Deferred tax assets to be recovered after
more than 12 months 26,145 29,153
Deferred tax liabilities to be settled after
more than 12 months 43,174 _ 45,221




25 Notes to the consolidated cash flow statement

Reconciliation of operating profit to cash generated from operations

Operating profit

Amortisation of intangible assets

Depreciation and amortisation charges
Impairment charges

(Gain)/loss on disposal of a joint venture

Gain on disposal of a subsidiary

Realised losses on disposal of trading securities
Unrealised (gains)/losses on trading securities
Loss on disposal of fixed assets

Government grants recognised

Interest income

Interest expenses

Income from unlisted investments

Income arising from dilution of interest in a subsidiary

Operating profit before working capital changes
Increase in inventories

Increase in trade and other receivables
increase in trade and other payables

Increase in employee benefits

Cash generated from operations

(Prepared in accordance with HK GAAP)

As restated

2003 2002
Rmb’000 Rmb’000
307,365 219,485
10,514 10,446
105,655 89,241
5,857 20,029
(934) 16
(1,786) —
— 1,929
(699) 1,714
4,917 3,696
— (8,432)
(11,210) (13,475)
34,172 27,918
(4,880) (4,652)
(3,565) —
445,406 347,915
(220,060) (11,810)
(273,606) (200,234)
154,528 74,865
— 62,975
106, 268 273,711




(Prepared in accordance with

25 Notes to the consolidated cash flow statement (continued)

()

(©

Analysis of changes in financing during the year

At 1 January
Reversal of overprovision
of share issue expenses
Acquisition of a subsidiary
Cash contribution by
minority shareholders
Non-cash contribution by
minority shareholders
(Note 25(c))
Minority interests’
share of profits
Cash inflows
Dividend paid to
minority shareholders
Changes arising from
dilution of interest
in a subsidiary

At 31 December

Share capital including

Bank loans and

premium Minority interests other liabilities
As restated As restated As restated
2003 2002 2003 2002 2003 2002
Rmb’000  Rmb'000 Rmb’000  Rmb'000  Rmb’000 Rmb’000
1,592,034 1,591,305 149,072 127,526 645,020 442,680
- 729 - - - —
- — - 8,973 - 1,850
- - 7,650 6,545 - -
- — 25,634 — - -
- - 12,769 12,313 - -
- - - — 236,345 200,490
- - (8,933) (6,285) - —
- — (3,565) - - -
1,592,034 1,592,034 182,627 149,072 881,365 645,020

Major non-cash transactions

During the year, Guangzhou Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited (“GZPHL”) made a additional
capital contribution of Rmb25,634,000 to Guangzhou Hanfang Contemporary Chinese
Medicine Research and Development Co., Ltd. (*GZ Hanfang”
GZPHL is the minority shareholder of GZ Hanfang. The cap
land, buildings and machinery.

), a subsidiary of the Company.
ital consideration is in form of
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(Prepared in accordance with HK GAAP)

Notes to the consolidated cash flow statement (continued)

(d)

Disposal of a subsidiary

Current assets
Total liabilities

Net assets

Net assets sold

Reclassifications from shareholders’ equity
- reserves (Note 22)

Proceeds from sale

Gain on disposal of a subsidiary

Less: return of investment

Net gain on disposal of a subsidiary
Taxation thereon

After-tax gain on disposal

The net cash inflow on sale is determined as follows:

Net proceeds from sale
Less: cash and cash equivalents in a subsidiary sold

Sales of a subsidiary, net of cash disposed

2003 2002
Rmb’000 Rmb’000

(1,174) —
(23) —

(1,197) A —

(1,077) —

676 —
4,734 —

4,333 —
(2,000) —

2,333 —
(547) —_—

1,786 —

2003 2002
Rmb’000 Rmb’000

2,734 —
(1,165) —

1,569 —
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Notes to the consolidated cash flow statement (continued)

(e}  Analysis of balances of cash and cash equivalent

2003 2002
Rmb’000 Rmb’000
Bank balances and cash on hand 816,889 1,019,903
Less: Deposits pledged with a bank for
banking facilities granted to the Group — (21,119)
816,889 998,784
Employee benefits
Group
2003 2002
Rmb’000 Rmb’000
Medical insurance scheme (Note c) 64,333 67,955
Housing allowances scheme (Note d) 12,062 4,154
76,395 72,109
Less: Current portion of employee benefits included
in other payables and accrued charges (17,537) (9,134)
58,858 , 62,975

As stipulated by the relevant regulations of the PRC, the Company and its subsidiaries in the
Guangzhou City have participated in a number of defined contribution employees benefit plans for
its existing and retired employees organised by the government. The Group has no other material
obligation for payment of employee benefits, including any post-employment benefits, beyond the
schemes as described below:

(@) Pension scheme

All employees are entitled to retirement pension benefits equal to a fixed proportion of their
salary at their normal retirement age. The Group’s annual obligation for payment of this
pension contribution is calculated at a rate of approximately 20% based on the total salaries
of its employees.

The Group has no contributions payable to the pension scheme at the year-end (2002: Nil).
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(Prepared in accordance with HK GAAF)

26 Employee benefits (continued)

()

(c)

(d)

Housing fund scheme

The Company and its subsidiaries in the PRC are obligated to make contribution to a defined
contribution scheme for the housing benefit of their employees. The Group’s annual obligation
for payment of this housing benefit contribution is calculated at a rate of approximately 8%
based on the total salaries of its employees.

The Group has no contributions payable to the housing scheme at the year-end (2002: Nil).
Medical insurance scheme

As required by the Provisional Rules of Medical Insurance issued by the Guangzhou People’s
Municipal Government effective on 1 December 2001, itis mandatory for the Company and
its subsidiaries in the PRC to participate in a medical insurance scheme set up and managed
by the Government. Employees, included those retired employees, can be benefited from
the medical insurance scheme around one month after the registration date.

The Group’s annual obligations for payment of this medical insurance contribution is based
on 7.5% to 8 % of the preceding year’s average annual salary of the Group or the preceding
year’s average annual salary of the Guangzhou City, depending on the length of the
employment period of the employee concerned.

Housing allowances scheme

Pursuant to the resolution passed at the directors’ meeting on 1 July 2002, the Group
developed and implemented a housing allowance scheme, which took effect in 2002. The
scheme allows the Company and its subsidiaries in the PRC to pay its employees housing
allowances if the Company and its subsidiaries are able to meet the budgeted after-tax profit
as determined by the board of directors. The final housing allowances payable however is
limited to the difference between the actual and budgeted after-tax profit of the Company.




(Prepared in accordance with HK GAAP)

27 Commitments

(a) Capital commitments

Group
2003 2002
Rmb’000 Rmb’'000
Contracted but not provided for
Land use rights and buildings 78,730 56,604
Plant, machinery and equipment 152,271 162,787
231,001 219,391
Authorised but not provided for
Land use rights — —
Plant, machinery and equipment 135,692 68,401
366,693 287,792
(b) Financial commitments
Group
2003 2002
Rmb’000 Rmb’000
Contracted but not provided for
Investment securities 2,850 - 3,000
Authorised but not provided for
Investment in unit-trust —_ i 8,000

(c) Commitments under operating leases

At 31 December 2003, the Group had future aggregate minimum lease payments under
non-cancellable operating leases in respect of land and buildings as follows:

2003 2002

Rmb’000 Rmb’000

Not later than one year 21,441 20,243
Later than one year and not later than five years 32,101 22,454
Later than five years 15,813 6,978
69,355 49,675
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28 [Future operating lease arrangements

At 31 December 2003, the Group had future aggregate minimum lease receipts under non-
cancellable operating leases in respect of land and buildings are as follows:

2003 2002

Rmb’000 Rmb’000

Not later than one year 19,484 20,352
Later than one year and not later than five years 81,911 101,395
121,747

101,395

29 Related party transactions

Significant related party transactions, which were carried out in the normal course of the Group’s
business are as follows:

2003 2002
Note Rmb’000 Rmb’000
Ultimate holding company
Licence fee expense a 7,542 5,879
Service fee expense b 857 522
Welfare facilities fee expense c 361 463
Rental expense d 2,690 2,621
Capital contribution to a subsidiary
of the Company f 25,634 —
Jointly controlled entities
Sales of semi-finished goods e 1,177 631
Associated companies
Sales of finished goods e 1,460 1,853
Fellow subsidiaries
Sales of finished goods and raw materials e 105,806 85,020
Purchase of finished goods and raw materials e 156,655 110,890
Purchase of buildings — 69,071

(a)  Pursuant to the Trademark Licence Agreement entered into by the Company and GZPHL on
1 September 1997, GZPHL has granted the Company and its subsidiaries, an exclusive
right to use 38 trademarks owned by GZPHL for a term of 10 years. The Company agreed to
pay a licence fee for the use of the trademarks at 0.1% of the aggregate net sales of the
Company and its subsidiaries.

(b)  Pursuant to the Composite Services Agreement entered into by the Company and GZPHL
on 1 September 1997, GZPHL agreed to provide certain welfare facilities to the Group. The
Group agreed to be responsible for the operation, management and maintenance of the
facilities and pay a welfare facilities fee equal to GZPHL's total depreciation charges of the
welfare facilities in the year ended 31 December 1997 plus a 10% annual increment based
on the welfare facilities for the previous year. The Composite Services Agreement will expire
on 31 December 2007.
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(Prepared in accordance with HK GAAP)

29 Related party transactions (continued)

30

()

(e)

(f)

Pursuant to the Accommodation Services Agreement entered into by the Company and
GZPHL on 1 September 1997 and supplemented by a notice dated 31 December 1997,
GZPHL has agreed to continue to provide staff quarters to the employees of the Group. The
Company agreed to pay a service fee equal to 6% per annum on the net book value of the
relevant staff quarters. The Accommodation Services Agreement will expire on 31 December
2007.

Pursuant to the Tenancy Agreement and the Office Tenancy Agreement both entered into by
the Company and GZPHL on 1 September 1997, GZPHL has granted to the Group the right
to use certain premises such as warehouses and offices for a term of three years at a fixed
annual rent and is subject to the adjustment of standard rent as prescribed from time to time
by Guangzhou Real Estate Administration Bureau, plus utilities and other outgoings which
are payable based on actual consumption. The agreement had expired on 31 August 2003.

The sales and purchase transactions with jointly controlled entities, associated companies
and fellow subsidiaries were at terms similar to those transactions with other third parties.

During the period, GZPHL had made additional capital contribution to Guangzhou Hanfang
in form of land, buildings and machinery (Note 25 (c)).

Principal subsidiaries

The following is a list of principal subsidiaries at 31 December 2003

% of equity Registered
Name interest held capital  Principal activities
Directly  Indirectly Rmb
Guangzhou First Chinese Medicine 97.02 — 166,000,000  Production of CPM
Company Limited?
Guangzhou Chen Li Ji Chinese 100.00 - 94,000,000  Production of CPM
Medicine Factory’
Guangzhou Qi Xing Pharmaceutical 100.00 - 82,416,741 Investment Holdings
Factory'
Guangzhou Jing Xiu Tang 88.40 — 86,232,345 Production of CPM
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.?
Guangzhou Pan Gao Shou 87.77 - 65,436,232  Production of CPM
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.2
Guangzhou Yang Cheng 92.48 — 106,378,439  Production of CPM
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd?
Guangzhou Xing Qun Pharmaceutical 88.99 — 77,168,904  Production of CPM
Co., Ltd?
Guangzhou Pharmaceutical 96.99 - 222,000,000  Trading of western pharmaceutical products
Corporation Limited? and medical apparatus
Guangzhou Chinese Medicine Corporation'  100.00 - 69,700,000  Trading of CPM and Chinese raw medicine
Guangzhou Pharmaceutical Corporation - 96.99 10,694,000  Wholesaling and retailing of medicine,
Jianmin Medicine Chain Pharmacies' pharmaceutical and related products
Guangzhou Guo Xin Te Pharmaceutical — 96.99 3,000,000  Wholesaling of miscellaneous medicine

Miscellaneous Medicine Wholesale Company'
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Principal subsidiaries (continued)

% of equity Registered
Name interest held capital
Directly  Indirectiy Rmb
Guangzhou Jianmin Medicine Pharmaceutical — — 96.99 500,000
Sales and Marketing Company'
Guangzhou Pharmaceutical Import & 100.00 — 3,540,000
Export Corporation'
Guangzhou Qi Xing Pharmaceutical Co., Lid*  — 75.00 100,000,000
Guangzhou Chinese Medicine Corporation - 100.00 3,113,000
Chinese Medical Drink and Pill Factory'
Guangzhou Chinese Medicine Corporation — 100.00 534,000
Medical Powder and Herb Wholesale
Company'
Guangzhou Chinese Medicine Corporation - 100.00 2,083,000
Sales and Marketing Company'
Guangzhou Chinese Medicine Corporation — 100.00 3,934,000
Cai Zhi Lin Medicine Chain Pharmacies'
Guangzhou Medical Equipment and - 89.32 11,880,000
Chemical Testing Equipment Co., Ltd?
Guangzhou Hanfang Contemporary 56.49 — 83,284,300
Chinese Medicine Research and
Development Co., Ltd2
Guangzhou Baidi Biological 94.86 — 70,100,000
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd2
Guangzhou Huanye Medicine Co., Ltd? 58.70 - 6,000,000
Guangzhou Guo Ying New and - 96.99 9,070,000

Special Medicine Wholesale Company’

(Prepared in accordance with HK GAAP)

Principal activities
Wholesaling of western patent medicine
Import and export of medicine

Production of CPM

Processing of healthcare beverages
and drinks

Wholesaling of Chinese raw medicine

Wholesaling and retaifing of CPM

Retailing of Chinese raw medicine
and CPM

Wholesaling and retalling of medical
apparatus and chemical
testing equipment

Research and development of CPM

Research and development of
patented biological products

Production of western medicine

Wholesaling of medicine and healthcare
products

The place of operation of the above principal subsidiaries is in the PRC.

Kind of legal entities:

! State-owned enterprise

2 Limited company

8 Joint stock company

4 Sino-foreign joint venture

Ultimate hoiding company

The directors regard Guangzhou Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited, a PRC State-owned enterprise
under the control and supervision of the Guangzhou Municipal Government, as being the ultimate

holding company.

Approval of accounis

The accounts were approved by the Board of Directors on 26 March 2004.
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1. The original copy of the annual report signed by the legal representative, Financial Controller and
head of the financial department.

2. The accounts prepared in accordance with PRC accounting standards and systems for the year
ended 31 December 2003 together with the auditors’ report thereon signed by the Guangzhou
Yangcheng Certified Public Accountants Co., Ltd.

The accounts prepared under HK GAAP for the year ended 31 December 2003 together with the
auditors’ report thereon signed by PricewaterhouseCoopers.

3. The original copies of documents and announcements disclosed in Shanghai Securities, Hong
Kong Economic Daily and The Standard during the Reporting Period.

4. The documents listed above are available at the Secretariat to the Board of Directors of the Company
(located at 45 Sha Mian North Street, Guangzhou, Guangdong, the PRC).
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230,189,155.53

69,051,978.34

17,957,328.73

15,331,246.76

66,500,000.00

45,000,000.00

30,000,000.00

3,000,000.00

8,000,000.00

20,000,000.00

675,000.00

10,725,000.00

1,371,025,248.97

184
il 4

88.99%

90.36%

100.00%

100.00%

88.40%

87.77%

92.48%

90.09%

100.00%

100.00%

59.70%

94.86%

54.04%

21.42%

24.00%

10.00%

20.00%

45.00%
0.30%

Ritla
 fod

55,184,875.40
144,405,305.21
91,079,904.31
36,412,786.15
(12,677,043.73)
11,483,228.36
28,707,063.83
122,169,082.66
23,179,160.64
1,863,849.74
(19,169.22)

(6.861,577.59)

(6,520,567.15)

(1,027,947.21)

(4,671,376.60)

FRE

180,507,194.11
300,614,627.00
189,545,248.91
163,188,268.77
88,812,771.21
155,781,360.87
130,742,188.27
352,358,238.19
92,231,138.98
19,821,178.47
15,312,077.54
59,638,422.41
38,479,432.85
30,000,000.00
1,972,052.79
8,000,000.00

15,328,623.40

675,000.00
10,725,000.00

482,707,574.80 1,853,732,823.77
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42. REHHEHEERRUSTRORS

FEIFH SHAR®BTRT)
SN PN 2,232
FIEHA 12,175
SR EL R 23,078
WU A 30,321
Rige%EE 8,365
43, ZEBNEQEEETUTENES
FEEHE SHAR®TT)
FERESSTNNESHEEESR 333,634
FRREINNEIEEEER 278,634
EEINTH 10,321
HMHER-FTFEE 1,697
Reez® 8,310
N BRFUHERBHEREWEENEDR » IBEG8EARBT)
1. KRB
(1) ERRRRERGERRRITET
IE# EXK
BE (AEENEA RN F18-3:40]
1EBA 129,998,940.69 40.65% — —
1-25F 24,461,984.40 7.65% — —
2~3% 82,625,413.97 25.84% — —
345 22,298,715.76 6.97% — —_
4~5% 59,900,000.00 18.73% - —
5EL 502,843.54 0.16% 502,043.54 99.84%
' 100% 50204354 0.16%
- kX)) |
BHE (G28MEH HRER HEEH
1EBA 25,411,541.19 8.88% — —
1~2%F 119,059,174.05 41.60% - —
2~3% 63,853,054.95 22.31% - —
3~4%F 76,443,870.77 26.71% — —
4~5% 1,425,486.08 0.50% 401,634.83 28.18%
5E B 800.00 — — —
100.00% _ 401,634.83 0.14%

286,193,927.04

T B A BUGRERERT - FADEIS% (85%) A LRRERDERNORAERERER AR BIMEZRK
5,889,426.367T °
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39.

40.

49.

TIHEA

REATEEFRS
HEEH
FIRRFRE

B TRFERE
REBERA
BEE

CEM

B EH

REETEEFEAR
BEREREE

ek

FRRBRE
FERR
MmEREHER
TEAERH

Afe

FERIW TEEFR
384,949.31 617,288.05
88,308.85 7,758.14
58,014.50 56,099.15
603,472.42 1,563,295.02
519,520.00 -
466,555.00 —
495,823.91 614,223.24
2,616,643.99 2,858,663.60
EERHE LEEFE
5,303,043.39 11,322,791.63
1,263,270.00 11,802,296.39
3,814,592.99 1,553,131.13
153,383.69 404,519.41
- 4,227.75
5,130,331.66 2,846,536.82
923,350.13 147,071.00
306,275.58 1,300,233.01

16,894,247.44 29,380,807.14

SRONT HAFRLL FEEN 12487 T T HER42%  TERER  AREFFERRTEE
FEEE11,802T T MAFERENEEREREE,263T T - Lk EFERAP10,580F 7T ©

EEREER

]
RERHREREELNER (3,014,823.54)
BREEAMEITHE 276,208.28
R AR 738,155.98
EHRERE —
SELINLON 2,231,694.68
MRt EMEEREEENEMSBEE RN (10,327,934.05)
UREERRTIREEREBEENER 3,489,907.18

(6,606,791.47)
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37. BEEE
EERHE FERHE
FEZELTH 20,236,580.46 14,091,898.54
[ExE% 266,959.39 186,310.31
SRIMBTES 1,623,259.20 1,041,175.39
Hitr 73,364.94 9,781.29
22,200,163.99

15,329,165.53

FBBERARFELL EFEUEI06,871T T - 181845% - FBRRER - AEEEHIERAIELL L FiE

N19% - REAEFREREELL FF18N53% @ EH 8 X B -

8. WEERS
BRER
WHRE: EERA
| SHEN
£ fEERE

FEREE DT DR E
BREREREDAZEFERE
REREEE
BERERBEWE

EERHN

294,447.72
698,950.74

4,872,521.97

(5,410,972.27)

1,290,053.23
869,762.78

LERFHE

78,094.09

3,150,000.00

5,394,255.36

(2,475,585.78)
(23,045,616.22)

2,714,764.17

(16,898,852.55)

() ARSAFEL FERENI0614T T - TERER  ASH L FHREEERRKNE
RATTEIEE $HE 7 MERE22,006F 7T - REBNAFHERATRE - BESRER
SRR AR EEENERMT TEART LA KIS -

2 FEEXAFREINENSEESERERORFEBNNERRREBRA6TITT

@) ZFREAFBZEMNTAEBEEZHDERERGKAB00TT -




B B e A58 vy Bk

35. DBRe R
SEZHE TEEIH
B 820,395.64 650,094.22
W EEERT 16,185,358.55 16,372,409.64
HE %Mﬂjﬂ 6,852,172.95 6,751,985.69
HAh 9,994.13 196,570.57
23,867,921.27 23,971,060.12
36. EMIRENE

SERHE FEZFE

(1) HiEBRA
BELE 33,362,108.14 35,521,912.81
MEHEE 4,198,632.65 1,645,826.79
EREREEE 3,706,150.13 230,954.96
RBEEHOFEE 318,018.27 695,978.20
MBEWA 633,927.34 341,000.00
EREARA 2,386,347.53 2,699,778.97
BHERA 6,593,540.01 3,199,388.44
Hif 1,297,774.61 1,339,829.29
52,496,498.68 45,674,669.46

(2) HuE#HIr
BEHE 4,338,101.44 5,029,383.20
MESEE 3,147,317.56 5,478,554.09
% KB 1,106,800.99 852,020.38
Hih 572,700.94 2.515,687.41
9,164,920.93 13,875,645.08

43,331,577.75

31,799,024.38

Hu$EFEARE L FEEIEIN11,533F T + 1£1836% « TEREZE
(1) TEEAEEABRQEEMEHFERTSHERG  ARENEREWAS34TT

2 FEBEAEFEHHESAELE  BEEMAERERAZS77FTT




(2 AFARRABETEMTBEELORRREBERMNTKEEEES QT 100%E - FNHE
FHEH O QFIN20035F8 F SEEAI0%MEE A AEEEREENFLAT EREHE
VEHERIEREBEWA - R FIERAAHAREER  HABEE  ABEREZTHASL
HEERER - IXAEERHRLNEHETEASENTXEEES S ATNRBABEDH
675,985.057C * 1EEABE NI EBFYIA S EFE675,985.057T ©

(3) ALFEMFBESRREHR LNFEERIMHSA -

(4) RBEXALFR002FEREAR  AQFTI2002FEE SRR 20.067T @ REIRA
810,900,000/ 18 « & H Kk ZE% 5.48,654,000.005T °

(5) RARTEEBLREH 2003 FEMNFBEESEFER : 2003EE S ERAL20.067T
1REEARZN810,900,0008% 515 - & HIRELA% 5.48,654,000.007T °
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&4,

EBEBHRADRT
FERHE FEZEHE
(1) SEREE 1,889,214,683.01  1,743,449,746.47

@ B

H 2 4,544,133,795.01  3,794,685,908.00
TE 354,437,902.37 307,500,860.52
EHO 184,176,865.82 98,186,815.52
5,082,748,563.20  4,200,373,584.04

6,971,963,246.21

5,943,823,330.51

FEEFBSEE S HEEMRALELEE A388,692,569.747T ' 2T L 2K A #)5.58% o

EEEBRE
EERHE FEEHE
(1) BlEREE 880,274,084.73 789,366,023.51

@2 g5
#E 4,250,863,145.85  3,524,050,881.74
TE 270,293,631.73 227,241,620.52
EHO 173,950,632.26 89,784,466.45
4,695,107,409.84  3,841,076,968.71
5,575,381,494.57  4,630,442,992.22

5 Gl




31.

32.

BANTEARELNS,237F T TEBE

(1) S ZEEAEENEEAL TR TENESRRS RHFTARARE003F4 7 I2EE

1B FREEEARESNELALBRAREMZANNE

(2) I A NERNGRAD TE TEMNEEEERARNRESEEROFEKERERE
SRINKETRS - BUHEERREERRAIREAERLHE

(3) EhBEARABIBRBASEXNNEMRE-

2EHRT
£ EERMK *EFIN EXB
EERBAE 160,635,151.61  33,016,287.34 306,675.31 193,344,763.64
EERES 109,728,912.38  24,892,774.22 163,126.19 134,458,560.41
TERHAE 61,002,288.10  22,761,364.18 184,786.33  83,668,865.95
BEREA 4,973,493.07 — — 4,973,493.07
336,429,845.16  80,670,425.74 654,587.83 416,445,683.07

(1)  AEENEEERBEAFEEFNEGRNARIE BEARARESEE_EFE TR

emRE A0 ESRIREEFBM10%T5%REVETE B AERIE

EAHBE  ARAE

THTENLEREERESAE EEASHSNIERH BN ARETEN10%
AATB THESERCZIIERETIENN10%RIVEE BB ARIEE LSS - KR

FEE20% R MEREHB AT -

2) AERIETIERBRAFEALDNBLHEHRRSHBERELAHHETIHROTLR

B B A TEEYE2E8675,985.057T °

RATHE

AOEFBABBTHRLMER= -

(1) BEFIEHH2003 4 F14 DBEGHCEESTE-EERERARER) - AEEYH
BEEEEDASHERELERH A MR EFEMITAEIEARFTHENREEF
ETTIERER FRAFETRERWER M) -




e L VA

POty ere b T —

28. BHENE

REAE £XE FEWE
B eniEEe 28,402,491.94 20,719,649.94
HFFRLE 16,926,405.54 1,468.,638.24
BT OREHREELES 925,000.00 25,000.00
GMP S M HES B X HIE R 640,000.00 680,000.00

46,893,897.48 22,893,288.18

BB MR E R FVIEIE 24,001 T © 1IES105% T BERSNERFNIKITEETH
BRI EIRE 22,202 F T o

20, [Bas
BRER ENW SERMK FERIH E£XE
EEi 513,000,000.00 — — 513,000,000.00
BATER 78,000,000.00 — —  78,000,000.00
EONE B 219,900,000.00 — — 219,900,000.00
810,900,000.00 — — 810,900,000.00
ADBRAEEEN FRM SN BERFER A T[2001E8 T E4526 R EHERT -
30. TEHELT
£ SER/MK XEFIH EXK
B AEE 912,565,150.29  3,564,622.18 —  916,129,772.47
BREREFRCEAELEE 1,773,107.29 — — 1,773,107.29
BYHLEY 219,652.84 — — 219,652.84
B A 14,206,086.32 253,730.00 —  14,459,816.32
EfEARLTE 185,196,334.81 1,419,625.59 — 186,615,960.40
INEBATEEE 373,893.09 — — 373,893.09
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1,114,334,224 .64

5,237,977.77

— 1,119,572,202.41




24.

25.

26.

27.

E£XN FEYIE
#EFE 675,992.25 683,341.90
ki - : 408,735.53 539,648.30
BHE o e 2,000,000.00 3,250,000.00
Fft TS 139,981.86 —
BEB 911,582.91 —
Hitw 320,000.00 152,116.62
4,456,292.55 4,625,106.82
—ENFMHZHRE

AEE—E R T 45 EI S (& 5 R $2%530,000,000.007T 2 - A RBREMEN -
HRMA R FHE E£XB HREH
RRIFRTENTE T 2003.07.22~2005.07.21 4.94% 20,000,000.00 RE
mEIFEBTEMT=7EET  2003.1.6~2006.1.2 5.49% 59,500,000.00 B
hERERIBITEERT 2002.12.2~2005.12.2 5.49% 27,680,000.00 R

107,180,000.00

EEE S E RS b IS 17,500 F 7T - #IBA20% - TEREE : (1) AATB THENES
=R A B IR D Bl AR ITGMPRUE TIRARITHRAARKE27,500F T « (2 AARIET N EAes
—mEERATAETERNESHHHE TREMBITEAARK20,000F 7T ¢

RINEEER

fRIEA REANE EXNH EIW

BN D e & 2,732,919.49 2,732,919.49

Hit 883,863.68 886,978.12
3,616,783.17 3,619,897.61
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23. RUEEm

)

AENRERBEOLBATHT -

FXRB FYE
WEHERRES  #HehTd 8,975,189.47 8,780,521.04
TMHEE - 1,236,707.46 5,768,611.34
Gk 518,746.38 390,321.04
IgEsE 1,216,230.20 1,052,161.41
BIHELE 10,443,909.59 9,813,531.62
RSN MR TR R 35,358,597.55 51,578,116.68
TRIRE RS NE 248,990.64 1,556.10
EWETIH 2,894,381.70 640,345.21
BE)RE 413,811.12 609,183.24
BIGEE%mat 14,089,890.99 2,051,227.59
B ENEREB AR QFRIE 13,813,546.79 10,806,457.07
BISBRENES 1,964,745.69 6,473,607.43
TEREFRK 11,937,942.10 14,212,615.04
REEZHES 3,800,000.00 5,522,549.41
FERATBIRTTEM 5 1T (R U 0E) 79,954,738.54 —
CERNETEEBR 9,883,917.00 —
H 2,867,751.06 6,368,891.68

199,619,096.28 124,069,695.90

(@) ERALENRSER  REFAFE%(85%) U EROGBRAORELENEEEEN TS
13,813,546.797T °

(3)  EMIENFERELLFYIEILNT5,549F 7T - 121861% - A BN BB TEMNDITRAE
FIREE - TERARARE TENENSEARATSNBESEE - SBITETEIIE
FEEBE - HHDREORRERAET - TRGERTREITEITRR - FRBERKRE
MEFERDFERBURERARTERNSE -




LN U‘/W‘ »i._..,, R

21.

22.

E£XB FEYIE
) 912,882.34 740,573.03
WER (27,869,188.13) 1,333,586.80
I T M R AR AR 948,807.24 1,003,648.19
PEFREH 44,824,745.71 42,033,131.60
EEM 273,815.82 284,122.75
RINFE=E 2,318,100.42 3,218,901.49
i 196,227.07 159,665.03

21,605,390.47 48,773,628.89

FE SR R B E ¥ BUR 27,168 F 7T+ JRIER56% - TEEREAEENEATBEERER
CiEE AR - BRI ETEBRE AR AR ©
HaETR

HieE £XKK EE
HEBWM (1) 410,733.97 434,453.48
TEREGEER 2) 2,216,500.01 3,383,546.08
HAb 24,361.13 136,085.47

2,651,595.11 4,171,680.15

—

(1) 2E BMINRIEER - EERREBRRBERN%E A

(@) ﬁﬂiiﬁsKE%%E%ZIK;%@E@%ﬁ%iﬁi@%ﬁéﬁﬁ%%uflmﬁ%ﬁ%mﬁ%ﬁﬁ (ER - LEH - EBR
£ B AR WA RI0.05%K10.13%5 T4 SNSRI A 1D 21R0.09%aTHL

b JE 22 S R B E R BUR A 1,302 T o R E R B EE BN 1,167 7L AR
349, TEEESAEENESTBRECERFEDTE S B EEEEH0.13% & A0.05% °
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16.

17.

18.

18.

20.

IR

ERER
R ERER

REREH

&l
o
Pt
vl

BITEEEE
BEAHES

FXN

50,000,000.00
148,300,000.00
465,930,000.00

FHB

123,590,000.00
431,750,000.00

664,230,000.00

555,340,000.00

=

—

FRE

212,533,538.69

EE

75,396,044.40
2,782,540.00

212,533,538.69

—

78,178,584.40

%H%ﬁﬁ%%mﬁ@@%Mwa%fﬁi¢M%m%’$§%®%m$§$%@m%&ﬁﬁﬁ
%%%%ﬁ@@iﬂv%ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁm’RM%%@EEﬁ%%ﬁ%%%ﬁ%%ﬁ%ﬁﬁ%%@%

FRETHE -

BB

BRBRRFRBET BB RBAAFTIE% (25%) b+ 5 AERB I 2 -

Al

FRBEEMIFARES% (55%) M EF RERH BRI -

EfTERF

L4 L1

LB RARF|

ERIVNT

£XN

41.03
11,137.00

11,178.03

REEA

MR 2 ATHI12002EE &
URIEERZ S




= WU U e B e

15, EEHLEE
(1) EESBBHEGAENT
HH HEHM M ER RERER 65 B 28 FE OB
8 54 35,542,916.42 1E55F
BABTEENRI T 5% 1,982,790.62 DEETE
BERE 54 2,756,400.00 618 A
BTEEEBEXH 54 7,162,070.45 6{& 5
Hig T & EEEE 5% 8,199,065.99 BEETE
BISEGER 5% 5,798,076.31 15
GMPHIEEFR 5% 4,426,817.44 148
ERPEFEH 54F 5,257,364.82 14
HIRBRNBERES 54 2,414,500.00 2E4E
BAABBENEREERME 104 3,049,676.46 14
LERRE 5% 417,623.11 153E
HAi 2-5%4 5,840,569.96 1-54F
82,847,871.58
(2) EHSEERIFEFBIOT
EH NN ZERNE p.3:3. 1] ErtHRE E£XK
REE 17.108,045.83  4,294,936.79  2,230,402.17 16,370,335.97 19,172,580.45
HAEZEEMRTH '231,192.50 —  231,19250  1,982,790.62 —
BHYKE 152,859.00 — 46,899.74  2,650,440.74 105,959.26
BrEEBELL 5,104,460.57 322,790.06  3,417,309.89  5,152,120.71  2,009,940.74
HER E g EHAREE 195,927.46 — 195,927.46  8,199,065.99 —
EMEREH 1,508,826.80 122,128.00  1,076,702.24  5,245,823.75 552,252.56
GMPREER 351,528.60 — 22201800  4,297,306.84 129,510.60
ERPZZER 1,926,353.84 479270.00  1,291,378.90  4,143,119.88  1,114,244.94
BRRIRERES 1,410,759.11 — 527,992.18  1,531,733.07 882,766.93
EIRABBEEELE
BRES 2.897,121.96 — 206,109.02 358,663.52  2,691,012.94
LERME 250,573.93 - 83,524.56 250,573.74 167,049.37
En 1,953,742.85 611,027.24 97702722  4252,827.09  1587742.87
33089,392.45  5830,152.09 10,506,483.88 54,434,810.92 28,413,060.66




HR&W £0K L3 i ] SEREE RitRBE FXR

REBETE 1,820,381.37 - 4498064  18,642,578.27  1,775,391.73
EARELTR 3,703,220.86 - 473,589.92 860,369.06  3,229,630.94
EEEV R 14,051,869.00 - 31894100  2214081.00  13,732,928.00
HERIHEE L 3,153,970.17 - 70,875.72 379.997.55  3,083,094.45
TIRRELDM 3,279,846.75 — 94,839.00 324,033.25  3,185,007.75
T AH%136-138% 138 1,435,436.48 - 41506.56 14181408 1,393,929.92
EeEEETI 983,004.99 - 28,424.28 97,116.29 954,580.71
REH103% 1it 15,287,410.16 - 49527240  3,136,72524  14,792,137.76
DAYV yrteabi] 1,135,445.93 - 35,397.57 206,939.64  1,100,048.36
TlEEARTR 938,794.64 - 21,934.08 179,843.44 916,860.56
HNEEBELH 2,307,494.74 - 42,483.60 41112088 2,265,011.14
EBOEELH 344,561.48 - 8,050.32 66,006.84 336,511.16
RLEELH 96,889.37 - 2,548.32 20,333.95 94,341.05
hi#EELH 54,128.97 - 1,628.40 12,635.43 52,500.57
ENpesH i 2,373,105.58 361,514.33 158,076.92 619,250.34  2,576,542.99
BEAEBH L 264,547.69 - 6,180.96 50,679.27 258,366.73
EE00% 150 135,946.78 - 4,089.72 31,733.94 131,857.06
BIR44E 1 487,818.92 - 12,830.28 102,377.36 474,988.64
BER54F i 19,602.40 - 430.80 2,369.40 19,171.60
AEREIS T 57,321.52 — 1,246.11 2,492.23 56,075.41
RER265% 11 290,534.64 - 6,803.06 46,221.42 283,931.58
PEZEE 1R 32,866.88 — 927.96 5,181.08 31,938.92
ERM2E T 96,538.85 ~ 2,725.80 15,218.95 93,813.05
FETREZRZ0R 10 23,945.77 - 676.20 3,775.43 23,269.57
FHERE12F T 1,568,821.87 - 35,290.44 230,891.47 153353143
BB BEH 871,253.94 - 34247864 1,120,971.51 528,775.30
HERNERE - 1,000,000.00 50,004.00 50,004.00 949,996.00
HAERRREL AR 1,614,863.96 - 35,104.76 17552880  1579,759.20
BERNIIREST 1t 2,146,382.01 181,818.29 60,781.20 810,678.81  2,267,419.10
EREAREETE 156,360.00 - 156,360.00 338,640.00 -
BIEREERN 199,920.00 - 199,920.00 500,000.00 -

9473471778 3631,174.02  3684,535.13  36,071,44337  94,681,356.67

M- 2B B A R A 7 T 22 =% FE B




TR BT RS T L_s_-vr mu ;MA% U‘UU E,D_[:.

RE&H®

EaEDE L
EERES RN L
FHEBRIY LS
RABRESE
HEREEE
Y e R
ESFATEESH LM
HOEFREETE
ERERER

REAR

som

wh Omg md mf mA

R

5

]{ P

¥
5

i
¥H o omi R

S
o

s
e
Y
puss

R

109,032.00
27,045.00
1,764,522.90
1,649,746.91
1,000,000.00
1,755,288.00
3,078,097.91
338,640.00
500,000.00

AEXR

485,451.22

130,752,800.04

966,151.46

AEBREARNESEENEEEEN DO RRETEERELRE -

BREERNFEEFEROT -

RE&R

BNRFRE L
ARBERRELIH
BB i
SRERILARE
PERERBERN
BEEH19-20% 11
EREERTETY

| HARBTIR L
| SERESFERE

PIUNEREES T
BMTIL 1945 1
B KiER 18885 1ib
EMKER16885 0 13

08

3,875,255.85
2,365,584.82
35,531.27

1,390,974.72
220,929.32
188,908.00

1,196,782.00
2,1561,148.77
24,125,515.36
251,801.95

sEAmE FEERE
— 88,377.56

- 54,828.63

- 890.26
1,500,000.00 37,500.00
480,000.00 24,000.00
17,520.38 34,420.37
- 10,186.03

- 17,902.02
73,678.00 68,664.00
- 47,251.62

- 540,123.48
16,643.02 6,183.50

AHEAE

514,167.71
375,845.81
6,232.94
37,500.00
24,000.00
243,992.65
34,733.71
28,184.02

264,026.00
258,683.93
3,420,782.04
63,556.55

HRREAN

660.00
660.00
521.00

51.00
114.00
540.00
480.00

£¥B

3,786,878.29
2,310,756.19
34,641.01
1,462,500.00
458,000.00
1,374,074.73
210,743.29
171,005.98

1,201,796.00
2,103,887.15
23,585,391.88
262,261.47




HE&H

BERE T
EERVHBELL
HEBTINBELL
TR LS
MFFHE136-138F 11
BEeERETIH
AEIBK1035 Lt

b FHE328% Lt
FNEBEAR LIt
SNEEBR LTt
EGORELH
RZREx1H
NREELH
B85
BERE6F L
EE20K T
BIm44K 10
FEEE G4 T3
HEREIT L1
KF 2655 L1
PE=EEIF L

T

F

H- E:
& WA mE mA )

)

g

on
g

i

il

F

ko

i

i

g

F

oo
Jeh

R

som

it
i 1 1 R : R

R

san

Jof Jm mg

R

4,090,000.00
15,847,019.00
3,463,092.00
3,508,041.00
1,535,744.00
1,051,697.00
17,928,863.00
1,306,988.00
1,096,704.00
2,676,141.00
402,518.00
114,675.00
65,136.00
3,195,793.33
309,046.00
163,591.00
577,366.00
21,541.00
58,567.64
330,153.00
37,120.00

BEEN

480,700.24

HEBHRAR

469.00
504.00
522.00
403.00
403.00
403.00
358.00
102.00
502.00
503.00
502.00
444.00
387.00
432.00
502.00
387.00
44400
534.00
528.00
516.00
660.00




14.

(4)

(1)

FEITRFESHERERERLEEN N ¢
r.3:3. DY
IREH £9K FEANY EERE EHEOR £XH
ERSHER 13,048,048.72 —  13,048,046.72 - —
FEHSFBOMPTE — 62,540.00 - — 62,540.00
gEREcEAMRIE 80,202.80 — - 80,202.80 —
13,128,240.52 6254000  13,048,046.72 80,202.80 62,540.00

EREERENT
BE&H BARR B R HEEAN
P S G BE 4,301,046.00 — 504.00
ARBEREL BE 2,686,602.00 — 504.00
BRR4ETH EE 40,873.95 — 468.00
BRI B R BE 1,500,000.00 — 117.00
TEREHBERN BE 480,000.00 — 114.00
BEREE19-20% i BE 1,618,067.38 — 474.00
ERBEERE LI BBE 245.477.00 — 528.00
EARBRITR L BE 199,200.00 — 557.00
ZEREEHMERT

PINBAEEIR T BE 1465,822.00 — 199.00
BT RFE194% ot BE 2,362,581.08 — 533.00
B AER 16885 11 EE 27,006,173.92 — 524.00
BN AEG16888 I Lig BE 325,818.02 - 476.00
nERELH BE 20,417,970.00 — 480.00




A5HA

IBEH E0K E-3:3. 41} EERE EtROK EXN
THREEEABEARR — 72270057 684326557 - 379,435.00
BELNTECEYARRDL 854240742 34.267,152.19 - —  42,809,559.61
EEFAXRH - 210,940.00 — - 210,940.00
BENFERTE 336,078.00 - 336,078.00 — -
BELTHLBEETR 800,000.00  4,896,00000  5,696,000.00 - -
FEMERTEES 2,179,473.00 - - —  2,178,473.00
REMEERE - 84,500.00 - - 84,500.00
hESHHGMPIRE —  2,955874.12 - - 2,955874.12
EZELNERPEE 97,909.45 - - — 97,909.45
BEERPTHE 4,330,352.17 — 433035217 - -
EEhEIR - 26,249.13 - - 26,249.13
ZEOGMPHETR - 62,862.00 - - 62,862.00
FHRERE —  1,283,400.00 - —  1,283,400.00
RERETR 2,678,291.02 61,681.00  2,678,291.02 - 61,681.00
RERGERIEIR 402,919.11 78,623.46 159,436.57 75,170.00 246,936.00
REFZERERYERIR 6792823 241352804 141,414.07 114 2340,041.06
RERRRLBBREE 115,500.00 - - 115,500.00 —
REFNELIERYE 329,967.80 205,225.96 480,023.76 75,170.00 -
REFNBEYE 40,000.00 464,528.06 364,682.48 75,170.00 64,675.58
RERBERHEBEMIR —  1,146,33672  1,071,166.72 75,170.00 -
FEMGIEAERLE —  16,872,455.01 - —  16,872,455.01
ARCMPREMERETZ  1,669,072.73 670,337.14  2,339,409.87 - -

236,616,437.79 325,316,801.48 252,213811.32  3710,839.12 306,008,586.83

R ITIZE R FEELN69,392F 7T © 1218/429.33% TEERSNEEEARF T T
DRIEMNF—EERHERDNSHEEE HHE - BNESBA G EIFEEEER A Y
e EMER  ENEEE RATECEDREEP LETIRIRTISHERMSEATIESYE -

(3) BART - RELREHEZAETRRNERTEENET  AEEAFRYZ IR E:R
HURL{E2#£4580,0007T




H {P }Rm }Rm mm

1848 RER
REREEHNELR 323,120.00
RERPREBAEHERIRE 4,738,900.00
RERYEELBRER 115,500.00
REFMNELEREMNE 304,153.08
RESNEBENE —
REREERBESHIR 4,198,100.00
TEFRIBRERLE 16,872,455.01
RRGMPEE B M E T2 —
TREIEREZFFHERMLOT
IBER ENR g.%:2 41}
EEHERIE 136,019,08345  50,631,019.39
BYESH-BTE 449851202 11,881,640.13
BEEEE_HIR 33,636.64 431,749.68
-REIE 80,000.00 -
—EBBE AHiE 23172,973.19  51570,427.26
WHH EAMER 332003808 322,578.00
REEPEMREREN 7,692.00 -
BEEERFNIRE 9909,891.37  3,396,829.14
REEERFSIE 2940000  1,893,848.86
REEREWETR - 36,100.00
BRR(EER 1686,180.99  38,423,833.40
ERREREIR 202973125  1765,025.75
WEEHBRERNR 1641,085.18  4,939,867.15
HEERIRRRRR 50,000.00 -
WETREEELER 7,631,363.08  3,304,976.35
HELARAENEELER  7985355.32  1,207,537.46
HEEGMPT 2 1,080,040.06 804,917.60
REEENHOMPEE 115220000  2,274,073.43
HEEEKEER - 558,281.00
EREZEHLE 532,200.00 -
BRESELEE 45,800.00 -
EERECMPHEIR 742704352 59,638,317.45
EREMIAERLE 80,000.00 -
FhEREEIR 170,000.00 817,119.48
ERHEGMPERIR 577428537  15,847,916.84
EHEKEBUBETR 11,007.64 586,094.75
wa&:ﬁéa&%ﬁ% 10,000.00 91,851.96
FHEREmyE IR 64901972 1,200,403.00
FHNEER - 730,000.00

RERE

BEER
BRER®
SEE®
BRES
BHES
BEE®
BRES
BEE%E

358
Bx®E

184,922,416.16

1,280,461.82

2,506,426.50
3,919,071.73

6,572,312.93
1,740,604.14

470,720.00

532,200.00
45,800.00
1,462,052.88
80,000.00
140,000.00
21,622,202.21

1,849,422.72
630,000.00

RtEIB

15,750.00
14,940.00

1,025,878.50

34,403.50
542,062.00
411,360.00
£40,031.00
157,093.50

453,119.48

IR#BAR
bt 4

149%

52%
100%
100%
100%
100%

£5B

1,727,686.68
16,364,402.15
450,446.32
80,000.00
74,743,400.45
1,336,275.76
7,692.00
13,306,720.51
1,923,248.36
36,100.00
40,110,014.39
1,253,927.00
2,119,798.60
50,000.00
3,952,666.48
6,832,257.64
1,727,864.16
2,955,553.43
558,281.00

£5,503,308.09

394,000.00

597,102.39
101,851.96

100,000.00
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13. EEIRE

(1)

FETEBRENT :

IRER

EEZHEBRNE
ERUBSER-HTE
ERMEER_BTE
h—BRETHE
F—EREEHmE
BREERESHEE
BEERENIERED
BEEERENTE
REEERRTIE
BREEGRYETE
BRI EER
ERHRBTETR
WEERBRBENR
w Eﬁb% FRTE
RIEEREEELER
ﬁLﬂﬁﬁﬂéﬁééﬁ
SEGMPIEciE
G E B AGMPIEE
%ﬂ{/ E/Hﬁqﬁg/ﬁl
éméﬁA&ﬁ
/% /‘\*n
§nwempﬁﬁlﬁ
BEREMIAENRDE
FHBAKE TR
i SIEIGMPE T2
SRR BIRETRE
FREE TR
FHRDERSETR
Fi B SR
EHEEEERREERRK
BENTEEMRERRL
BEFAX
BENTEMEE
EENRNEEE IR
REMRBRTERES
REMBERE
hEH A EGMPIE
Brg HNERPIER
BEERPIE
FapETR
FEGMPHIE TR
FERELE
FENETE

,_

A%*%E%*

NWW\W\\

o

RaR

243,688,046.72
16,835,778.76
465,000.00
197,030,000.00
126,000,000.00
29,100,000.00
4,000,000.00
38,000.00
118,840,000.00
3,786,348.50

12,821,045.48
11,339,612.77
30,300,000.00

4,196,978.09

104,910,000.00
7,707,542.02
1,000,000.00
23,000,000.00
400,000.00
600,000.00
1,700,000.00
11,000,000.00
17,800,000.00
52,680,000.00
6,000,000.00
1,120,260.00
6,160,000.00
2,179,473.00
2,385,100.00
5,000,000.00
600,000.00
4,080,000.00
37,499.00
104,770.00
2,000,000.00
2,739,972.00

ReExE

SRESNERERER

SR ka
5RES
58EA%

SRSy

5EEE
5F4%

TR B LB TR

SREAsLERER

SHEE
5HE%

ERA SRR
ERE T REFRR
SREEAERERBRERN

SRE%

BEESRERES
BEEEERERAS
BEER R ERBBER

EFER
EEE®
EEE%
BEES

TREBEFRBIER

BEEES
EBEE

EEET R ERBERER

BEEE
EEES
EEEE

EREERERES
EREzRERBEER

BEAEE
EFES

ERES R ERBEE]

ERESRERES

EEE®

BERRERERAS
BEREERERES

ERE2
EREe
ERES
ERES
BERER
HFER
BRAS

IRBAL
RAEMEH

77%
97%
100%
42%
101%
80%
48%
95%
35%
100%




i

1= U A 455 ) Bk

AEBAEHSHETEEETEFHE  WRPBEFVH - ERYRWMT

RE 2003 EMM 2002FF XN on
EERESEY 681,829,795.79 681,829,795.79 -
MERE 419,142,341.08 439,590,073.71 (20,447,732.63)
EERE 83,408,757.51 83,408,757.51 —
BHRE 23,786,362.81 11,877,149.99 11,909,212.82
WARE 39,312,332.31 30,773,812.50 8,538,519.81

1,247,479,589.50

| — =

1,247,479,589.50 —

REHnE 2003 E K 2002 XM an
EEREEY 137,809,341.32 137,809,341.32 —
BEBRE 226,314,756.01 235,017,893.00 (8,703,136.99)
EERE 47,056,018.35 47,056,018.35 -
B 12,069,418.42 7,063,937.52 5,005,480.90
BEYN 18,957,726.66 15,260,070.57 3,697,656.09

442,207,260.76 442,207,260.76 —

—

REEMN 2003 E MW 20025 E£FK B -]

EERREY 21,648,669.49 18,763,309.95 2,885,359.54
HEEE 7,505,296.38 10,390,655.92 (2,885,359.54)
EERE 280,857.44 280,857.44 —
BELE — — —
/N 129,520.14 129,520.14 —

29,564,343.45 29,564,343.45 —

REERERIREABTAERENSER252214T T °

£Z2003512A831 81 - REBLUFEE118,400F T (LF R 118,030 F 7T) EE A EEIEHF -
FAREERBITIEEMER

KAEENERHEARTRE - %18 EPNESREYRATTRESEEAREEENEER
E - pEdTrEsEEREEEENERMRATAEAERRF25787T L




= W MWV AV VL VAN

T4 BNEEHEBRASSHEEE93107.077  SRER RIR20025F 12 S B B B RESIEER A FIH0EG
BRI ER X (e B BB E A BN BRI HE R L AR 38T 2003F 1 F R B F 1y -
AFRIEE599,234.125T + B5HB599,234.125T ¢

25 EMFESEDREEERAAAHEEL73283.13T « RUEAR H15 BIR2002F 6 A 12003411 A FjEE A F)
EITRER X E BT RS ENEE A EBYNES18072.267% EEF8$518,072.26

73

.
12. BERESERRTTE
R )] p-3:3:: )1} ] EEFLE EX8
EERESEY 681,829,795.79 173,225,895.05 13,368,409.29 841,687,281.55
EEY 419,142,341.08 94,631,301.11 39,627,882.63 474,145,759.56
BEHRE 83,408,757.51 13,136,584.86 4,978,379.27 91,566,963.10
EHRE 23,786,362.81 3,042,414.03 1,182,191.56 25,646,585.28
NG 39,312,332.31 17,616,936.55 2,342,307.17 54,586,961.69
BETBEEEE — 17,809,198.38 — 17,809,198.38
1,247,479,589.50 319,462,329.98 61,499,169.92 1,505,442,749.56
BHFE Xk ;] TERMA XERIH LY |
FERESEY 137,809,341.32 29.460,932.03 3,892,445.99 163,377,827.36
HERE 226,314,756.01 34,039,731.38 20,775,141.76 239,579,345.63
Ewie 47,056,018.35 8,803,947.81 3,984,353.62 51,875,612,54
ERH 12,069,418.42 3,152,271.06 1,122,880.12 14,098,809.36
NG 18,957,726.66 9,247,628.33 1,854,119.05 26,351,235.94
BEEELE — 3,303,779.94 — 3,303,779.04
442,207,260.76 88,008,290.55 31,628,940.54 498,586,610.77
REEE £9R EERME XERVE EXN
EERESEY 21,648,669.49 — 3,508,844.99 18,139,824.50
e 7,505,296.38 1,157,064.00 1,422,947.96 7,239,412.42
&% 280,857.44 26,206.00 28,996.03 278,067.41
R R - — — —
BE/N-'S 129,520.14 — — 129,520.14
BTEELE — — - —
1,183,270.00

29,564,343 45

4,960,788.98

25,786,824.47




(2) ERHEBRERERFEHBERET:
FERBE  RNERE RIGER

BHRLAEER 231 REG  F1 ] REEE &
HEZRE$FARAR 1,260,144.45 —  (261,418.37) 1,260,144.45 [1]
ENPEEEERAF 1,707,895.91 504,969.53  1,307,895.91 -
HENNEBEERAT 615,000.00 - — -
ENREEEFREBRERLF 346,209.02 (55,097.29)  (617,740.98) -
i Mﬁﬁéﬁqﬂ BEBTEARLE 34706255 (563,009.20)  (92,937.45) —
REEEZRERLT 320,843.90 9,09458  (196,086.430) —
ERBERNERLA 264,000.00 - - —
BN W%%m%ﬁiﬁ 542,241.53 12,42270  (319,151.05) -
BTN AR RRENES 218,399.05 - 58,399.05 —
ENTXEEEEHLE 119,700.00 - — —
SEEEERER! ’] 15,328,623.40  (4,671,376.60) (4,671,376.60) —
EEREENETER 1972,052.79  (417,613.74) (1,027,947.21) —
EMERBEMBERAF 675,000.00 - — —
HETEFRRERAT 30,000,000.00 - - —
REEETERD ﬁﬁﬁ g 8,000,000.00 - - -
BENZAEMENERR 150,000.00 - — -
ﬂ\!mz?E;;;iﬁﬁﬁi 870,02325  (487,106.25) (2,729,076.75)  522,553.95 [2]
RESHERERAA 362,826.38 — — —
RBETEEAT 362,750.00 — - -
RE xRS 10,725,000.00 - — —

ENERERARERBRAR

aHEE 1,294,828.94 - - - 3
BNREHEERLAAHER 893,107.07 - — - {4
ENERENBEERAR

BHEE 273,283.13 - — — 8

76,649,8901.37 (5,157,716.27) (8549,430.88) 1,782,698.40

B1: BRFEESHOE=EEZERALTNUBENGZ TH BEEEZRAERRNTN  BREFRER
B XEFHZIEE DEERAEEE -

2! FYHBEESEVERADEERE  BUBERE R2003FFEIHEE - RIFSEEGIEELDK
Bx - AEEYZIER 2 R60%FIEER -

3T EMESEARRRIERAFIAGHEE,294,828.94T  RMALGB T a1ENEEFHEERDBERL
' 2515 BIE 199910 5 R2002F 11 BB E BN BB EXA KRB ER DA% R 15%BREHZ 8B

HEEE RN ESERMRERER AR E SRS GBS BB EE - ZRERESRAOTE

$£5551,990,885.94T - WHHERRALERES ARENRELRADHFLEY FFERIEFR

171,853.68T + R 5 #15696,057.007T °
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10.

11.

TERENFERERE - REBEANHEERENR AN T ERENTER FEERNR AN EEHE
THFEKREEES59,734.197C - A REEREREEEE BB BEF[2003)9655 8 F - &
200451 F1E R - ERitESCRE—ATEEETIMENSE et i E RN ERE2003E
12ANBEFLEEFNEE - AR B THERRBECESEREENM A E N EDIER
FEBREER449,914.697T - BEFEN I BN FERBETIREHBEBUAET - BEREFEHT
FRFERTSEREE -

BLIRE
X )] | ZERENK TEHERH -y 3
BRRERE 2,600,600.95 2,356,736.66 3,140,588.06 1,816,749.55
ETEEBEER 582,927.48 3,247,962.85 3,830,890.33 —
BEE 31,253.28 125,460.00 30,280.00 126,433.28
ELE 1,152,000.00  14,990,380.00 9,903,222.00 6,239,158.00
FRIEINEIETR 76,886,436.31 307,794,393.54 302,284,720.93  82,396,108.92
Hf 474,401.17 2,878,681.75 2,631,177.61 721,905.31
81,727,619.19 331,393,614.80 321,820,878.93  91,300,355.06
EIEERSE

(1) EEREREBENT

BRRAFER HRYE HERMELA MR RE
HRe=BEXERLE 20145 50.00% 1,521,562.82
BMNPEEZEFRAT =R 50.00% 400,000.00
ESNMEREER AT 20074 31.56% 615,000.00
EMNREEESREGERIF 2004%F 65.00% 963,950.00
TN REFREEBTIRERDE =R 44.00% 440,000.00
AHREX (RE)BERLF 2007F 40.00% 516,930.33
ERBERODBRAF IR 13.47% 264,000.00
BN B EERREEES ZHR 80.00% 861,392.58
BENTEM AR RREN &S EHIR 20.00% 160,000.00
BMTKEBEZ S AT B HIR 10.00% 119,700.00
SEBESEERRAR AR 20.00% 20,000,000.00
BERRRRETERLA AR 24.00% 3,000,000.00
EMeRBEREERAF &R 45.00% 675,000.00
HEMEFBEERRA 20114 21.42% 30,000,000.00
HEEETERNHER AT B EIR 10.00% 8,000,000.00
BNEREMENERDE EER 15.00% 150,000.00
A THEEEENERDF 20165 72.00% 3,600,000.00
BEEHREEBERQT 2005 40.00% 362,826.38
RBRITERDTT : ZHE 362,750.00
B AERTT EHR 0.30% 10,725,000.00




1B DU s a8 M b

@) EMEEFFRBENABATHET

&8
H#RE 2,076,005.92
BERES  FERTES 6,802,582.70

TIRRREER 17,762,100.48

EREEEX 13,708,930.15
BEIREEER 882,418.13
ol NCIEE Y 20,551,803.91
H o fEURE S 3R 24,858,965.66

B AN AT B TE IR X 54,273,015.65

140,915,822.60

L R SARE T - AR F)5% (55%) A L RIRERHIRARREEFEBARAR
T H R FR7,226,782.867T °

(3) HAEWERFREBEASELEAFR38,685,880.127L G FEUN FRABEE Y27 .45% ©
(4) ANEFEhHEMEK R A20% - £512,873,992.957T TS RBHIS -

7.  FRE&R
(1) ENERERET REENERAFE% (5% K ERABERGBERIFR -

(@) TEREERERELCFYIBUENG9,402T T, « HEIER49% - TERREAEERGERNIIEE
mEENNEETEM -

8. il bl latid
£xXN =8
B S DR 10,325,834.50 _ 10,064,712.63

9. =0
EXN ENH

31} ERBENEN #5E BEBEEE
ERnE 3,697,330.09 — 3,920,280.65 —
BMR 80,703,963.41 298,752.78 78,262,771.39 298,752.78
EER 62,052,049.41 — 35,133,621.26 —
_ ERa 80,545,553.20 111,066.72 85,135,120.98 —
BEFER 1,916,496.77 — 1,554,527.27 -
BEY 32,111,255.96 — 28,032,228.25 —
EANIYE 600,394.57 — 1,342,025.86 —
BEHE® 802,786,887.82 449,914.69  613,928,504.51 390,344.03
2t 3,885,332.06 — 1,899,090.95 —
_1,068,299,263.29 859,734.19 _ 849,208,171.12 $89,096.81
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R

1EUR
1-26F
2~3%F
3~4%5
4~5%
SEp+

Lt rEUER R

(2) FPBUFRE

FW

BE  HEESLe AR5 L1§:3:4:)
702,018,180.98 92.95%  7,463,417.61 1.06%
13,915,260.16 1.84%  1,396,272.50 10.03%
9,243,624.58 1.23%  3,026,900.14 32.75%
8,174,940.32 1.08%  6,028,518.11 73.74%
5,680,233.64 0.75%  4,634,598.70 81.59%
16,241,805.31 215%  16,241,805.31 100.00%
755,274,044.99 100.00% _ 38,791,512.37

5.14%

KEREREERIS RS ES
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